


 

Page 284 of 504





 

Page 285 of 504












Page 286 of 504



 

 Bailey Meadows Subdivision– Sandy, Clackamas County (AKS Job #7107) June 2019 

Flood & Slope Hazard Analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B: Precipitation Data 

Page 287 of 504



!"#$%&'"'(#)%"*+%&%*,'-*./01!1+1*2*/.3*45*6*+7)7$87-*29:;

!"#$ %"&'($)*$+"#,+$ %-.'($)*$+"#,+$ /01'($)*$+"#,+$ 2!!''3"4$'56 2!!''3"4$'76 8+$9-*-#"#-:. ;.:<=">> ;.:<'!$*#?

29:;6:269: < < < < < < < <

29:;6:2692 => ?@ A@B= > 9 < < <

29:;6:269? AC ?: A9B9 9 9 9B9? < <

29:;6:269A < < < < < < < <

29:;6:269= < < < < < < < <

29:;6:269@ < < < < < < < <

29:;6:269> < < < < < < < <

29:;6:269; < < < < < < < <

29:;6:269C < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26:9 < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26:: < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26:2 < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26:? < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26:A < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26:= < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26:@ < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26:> < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26:; < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26:C < < < < < < < <

29:;6:2629 < < < < < < < <

29:;6:262: < < < < < < < <

29:;6:2622 < < < < < < < <

29:;6:262? < < < < < < < <

29:;6:262A < < < < < < < <

29:;6:262= < < < < < < < <

29:;6:262@ < < < < < < < <

29:;6:262> < < < < < < < <

29:;6:262; < < < < < < < <

29:;6:262C < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26?9 < < < < < < < <

29:;6:26?: < < < < < < < <

/0$+"1$@;,) 7AB6 AAB7 5ABA C 6 6B6A % %

Page 288 of 504



!"#$%&'"'(#)%"*+%&%*,'-*./01!1+1*2*/.3*45*6*7'89$:9-*2;<=

!"#$ %"&'($)*$+"#,+$ %-.'($)*$+"#,+$ /01'($)*$+"#,+$ 2!!''3"4$'56 2!!''3"4$'76 8+$9-*-#"#-:. ;.:<=">> ;.:<'!$*#?

2;<=6<<6;< > > > > > > > >

2;<=6<<6;2 ?@ AA B@CB <A A > > >

2;<=6<<6;@ ?B AA BACB <B B ;C;< > >

2;<=6<<6;A BD A? B<CB <2 2 ;C2A > >

2;<=6<<6;B ?A A= B?C; <? ? ;C;D > >

2;<=6<<6;? BD A? B<CB <2 2 ;C@A > >

2;<=6<<6;D > > > > > > > >

2;<=6<<6;= > > > > > > > >

2;<=6<<6;E > > > > > > > >

2;<=6<<6<; BD 2E A@C; @ ; ;C;; > >

2;<=6<<6<< B@ 2E A<C; < ; ;C;; > >

2;<=6<<6<2 ?@ 2E A?C; ? ; ;C;; > >

2;<=6<<6<@ ?? @@ AECB <; ; ;C;; > >

2;<=6<<6<A AE @@ A<C; < ; ;C;; > >

2;<=6<<6<B B@ A; A?CB D ; ;C;E > >

2;<=6<<6<? ?< A; B;CB << < ;C;< > >

2;<=6<<6<D ?; A2 B<C; << < ;C;; > >

2;<=6<<6<= ?2 AB B@CB <A A ;C;; > >

2;<=6<<6<E ?@ @B AEC; E ; ;C;; > >

2;<=6<<62; ?? @@ AECB <; ; ;C;; > >

2;<=6<<62< BE @@ A?C; ? ; ;C;; > >

2;<=6<<622 B< AA ADCB = ; ;C<; > >

2;<=6<<62@ > > > > > > > >

2;<=6<<62A B< @= AACB B ; ;C?? > >

2;<=6<<62B BA @< A2CB @ ; ;C;< > >

2;<=6<<62? AE @D A@C; @ ; ;C;2 > >

2;<=6<<62D B? AA B;C; <; ; ;CD< > >

2;<=6<<62= BD A@ B;C; <; ; ;C<= > >

2;<=6<<62E > > > > > ;C@< > >

2;<=6<<6@; > > > > > > > >

/0$+"1$@;,) 7ABC DAB7 5ABD CEF G7 GBF7 % %

Page 289 of 504



!"#$%&'"'(#)%"*+%&%*,'-*./01!1+1*2*/.3*45*6*4)&'78-*29:;

!"#$ %"&'($)*$+"#,+$ %-.'($)*$+"#,+$ /01'($)*$+"#,+$ 2!!''3"4$'56 2!!''3"4$'76 8+$9-*-#"#-:. ;.:<=">> ;.:<'!$*#?

29:;6:969: <= >> <2?9 22 :2 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:9692 @< >< <<?9 2< :< 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:969A @B B9 >@?9 :@ @ 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:969B @: B< >;?> := = 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:969> << B2 >B?9 :B B 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:969< >A B< B=?> :9 9 :?9> 9?9 9

29:;6:969@ >B BA B;?> = 9 9?92 9?9 9

29:;6:969; >@ B< >:?> :2 2 9?2: 9?9 9

29:;6:969= <9 >2 ><?9 :< < 9?<9 9?9 9

29:;6:96:9 <9 B; >B?9 :B B 9?9A 9?9 9

29:;6:96:: <> A= >2?9 :2 2 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:96:2 @9 A= >B?> :> > 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:96:A @9 B9 >>?9 :> > 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:96:B @2 A@ >B?> :> > 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:96:> @2 B9 ><?9 :< < 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:96:< ;A >: <@?9 2@ :@ 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:96:@ C C C C C 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:96:; ;: B@ <B?9 2B :B 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:96:= @B A= ><?> :@ @ 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:9629 @A A= ><?9 :< < 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:962: <; A= >A?> :B B 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:9622 C C C C C 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:962A @: A= >>?9 :> > 9?99 9?9 9

29:;6:962B C C C C C C 9?9 9

29:;6:962> C C C C C C 9?9 9

29:;6:962< C C C C C C 9?9 9

29:;6:962@ C C C C C C 9?9 9

29:;6:962; <@ B< ><?> :@ @ C C 9

29:;6:962= <A B< >B?> :> > 9?;= 9?9 9

29:;6:96A9 >< BA B=?> :9 9 9?AA 9?9 9

29:;6:96A: C C C C C C 9?9 9

/0$+"1$@;,) ABCB 55CD 77CE FGB D5G FCDF 6C6 6C6

Page 290 of 504



!"#$%&'"'(#)%"*+%&%*,'-*./01!1+1*2*/.3*45*6*/78&7$97-*2:;<

!"#$ %"&'($)*$+"#,+$ %-.'($)*$+"#,+$ /01'($)*$+"#,+$ 2!!''3"4$'56 2!!''3"4$'76 8+$9-*-#"#-:. ;.:<=">> ;.:<'!$*#?

2:;<6:=6:; >? @; ?AB@ 2C ;C :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6:2 >C C? ?:B: 2: ;: :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6:A <; C> ?CB: 2C ;C :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6:C >= CC ?;B@ 22 ;2 :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6:@ <A C@ ?CB: 2C ;C :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6:? =; @C >2B@ AA 2A :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6:> <> @: ?<B@ 2= ;= :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6:< <? @@ >:B@ A; 2; :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6:= >> @; ?CB: 2C ;C :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6;: <; @; ??B: 2? ;? :B:< :B: :

2:;<6:=6;; >2 @2 ?2B: 22 ;2 :B:2 :B: :

2:;<6:=6;2 ?C @2 @<B: ;< < :B2: :B: :

2:;<6:=6;A ?? C< @>B: ;> > :B22 :B: :

2:;<6:=6;C ?= C< @<B@ ;= = :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6;@ >A C> ?:B: 2: ;: :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6;? >: C> @<B@ ;= = :B;; :B: :

2:;<6:=6;> ?@ C> @?B: ;? ? :B2= :B: :

2:;<6:=6;< ?= CC @?B@ ;> > :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6;= D D D D D :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=62: >2 CC @<B: ;< < :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=62; >A CC @<B@ ;= = :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=622 >> @C ?@B@ 2? ;? :B2C :B: :

2:;<6:=62A ?= C< @<B@ ;= = :B:= :B: :

2:;<6:=62C ?> C@ @?B: ;? ? :B:; :B: :

2:;<6:=62@ >A C; @>B: ;> > :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=62? <2 CA ?2B@ 2A ;A :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=62> <A C? ?CB@ 2@ ;@ :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=62< <@ C? ?@B@ 2? ;? :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=62= =; C= >:B: A: 2: :B:: :B: :

2:;<6:=6A: ?@ @: @>B@ ;< < :B:; :B: :

/0$+"1$@;,) A7BC 5ABC DEBC D5F G7F EBFA 6B6 6B6

Page 291 of 504



!"#$%#&'()

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!"#$%$*&*+,-.%"$#/0/1/%2%
$"3%45

5)67)8*)9%:)&;8.%<=><%?%
2@@@

A,-*B /CD%A&E%
#)FG

/CD%A+-%
#)FG

/CD%
A)&-%
#)FG

/CD%
H;)I+G

J@K%
IB&-I)%

G;)I+G%()88%
*B&-

J@K%
IB&-I)%
G;)I+G%

F,;)%*B&-

/CD%-7F');%
9&:8%G;)I+G%

@L<@%,;%F,;)

/CD%
$-,MN&((

O&- PQL= JPLP P@L2 RL@P QL2S =LSS <P @LR

T)' P=L= JSL@ PJL@ SL=Q PL=J RL2P <J @L=

A&; QQL2 J>L= PSLQ SL22 PL>= >L22 <P @L<

/G; S@LP P@LQ Q@LP QL<< PL@R QLRS <2 @L@

A&: SSLQ PQL< QQLR PL@J 2LRR PL>> <@ @L@

O7- ><L= P=LP S@L> 2LSR <LSP JL2P S @L@

O7( >RLP QJL@ SQL> <L@> @LQ> <L2= J @L@

/7D >RLS Q2L= SQL> <L2R @LP< <LQ2 J @L@

$)G >JL2 P=L2 S<L2 2LPS <L<R 2L=S Q @L@

4I* S<LJ PJLQ Q2LP PL>> 2LSS QLR< = @L@

U,C Q<L@ JRLR PPL= RLPQ SL@> =L=R <Q @LJ

1)I PQLS JPLQ P@L@ RLP> SL<< <@L@@ <Q @LS

/--7&(. QJL>@ SPL@J

/C);&D) S<LQ P2L= Q2L2 ? ? ? ? ?

#,*&( ? ? ? Q=LQQ <2@ 2LS

V

W54!XUW%$"/$4U%1/#"$

Y)&;8%M+*B%F+88+-D%9&*&. 2P%9)D%Z%
P

2R%9)D%Z%
2

J2%9)D%Z%
<

Y)&;8%M+*B%-,%,II7;;)-I). 2P%9)D%Z%
S

2R%9)D%Z%
@

J2%9)D%Z%
@

1&*&%:)&;8%78)9. 2P%9)D%Z%
2S

2R%9)D%Z%
2R

J2%9)D%Z%
2=

H;,'&'+(+*: 2P%T%,;%
B+DB);

2R%T%,;%
B+DB);

J2%T%,;%
B+DB);

Q@%G);I)-*%[ <\2Q%*,%
<\S.%JPS%

9&:8

2\<R%*,%
<2\P.%2R=%

9&:8

P\P%*,%
<<\<J.%

22J%9&:8

>@%G);I)-*%[ <\=%*,%<\
2J.%J>=%

9&:8

2\=%*,%
<2\<P.%

J@R%9&:8

J\2S%*,%
<<\22.%

2P<%9&:8

[%H);I)-*%IB&-I)%,N%*B)%
D;,M+-D%8)&8,-%,II7;;+-D%
')*M))-%*B)%])D+--+-D%&-9%

"-9+-D%9&*)8L

V

$#/#$%#/]^"%?%*,*&(%
G;)I+G+*&*+,-%_+-IB)8`

Y; O&- T)' A&; /G; A&: O7- O7( /7D $)G 4I* U,C 1)I /--(

<=@= <2LRS RLQP JLP@ 2LPP JLJR @L22 2LQJ <L@J 2L
2P

PL<S <=L
>2

QL@= SQL
S<

<=<@ =L<2 <@L>Q PLJ> JL>> 2L>S <LS< # @L2S <L
<R

PLQS <@L
<Q

QLRR QPL
P<

<=<< <<L@J PLQQ 2L@J JL@@ QL2> 2LP@ @LJP @L2P SL
Q@

<LQ> QL<Q >L@< P=L
@=

<=<2 =LRS SL=Q 2LJR PL<R PLS@ PLR= @LSP JL2Q 2L
<<

PL>S SL=> RLPP Q=L
@J

<=<J >LQ2 <L=2 =L2< PL<< JL<@ PL=@ @L>P @LRJ JL
SJ

SLJQ SLR< JL2< Q2L
JJ

<=<P <@L>< SL<P PL>> PL>= 2LPS 2L>Q @L<@ @L@2 PL
R=

SL<R QL@2 2LJ2 Q@L
<Q

<=<Q SLP@ PL@2 JL2J JLR2 SL>@ JL@2 <LRS @L@< @L
>R

PLJJ <2L
2P

<<L
@>

Q>L
PR

<=<S JLQR =LSS <JL2@ PLRR PLQ< 2LR> JLQS @L>J <L
S<

2LQ< RLR= QL@P S<L
@P

Page 292 of 504



 

 Bailey Meadows Subdivision– Sandy, Clackamas County (AKS Job #7107) June 2019 

Flood & Slope Hazard Analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C: Wetland Determination  

Data Form 

 

  

Page 293 of 504



Agrostis capillaris

Page 294 of 504



Page 295 of 504



 

 Bailey Meadows Subdivision– Sandy, Clackamas County (AKS Job #7107) June 2019 

Flood & Slope Hazard Analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix D: Representative Site Photographs 

Page 296 of 504



                                                                                                            Bailey Meadows Subdivision, Sandy, OR 

Representa�ve Photos | AKS Job #7107 

Photos taken by Sonya Templeton December 4, 2019 

Photo C.  View facing east of project site upslope of Plot 1. Photo D.  View facing west of Plot 1 (loca�on of shovel).  

Photo A.  View facing east from Plot 1.  Photo B.  View facing west towards Bull Frog Reservoir.   

Page 297 of 504



Page 298 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT I



Page 299 of 504



Page 300 of 504



Page 301 of 504



Page 302 of 504



Page 303 of 504



Page 304 of 504



Page 305 of 504



Page 306 of 504



Page 307 of 504



Page 308 of 504



Page 309 of 504



Page 310 of 504



Page 311 of 504



Page 312 of 504



Page 313 of 504



Page 314 of 504



Page 315 of 504



Page 316 of 504



Page 317 of 504



Page 318 of 504



Page 319 of 504



Page 320 of 504



Page 321 of 504



Page 322 of 504



Page 323 of 504



Page 324 of 504



Page 325 of 504



Page 326 of 504



Page 327 of 504



Page 328 of 504



Page 329 of 504



Page 330 of 504



Page 331 of 504



Page 332 of 504



Page 333 of 504



Page 334 of 504



Page 335 of 504



Page 336 of 504



Page 337 of 504



Page 338 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT J



Page 339 of 504



Page 340 of 504



Page 341 of 504



24E14C 03800 

Jack Richard Gilbert 

Po Box 637 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E23  00200 

Leslie Geren 

37721 SE Ponder Ln 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E23  00201 

Paul Roger Klahn 

Po Box 671 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E23  00202 

Melvin Leroy Fiscus 

37777 SE Ponder Ln 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E23  00502 

Broek Boaz 

244 Plant Ln 

Salem, OR 97301 

 

 
24E23  00700 

Calvin & Teresa McKinnis II 

37551 SE Highway 211 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E23  00800 

Myrtle Sturm 

647 E Historic Col River Hwy 

Troutdale, OR 97060 

 

 
24E23  00801 

Grant Sturm 

647 E Historic Col River Hwy 

Troutdale, OR 97060 

 

 
24E23  00802 

Myrtle Sturm 

647 E Historic Col River Hwy 

Troutdale, OR 97060 

 

24E23  00803 

Grant Sturm 

647 E Historic Col River Hwy 

Troutdale, OR 97060 

 

 
24E23  00804 

Grant Sturm 

647 E Historic Col River Hwy 

Troutdale, OR 97060 

 

 
24E23  00805 

Sherrene Eyck 

37020 Deming Rd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E23  00806 

Sherrene Eyck 

37020 Deming Rd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E23  00807 

Sherrene Eyck 

37020 Deming Rd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E23  00901 

Sherrene Eyck 

37020 Deming Rd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E23  01800 

Joanne Rohweder 

39285 Cascadia Village Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E23  00518 

Garrett & Meri Lang 

37730 SE Highway 211 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E23  00701 

Eyck Mark Ten 

36940 Deming Rd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC01500 

Lynn & Eric Boldt 

18181 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC01600 

William Schlaht Sr. 

18203 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC01700 

L Darlene McKinney 

18227 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC01800 

Carol Sue Dick 

18255 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC01900 

Matthew Dillingham 

18273 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC02000 

David & Steven Snyder 

18299 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC02100 

Clyde Volesky 

18317 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC02200 

Anthony & Regina Profitt 

18306 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC02300 

Jose Escareno Garcia 

18288 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC02400 

Alexander Keeth 

18260 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC02500 

Edith Newton 

18246 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC02600 

Esther Naomi Quick 

18214 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

Page 342 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT K



24E14DC02700 

David & Sharon Meeker 

18198 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC02800 

Clark John Moore 

18172 Grey Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC03500 

Jack Putnam 

37488 Solso Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC03600 

Robert Durst 

1873 Bullevard 

Philomath, OR 97370 

 

 
24E14DC03700 

Ronald & Sarah Bettey 

18195 Melissa Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC03800 

Andy & Sarah Hill 

18211 Melissa Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC03900 

Robert Maya 

18243 Melissa Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC04000 

Lucas & Rachel Eibensteiner 

18285 Melissa Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC04100 

Christina Ness 

18377 Melissa Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC04200 

Karen Higgins 

37487 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC04300 

James Brady 

41391 SE Clausen Rd 

Estacada, OR 97023 

 

 
24E14DC04400 

Oliver Paul Mullon 

18254 Myra Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC04500 

Edward Burgess 

18222 Myra Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC04600 

Terrance Leland Myers 

18205 Myra Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC04700 

Carl Jr & Rebecca Robinson 

18237 Myra Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC04800 

Rhonda & Brad Norton 

18269 Myra Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC04900 

Robert & Sandra Ludi 

18275 Myra Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC05000 

Marguerite Wadkins 

Po Box 1273 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC05100 

Evan & Alisha Gilges 

18331 Myra Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC05200 

Ileen Ellison 

6809 E Tudor Rd 

Anchorage, AK 99507 

 

 
24E14DC05300 

Robert & Lori Graham 

37322 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC05400 

Christopher & Ashley Parrish 

37356 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC05500 

Tracy Drog 

37374 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC05600 

Bradley Robison 

37412 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC05700 

Paul Kvamme 

37438 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC05800 

Ryan Tatlock 

37466 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC05900 

Marilyn Siewell 

37484 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC06000 

Colin Hatfield 

37490 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC06100 

Paul Savage 

37506 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC06200 

Corri Baldwin 

37524 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

Page 343 of 504



24E14DC06300 

Richard & Emily Sheldon 

37552 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC06400 

Mitchell John Gray 

37578 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC06500 

Jason & Erin Findlay 

37616 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC06600 

James Na Raymond 

Po Box 14407 

Saint Petersburg, FL 33733 

 

 
24E14DC06700 

Andrew Hart 

37647 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC06800 

Danielle Lee Tkacik 

37603 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC06900 

Bryan Weisz 

37565 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC07000 

Carol Cohen 

37537 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC07100 

Brian Crosswhite 

18298 Melissa Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC07200 

Timothy Sellin 

18256 Melissa Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC07300 

Troy Michael Kalhar 

13841 SE Bluff Rd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC07400 

Warren Nelson 

18206 Melissa Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC07500 

Todd Cooper 

18190 Melissa Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC07600 

William Rolfe 

37626 Solso Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC07700 

Lonnie McVey 

37640 Solso Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC07800 

Brendan & Merlinda Turner 

37668 Solso Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC07900 

Nathan & Norma House 

Po Box 815 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC08000 

Brian Wilder 

37637 Solso Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC08100 

Norvin & Annabelle Vernon 

37615 Solso Ct 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC08700 

Ralph Ortman 

37648 Dubarko Rd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC10200 

Michelle Bartle 

18186 Wewer Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC10300 

Stefan & Tamera Grabinski 

721 Main St 

Oregon City, OR 97045 

 

 
24E14DC10400 

George & Kathryn Culp 

47235 SE Coalman Rd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC10500 

Alissa Felix 

18248 Wewer Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC10600 

Rene Huurman 

18262 Wewer Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC10700 

Delores & Stephen Joslin 

18294 Wewer Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC10800 

Alexander Doja 

18302 Wewer Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC10900 

Cornelius & Christina Seulean 

37253 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC11000 

Barbara Henley 

18287 Wewer Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC11100 

Randy & Lynette Fridlund 

18253 Wewer Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

Page 344 of 504



24E14DC11200 

Andray & Marina Shcherban 

18235 Wewer Ave 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC11300 

Shannon Muse 

38085 SE Trubel Rd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC12900 

Christopher Flowers 

18208 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC13000 

Matthew & Kimberly Wallace 

18234 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC13100 

Daniel Ortega Alvarado 

18250 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC13200 

Jonathan & Angela Allinger 

18288 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC13300 

Paul & Jolette Owen 

Po Box 1676 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC13400 

Amanda Sievertsen 

Po Box 101 

Gresham, OR 97030 

 

 
24E14DC13500 

Travis Fegel 

37274 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC13600 

John & Jennifer Leckie 

Po Box 1024 

Welches, OR 97067 

 

 
24E14DC13700 

Roy Jack & Doris Rooney 

37214 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC13800 

Shawn Fleming 

37198 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DC13900 

James & Marie Debatty 

18347 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC14000 

Cheri Berglund 

12818 SE Winston Rd 

Damascus, OR 97089 

 

 
24E14DC14100 

Jerry Hopkins 

13056 SE Division St 

Portland, OR 97236 

 

24E14DC14200 

Steven & Michelle Snyder 

18299 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DC14300 

Gigi Duncan 

18275 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DD01200 

City Of Sandy 

39250 Pioneer Blvd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DD08100 

Ernie Peterson 

37642 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DD08200 

Faith Egli 

Po Box 1761 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DD08300 

Ruslan & Galina Motyko 

37714 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DD08400 

Christian & Macey McDonald 

37720 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DD08500 

Patrick & Jennifer Robichaud 

37726 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DD08600 

Jack & Raelene Anderson 

37732 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DD08700 

Juan Diaz 

37810 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DD08800 

Patrick Owen 

Po Box 8583 

Portland, OR 97207 

 

 
24E14DD08900 

Anthony & Stephanie Galleran 

37822 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DD09000 

Dena Williams 

37828 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DD09100 

Shelley Bolfik 

37835 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DD09200 

Jesse Brown 

37839 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

Page 345 of 504



24E14DD09300 

Craig & Sarah Barnes 

37715 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DD09400 

Geoffrey & Kjersti Sanders 

37703 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 
24E14DD09500 

Kristofer J A & Skyler Oneill 

37651 Rachael Dr 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

24E14DD09600 

City Of Sandy 

39250 Pioneer Blvd 

Sandy, OR 97055 

 

    

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

Page 346 of 504



Page 347 of 504



��������	
��	�����������������������	������	�������������	���������	   	!�"��#�����	!�"�������	���������$��%	 ���	�	�&	'	

	

������������	
��������

�

��	�������������������
�

�

	


	 ��"��#�����	 ��	 ������	 &��	 �	 ����	 ��#�����	 �&	 &���	 (�)	 ��	 ���	 ���%��	 ��	 �	 %������	 ���$	 
	 ���	    	

��"��#�����	���%���	��	�����%�"�	�&	�������&�%����	����	%���������	*���	��	�+	��������	����	��	���	%�����	

,��+	�+	���������	�&	�+	-�����	������%�	���	.+����	�/$���$	
��	�&	�+	&����,���	��������	����	"	��"�����	

,��+	����	�����%�����$	
��	�����	�+����	"	���,�	��	��������	�%��	(�0	1	��2	��	�0	1	��2	��&���)$������	��	

��"�������	�����%�����	��������3	�	��4�����%�����	%��&��%	,��+	.���	���&&	��	������	��	���%���	���%����	

&��	�����#��3	�����%�"�	����	���	��%��	���������3	���	�+	�#����"�����	�&	��#�%�$	

	


$� ���������	
��	��

�$� 5���	��	
����%�����	����	

	

6$� �������������	
���	�&	�+	������#	����	&��	�+	��"��#�����	���	���7%�	�������#	��%�������	%�������%	

,��+	�����%�"�	%��	%������$	�+	������#	����	�+���	"	�	�������	�&	84�9�0	*	��0	��	��-	���	�+���	��%���	

�+	&����,���	��&���������	

�$� !%��	�&	���,���3	����+	����,3	���	���$		

�$� 5�%�����	�&	�+	��"��#�����	"�	�%����3	��,��+��	���	����3	���	�	����	��%�������	��&&�%���	��	�&��	

�+	��%�����	���	"��������	�&	�+	�������	���%�$		

'$� 
	#�%�����	���3	 �+�,���	 ��7�%��	 �������	 "��������	 ���	 +�,	 �������	 �����	���	 "	 *����	 ��	

%���%�	��	*������	�����$		

�$� :���3	�������3	���	���+��	���"��	�&	�+	�,��(�)	�&	�+	�������3	�+	�����	��	���#���3	���	

�+	���	�&	�+	���#�$		

;$� !�����	 ��%�����3	����3	��#�	,���+�3	�����3	���	���+�4�&4,��	(*������	���	�������)	��	���	,��+��	

���	&�	�&	�+	"��������	�&	�+	��"��#�����	���%�$		

<$� =�������	��%�����3	,���+�3	������	�&	���	������	(*������	���	�������)	��	��	��#���	�+	���%�$		

/$� ���������	 ��%�����	 �&	 �����	 �������3	 ��������	 �,��	 ���	,���	 ����	 (*������	 ���	 �������)	 ��	 ���	

�"������	 �+	 ���%�$	  &	��������	��	���	��	��	�"������	 �+	 ���%�3	 ����%��	 �+	���%����	���	������%	 ��	 �+	

�����	��%������$		

8$� ������	�#������	�+�,�	"�	%������	����	��	�,�4&���	#���%��	����#���	&��	������	�����	�&	���	�+��	��	

��%��	���	��	��4&���	#���%��	����#���	&��	������	�����	*%����	��	��%��$	������	�#�����	�+���	

"	�����	��	��	���"���+�	"�%+���>	��	��+�	�����	�����#�	"�	�+	���%���$		

?$� :������	&�����	��%+	��	����+�3	��%>	���%��������3	,���%�����	��	���	�"������	�+	�������3	��%�����	

�&	,����	����$	

��$�
����*����	��%�����	�&	����	��"7%�	 ��	������%	����������	��	�����	�,�	�#�&��,3	��%�����	�&	���	

&���������	��	&����	+�-���	������%�$	

��$�5�%�����3	,���+3	���	���%����	�&	&��,	�&	���	,���	%�����$	

��$� ����&�%�����	�&	�+	���	�&	"��>	���	"�������	�&	���������	��"�%>	&��	���	�����	��	,���	%����$	

�'$� ����&�%�����	�&	���	����%����	,�����	���	"�������	�&	���������	��"�%>$	

��$� ����&�%�����	�&	���	,�����	���	"�������	�&	���������	��"�%>$	

�;$�5�%�����	�&	��	����	��	��������	"�%+	���>	,��+��	�+	���%�	"��������$		

�<$�=*������	���	�&	�+	�������3	��%������	��%�����	���	�����	��	�&	���	*������	����%����	��	�����	��	

3 copies provided for initial submittal, information included as applicable

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

Page 348 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT L



��������	
��	�����������������������	������	�������������	���������	   	!�"��#�����	!�"�������	���������$��%	 ���	�	�&	'	

	

�+	�������	�&��	��������$		

�/$�5���	 ���	6��%>��	 �����*����	 ���������	 �&	 ���	 ����3	�������	 ���	 ��-�3	 ���	 �������	 ���	 ���	"��%>	

���"��$		

�8$�=*������	-�����	���	�������	����	��$		

�?$�����������	�&	����	������	��	"	���%���	��	���#�	&��	��"��%	��3	,��+	�+	������3	%���������3	��	

�����������	�&	��%+	���#������	%�����	����%���$		

��$��������	�#������	�+���3	�&	�����%�"�$		

��$�
��	��+�	��&��������	�������	�%�����	"�	�+	���%���	��	�+	��4�����%�����	%��&��%3	��%+	��	�	

����	�����	��	��+�	��������	�����3	���&&�%	��������3	&���������	��	,�����	���������3	�%$		

	

.$� �����	�����������
�	
�����	������,��+��	'��	&�	�&	�+	"��������	�&	�+	��"7%�	���	���	��������������	

&��	�������	�,���	,��+��	'��	&�	�&	�+	���3	*%������	���+��4�&4,��$�

	

�$� �������������	��	���	.+����	����������

	

=$� ��� �����!����" ���������

�$� @�%�����	A��	

�$� ����������	!��	����	

'$� ������#	����	

�$� =*������	������	����	

;$� �������	����	

<$� �������	����	

/$� ��	����	(��	.+����	�/$���)	

8$� ���������	���>���	
�������		

�

�$� ��#���" ������	����#���$���%����� �����

�� 
�"�����2�	�����	

�� �����3	!���	���	B�-���	
�������	(�!B)	

�� �!B	������	(B��������	���	!����3	:���#	@�������)	

�� .�������	!��	����	���	�!B	C#����	
�������	

�� ���&&�%	 ���%�	5���	��	�����	

�� ���%+��%��	�����	

�� �����	!���	����	�+�,���	%���%��#���	,��+��	���	&�	�&	�+	"��������	�&	�+	���	

�� C�+�	DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD	

	

�$� &����������	���"������'	�����	���

�$� �+	����	��#�����	���	���	���>	�����	�+��	��	���""�	��	�+	"��������	�&	�+	�������$	

�$� 
�	*������	����	��	�	�,	�������	����	,���	"	*����	"����	�+	"��������	�&	�+	����	��#�����	

��	%�����	�	����	�����	��	���#��	�%%��	��	��7�%��	�������$	

'$� �+	�������	 ����	 ������	 ��	 ��%��������	,��+	 �	 ����	 ������	 ������	 ��	 ����	 �&	 �+	.����+���#	

����	��	�&&�%�����	������	.���	����	����$	

	

labels within 500 feet included per SDC 17.22.20.B

Page 349 of 504



��������	
��	�����������������������	������	�������������	���������	   	!�"��#�����	!�"�������	���������$��%	 ���	'	�&	'	

	

	

B$� (

�	)���'�������*	�+	���%���	�+���	�#�,	�+	������#	����	&��	�	�����	���������3	��"��#�����	��	�����	

�����	"���	��	�+	&����,���	�����#��	%�������	

�$� �+	 �������	 ���������	 ��	 %��������	,��+	 �+	 ������3	 ��"�%>	 ���	 ����������	 ���������	 �&	 �+	 "��4

-�����	������%�$		

�$� �+	�������	���������	��	%��������	,��+	�����%�"�	�����	���������$	

'$� �+	�������	����	������	��	%���%��	���	%��������	,��+	�+	��������������	!����	����$	

�$� 
�����	��"��%	&�%������	��	�#����"�	��	%��	"	���#���	��	��#	�+	�������	���������$	

;$� 
��	�������	�����#����	��	.���	���������$	

<$� �+	����	����#�	�+	��������	&��	&����	���#�����	�&	�+	���%��	(�&	�����%�"�)$		

	

 $� �+	 �����%�����	����	 ����	 "	 ��	 %��&�����%	,��+	 ����	 �����	 ���������	 ��%����	 ��	 �+	.���	 �&	 !����	

��������������	!����	����	 ���	 ���������	 ���	 %������%����	 ��%�&�%������	 &��	��"��%	 �����#����	 ��	 ��	

&���+	��	������	��"��%	��%������	�����	���	�+	!����	A���%����	.��$	

	

Page 350 of 504



Page 351 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT M



Page 352 of 504



Page 353 of 504



Page 354 of 504



55555555

55555555

55555555

/ / / / /
/

/
/

/
/

////

/
/

/
/ / / / / / /

//

/

///

///
/

/ /

/ / / / /

/ / /

/
/

/ / /

///

/

/

//

/
/

/

/

////

/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

////////

/
/

/

/

/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/ / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /

/ / / /

/ / / / /

/
/

/

/ / / / / / / / / / / /

/
/

/

/

/
/

/

/ / /
/ // / /

/
/

/
/

/

/ / /

/
/

/
/

/

///

/

/

/

// /

/
/ /

/
/

/

/

/

/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/ /

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

ò
òòòòòò

!

!
!!

!

!
!

ò
ò

ò

ò

!

!

!

!

ò

ò
ò

ò
ò

ò

ò

ò

ò

ò

ò

ò

ò

ò

ò

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

H

46-17

46-17

46-04

3
1

5
.0

8
'

6
6

0
'

23

3
0

'

518.57'

W
OODBURN   

   S
ANDY   H

W
Y

444.39'

3
4
8

.5
0

'

351.29'

3
3

0
.0

0
'

427.90'

50.04'

2
8

1
.6

4
'

PARCEL 1

969.66'

1
7

9
.5

6
'

25'

4
6

2
.6

0
'

4
3

6
.6

7
'

2
7
0

.8
6

'

150.29'

620.63'

5

89.00'

3
3

0
.0

0
'

2
5

0
'

60'

3
0

2
.0

0
'

165'

S
E

E
  

M
A

P
  

2
  

4
E

  
 2

4

636.77'

533.62'

378.01'

7

3
6

2
N

D
  

  
D

R
IV

E

518.57'

P.S
. 6

422

14.47'

S88°33'05"W    873.25'

6
3

6
.1

4
'

2
2

7
.5

9
'

2645'

N
0
º 

1
8

' 4
0
"W

  
  

  
  

 1
3
1
0
.7

2
'

5
0

'

TRACTS

10

330.00'

416.92'

5
0

0
.0

0
'

4
9
0

'

4
4

0
.0

0
'

35'

512.98'

2
7
2

. 2
8

'

1
3

1
8

.9
8
'

38.29'

270.36'

N89º 36' 12"E      463.58'

O
L
D

 E
N

B
U

R
G

 L
N

. 
(P

V
T

)

S
0

0
º 

1
2

' 
5
0

"E
  

  
6
3
3
.7

9
'

SEE  MAP  2  4E   14C

241.23'

6
6

0
'

4
0

0
.0

0
'

1
1
8

.1
3
'

63
0.

59
'

26

1
3

1
2

.6
5
'3
1

0
.0

0
'

115'

210.83'

86.12'

14

635.75'

3
3

0
.0

0
'

7
327.16'

L=690.37'

874.9
0'

391.32'

3
2

4
.5

7
'

3
3

0
'

1
2

4
.4

6
'

328.64'

1/4 COR

165'

5
2

0
.0

0
'

6
3

8
.2

8
'

CO.  RD.  NO. 1792

661.05'

2
7

5
'

375'

S
0

0
°1

8
'4

0
"E

  
  
 1

6
2
7
.4

7
'

N
0
0

°1
8

'4
0
"E

    4
1
8
.1

6
'

ACRES

R=30'

1
,3

0
4

.9
1
'

6
3

2
.2

6
'

25

330.00'

444.36'

2
7

9
'

3
3

0
.0

0
'

ROAD

20'

N
 0

º 
0

6
' 
5

0
" 

W

1,321.91'

SEE  MAP  2  4E   14DC

23

10

12
6.

90
'

888.72'

30'

6
6

0
'

3
1

6
.1

2
'

8

8
6

.5
9
'

4
3

0
.3

5
'

4
9

4
.5

6
'

8

210.94'

3
0
1
.5

0
'

636.09'

S
0

º 
1

3
' 
1

5
"W

  
  
  

  
  

  
 6

1
2
.3

1
'

300.65'

330'

328.64'

635.12'
350'

S88º 58' 48"W

14692

4
9

9
.6

0
'

4
0

'

2018

25
0'

1
3

3
0

.7
'

661.05'

1
3

1
5

.5
1
'

1
3

0
'

652.19'

3
1

6
.5

6
' 
S

U
R

.

S88°33'05"W    416.92'

L=214.21'

660'

269.34'

24.88'

1
8

8
.1

8
'

330.00'

325.50'

27

174.64'

3
6

2
N

D
  

  
 D

R
IV

E

3
3

0
.0

0
'

2
9

1
.2

2
'

6
6

0
'

264.46'

5
0

4
.0

1
'

1,305.73'

223.39'

411.78'

101.54'

9

6
2

7
.2

4
'

1
6
1
.3

4
'

23

1
3

1
0

.9
6
'

15.83'

306.09'

5
6

4
.9

1
'

801.51'

1993      -    130

7
7

.1
8
'

3
3

0
.0

0
'

223.39'

2
0

8
.6

8
'

1
3

2
7

.0
7
'

5

198'

635.42'

3
8

7
.0

0
'

PARCEL 2

6
6

6
.5

2
'

P.S. 6161

4
4

0
'

6
3

6
.8

6
'

2
5

3
.9

0
'

11

500.00'

1
3

1
1
.2

1
' 
 S

U
R

.

N88°55'00"E    892.34'

165'

SEE   BPA   DWG   NO.     125089

- - - 2646.3' - - -

330.00'

5
0

'

2
8

0
.0

2
'

125'

340.00'

(J
. 

R
. 
  

D
U

N
C

A
N

 R
D

.)
  
 3

2
7

3
1

4
.0

8
'

634.90'

2
9

1
.2

2
'

S
 0

º 
2

4
' 
3
7

" 
E

1
,3

0
9

.9
0
'

60.00'

6
6

0
'

24

N
0
º 

1
1

' 
3
0

"E
  

  
  

  
  

 6
1
5
.7

9
'

14

1
3

2
.6

0
'

S
0

0
º 

1
3

' 
5
0
"W

4
2

4
.0

3
'

99.71'

1
,2

7
9

.7
9
'

578.86'

22

8
2

2
.6

5
' 
  
  

 N
 0

º 
1

2
' 
5
0
"W

3
7

8
.7

8
'

635.59'

3
9

3
.3

0
'

208.73'
6

BPA     EASEMENT

473.01'

6
8

8
.0

0
'

1
3

1
9

.6
'

PARCEL 3

165'

330.00'

3
2

7
.9

4
'

3
0

'

375'

N
0
0

°1
8

'4
0
"W

  
  
 6

3
2
.6

5
'

165'

1
,2

7
9

.7
9
'

A
R

L
E

T
H

A
  

  
  

C
O

U
R

T

3
3

0
.0

0
'

330.77'

PS  2
4090

22

1
,3

0
5

.7
8
'

1
3

4
.4

4
'

6
6

0
.0

0
'

264.82'

6
3

3
.9

2
'

3
6
7

T
H

  A
V

E

3
1

0
.4

4
'

5
0

'

3
3

0
.0

0
'

345.00'

1
7

0
.0

0
'

P. P. 1992

3
4

8
. 5

0
'

2
8

0
.8

9
'

PARCEL 1

620.63'

1
,0

1
8
.0

'

422.80'

310.00'

324.21'

6
6

0
'

212.63'

434.51'

4

9

N88º 06' 40"E

L=405.
11

'

4
9

6
.2

6
'

SEE   MAP

PONDER LN

6
3

4
.8

7
'

5
3

9
.8

8
'

1

0 4.7 2 '

S
0

0
º 

1
4

' 
1
9
"E

2
1

2
.1

4
'

330'

-3
0

165'

780.65'

79
.5

3'

SEE  MAP  2  4E   23

467.01'

15.5
9'

631.42'

L=52.59'

5
1

2
.5

0
'

3

518.57'

N
51º 08' 54"W

6
6

0
.0

0
'

2014

2
0

9
.0

8
'

659.60'

1
3

2
8

.2
'

5
0

0
.0

0
'

330.00'

1
8

7
'

1
3

4
.4

3
'

2
6

5
.7

0
'

279.57'

1,300.47'

160'

26

634.81'

1

S89º 10' 23"W         463.31'

358.20'

N89º 21' 00"E

- 140

1
1
8

.4
2
'

PARCEL 2

6
2

9
.8

2
'

412.31'

24

660'

3
1

0
.0

0
'

3
3

0
.0

0
'

7
9

.2
3
'

24E  23AD

8
1

2
.0

6
'

498.24'

D.V.   673-134

S
E

E
  

M
A

P
  

2
  

4
E

  
 2

2

S72º 57' 56"W

2

567.64'

SE  M
ARTIN

  R
D

(P
VT)

PARCEL 1

3
8

8
.2

0
'

15

264.46'

55
8.

61
'

4
6
.6

3
'

P. P.

46
9.

57
'

165'

P.
 S

. 6
03

7

330.00'

6
2

.1
5
'

671.95'

6
3

7
.5

7
'

4

165'

N
0
0

°1
5

'5
2
"W

  
  
1
0
1
4
.3

1
'

2
0

9
.0

8
'

N68º 30'E     
     

     
 993.30'

SANDY

634.24'

416.92'

656.91'

DEMMING
327.84'

S
E

IB
E

R
  

 L
A

N
E

444.36'

5
1

4
.7

3
'

20.00'

427.90'

2
7

7
'

125'

PARCEL 2

15
0.0

0
'

SEE  MAP  2  4E   14DD

3
1

4
.6

5
'

1
4
7

.5
7

'

9
2

4
'

11

269'

211.64'

13

30'

N
0
º 

1
8

' 1
0
"W

  
  

  
 1

,2
8
0
.9

6
'

426.21'

3

2
2

8
.3

9
'3
9

3
.8

0
'

23

300.65'

608.67'

3
3

0
.0

0
'

165'

S
0

º 
1

8
' 
4

0
"E

5
2

8
.0

0
'

GUNDERSON  RD

6

P.P
.

1
7

0
.9

7
'

MILLS

2
6

1
.4

0
'

165'

3
0

6
.7

5
'

2
1

'

2
5

0
'

330.00'

2
2

0
.0

0
'

540.4'

6
5

2
.6

5
'

3.32 Ac.

39.10 Ac.

37.77 Ac.

5.00 Ac.

2.00 Ac.

4.77 Ac.
4.97 Ac.

5.15 Ac.

2.00 Ac.

19.60 Ac.

9.00 Ac.

2.00 Ac.

4.02 Ac.

9.18 Ac.

2.00 Ac.

4.81 Ac.

0.25 Ac.

3.55 Ac.

5.23 Ac.

1.00 Ac.

14.30 Ac.

5.21 Ac.

2.80 Ac.

2.00 Ac.

2.41 Ac.

7.16 Ac.

4.87 Ac.

10.00 Ac.

6.26 Ac.

46.63 Ac.

15.27 Ac.

2.41 Ac.

10.00 Ac.

4.80 Ac.

2.28 Ac.

1.72 Ac.

6.37 Ac.

2.15 Ac.

9.88 Ac. 4.81 Ac.

1.66 Ac.

1.00 Ac.

5.00 Ac.

2.14 Ac.

2.28 Ac.

7.47 Ac.

1.60 Ac.

17.01 Ac.

4.80 Ac.

2.40 Ac.

9.91 Ac.

4.79 Ac.

1.00 Ac.

58.64 Ac.

1.40 Ac.

7.05 Ac.

0.12 Ac.

4.96 Ac.

6.58 Ac.

1801

2502

1001
805

2817

2200

1600

515

1402

2800

513

2507

802

600

2809

1100

2812

1800

507

2506

807

2820

2818

701 502

1403

200

506

2504

804

2803

2814

2400

1901

1804

900

1200

1700

512

1500

508

2802

504

803
300

2805

1002

2808
2300

2700

1301

511

518

505

800

2804

201

2811

1401

2500

1405

2100

516

1300

801

2813

509

100

2807

2000

2505

2810

1003

500

1404

1803

2501

510

1805

400

2806

1202

901

1900

2816

2600

700

1400

501

514

2503

806

2815

202

3
8

2
0

0

19500

3
7

2
0

0

3
6

2
0

0

18500

20500

20150

37775

19930

37161

36892

37873

20220

37777

36577

38121

19550

19425

36722

20030

19351

37445

36570

36377

20250

37310

36969

37550

19335

36300

37240

36736

37075

20003

36930

19665

36501

19321

36595

19464

37765

20020

36663

37020

20001

18560

37100

20400

38151

19555

19300

36520

38085

20200 20055

38001

37001

36929

19343

19404

36785

19925

38181

20185

18838

37760

20424

19845

36373

19680

20060

37553

37721

19251

36951

37373

36940

20303

18520

19838

19595

36292

20100

19225

37001

36210

20150

37720

20170

37730

36936

37551

EFU

RRFF5

RRFF5

R2 R3

R1

SFR

EFUHL

R3

R2

R2

RRFF5

R3

SFR

R3C3

RRFF5

SECTION 23 T.2S. R.4E. W.M.

CLACKAMAS COUNTY

1" = 400'

2 4 E 23

2 4 E 23

THIS MAP IS FOR ASSESSMENT
PURPOSES ONLY

"
5/17/2018

 

 

Sandy

Canby
Barlow

Molalla

Tualatin

Estacada

Damascus

West Linn

Milwaukie

Rivergrove

Wilsonville

Oregon City

Lake Oswego Happy Valley

Cancelled Taxlots

2801
1000

2819
2300A1
1201

2701
503E1
503

1902
1802
517

  

Parcel Boundary

Railroad Centerline

Private Road ROW

Historical Boundary

Plats

5555555

5555555

Water

DLC Line

Govt Lot Line

Meander Line

PLSS Section Line

Section Corner

Land Use Zoning

WaterLines

H Corner

1/16th Line

Historic Corridor 20'ò!

Historic Corridor 40'ò!

TaxCodeLines

Map Index

Page 355 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT N



From: Gonzales, Renee

To: Marie Holladay; Surveyor

Subject: RE: Plat name reservation

Date: Wednesday, June 5, 2019 10:18:23 AM

EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of AKS Engineering & Forestry. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Marie,

Your request to reserve the plat name of “Bailey Meadows” is approved.

Thank you.

Renee Gonzales
Administrative Specialist
Clackamas County Surveyor’s Office
Phone: (503) 742-4475
Direct: (503) 742-4478

From: Marie Holladay [mailto:holladaym@aks-eng.com] 

Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2019 8:11 AM

To: Surveyor <Surveyor@co.clackamas.or.us>

Subject: Plat name reservation

 

Good Morning,

 

We’ve had a slight change in plat name which was reserved on 5/30. The subdivision should be

called Bailey Meadows with an “s.”

 

Thank you,

 

Marie Holladay

AKS ENGINEERING & FORESTRY, LLC

12965 SW Herman Road, Suite 100 | Tualatin, OR 97062

P: 503.563.6151 Ext. 270 | www.aks-eng.com | holladaym@aks-eng.com  

Offices in:  Bend, OR | Keizer, OR | Tualatin, OR | Vancouver, WA

NOTICE:  This communication may contain privileged or other confidential information. If you have received it in error,
please advise the sender by reply e-mail and immediately delete the message and any attachments without copying or
disclosing the contents. AKS Engineering and Forestry shall not be liable for any changes made to the electronic data
transferred. Distribution of electronic data to others is prohibited without the express written consent of AKS Engineering and
Forestry.

 

NOTE: This message was trained as non-spam. If this is wrong, please correct the

training as soon as possible. 

Page 356 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT O



      Form # SU-0028-1 
  Rev. 1/11/18 

REQUEST TO RESERVE SUBDIVISION / CONDOMINIUM NAME 

 
Clackamas County Surveyor's Office 

150 Beavercreek Road, #325 
Oregon City, OR 97045 

(503) 742-4475  
E-mail address: surveyor@clackamas.us 

 

 

PLAT NAME REQUESTED: 

       

    

        

   Location of Plat: 

TWP/RANGE: 

      

SECTION#: 

      

 TAX LOT#(s): 

      

  

I understand that if the above name plat is not pending or recorded within two years, the name will be removed from
the reserved list.

RESERVED BY:

DATE:  

 

TELEPHONE: 

  (   )      -     

FAX: 

  (   )      -     

EMAIL ADDRESS:      

PLAT SURVEYOR: # 

      

NAME OF DEVELOPER: 

      

ADDRESS:  

      

TELEPHONE: 

  (   )      -     

 FAX: 

  (   )      -     

EMAIL ADDRESS:      

  

APPROVED BY: APPROVAL DATE: 

 

Bailey Meadows

T: 2S, R:4E 23 800, 801, 802, 803, & 804

AKS Engineering & Forestry, LLC

holladaym@aks-eng.com

05/28/2019 503 563   6151 503 563   6152

holladaym@aks-eng.com

Rob Rettig

Allied Homes & Development

12965 SW Herman Rd., Suite 100 Tualatin, OR 97062

503 563   6151 503 563   6152

Page 357 of 504



Page 358 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT P



Page 359 of 504



Page 360 of 504



Page 361 of 504



Page 362 of 504



Page 363 of 504



Page 364 of 504



Page 365 of 504



Page 366 of 504



Page 367 of 504



Page 368 of 504



Page 369 of 504



Page 370 of 504



Page 371 of 504



Page 372 of 504



Page 373 of 504



Page 374 of 504



Page 375 of 504



Page 376 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT Q



 
 

Pacwest Center  |  1211 SW 5th  |  Suite 1900  |  Portland, OR  |  97204  |  M 503.222.9981  |  F 503.796.2900  |  schwabe.com 

 

 

 

Michael C. Robinson 
 

Admitted in Oregon 
T: 503-796-3756 
C: 503-407-2578 
mrobinson@schwabe.com 

November 21, 2019 

 

 

Ms. Kelly O’Neill, Director 
City of Sandy Planning & Building Department  
Sandy City Hall 
39250 Pioneer Boulevard 
Sandy, OR 97055 

 

 

RE: City of Sandy File No. 19-23 SUB/VAR; Application by Allied Homes & 
Development for Approval of the 100-Lot Bailey Meadows Preliminary Plat 
Subdivision Application; Revised Application Narrative and Exhibits for 
December 17, 2019 Planning Commission Hearing 

Dear Ms. O'Neill: 

This office represents the Applicant. Attached to this letter is the Applicant’s revised Application 
narrative and exhibits demonstrating compliance with applicable approval criteria. Please place 
this letter and its enclosures in the official Planning Department file for this Application and 
before the City of Sandy Planning Commission at its initial evidentiary hearing on December 17, 
2019. 

Very truly yours, 

 
Michael C. Robinson 

MCR:jmhi 
Enclosures 

cc: Mr. Cody Bjugan (via email) (w/enclosures) 
Mr. Monty Hurley (via email) (w/enclosures) 
Mr. Chris Goodell (via email) (w/enclosures) 
Mr. Todd Mobley (via email) (w/enclosures) 

 Ms. Emily Meharg (via email) (w/enclosures) 
 Mr. David Doughman (via email) (w/enclosures) 
 
PDX\133569\245146\MCR\26637016.1 
 

 

Page 377 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT R



61

62

63

64

60

50

51

52

53

54 45

46

47

48

49

68

66

67

69 70 71

72

73

74

7565

36

37

38

39

35

42

43

40

41

44

34

79

78

77

76

33

83

82

81

80

32

56

55

58

57

59

86

87

85

PHASE 1

PHASE 3
PHASE 2

93

94

3

97

89

88

90

84 91

24 23

98

1

96

95

2

100

99

20

4

5
21

19

92

1722

18

15

9

7

8

6

10
13

1614

TRACT A

253031

2629

2728

1112

TRACT B

S
T

R
E

E
T

 D
S

T
R

E
E

T
 D

AVENUE 2

AVENUE 2

S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

MELISSA AVENUE

S
T

R
E

E
T

 B
S

T
R

E
E

T
 B

S
T

R
E

E
T

 C

S
E

 P
O

N
D

E
R

 L
A

N
E

S
E

 P
O

N
D

E
R

 L
A

N
E

SE PONDER LANE
SE PONDER LANE

AVENUE 1

R
A

C
H

A
E

L
 D

R
IV

E

EASEMENT LEGEND

FO
R

ES
TR

Y
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

N
A

TU
R

A
L 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
E

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

B
A

IL
E

Y
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

S
A

N
D

Y
, O

R
E

G
O

N

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 P

L
A

T
W

IT
H

 F
U

T
U

R
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K
S

P1-04

SETBACK LEGEND

Page 378 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT S



SE PONDER LANE

M
E

L
IS

S
A

 A
V

E
N

U
E

RACHAEL DRIVE

HIG
HWAY 211

SE PONDER LANE

S
E

 A
R

L
E

T
H

A
 C

O
U

R
T

G
R

E
Y

 A
V

E
N

U
E

W
E

W
E

R
 A

V
E

N
U

E

S
E

 3
70

T
H

 A
V

E
N

U
E

400'

40
0'

400'

DUBARKO ROAD

BLUFF R
OAD

50'

GUNDERSON ROAD (FUTURE)

LEGEND

FO
R

ES
TR

Y
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

N
A

TU
R

A
L 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
E

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

B
A

IL
E

Y
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

S
A

N
D

Y
, O

R
E

G
O

N

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

P1-15

NOTES

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 F
U

T
U

R
E

S
T

R
E

E
T

 P
L

A
N

Page 379 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT T



 
 
 
 
 

12965 SW Herman Road, Suite 100 
Tualatin, OR 97062 

(503) 563-6151 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Bailey Meadows Subdivision 

 
  

 
Date:  July 2019 

Updated November 2019 
 

 
Submitted to:  City of Sandy 

39250 Pioneer Boulevard 
Sandy, OR 97055 

 
Applicant:  Allied Homes & Development 

12042 SE Sunnyside Road, Suite 706 
Clackamas, OR 97015 

  

Page 380 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT U



 

 
 

Table of Contents 
I. Executive Summary ....................................................................................................................3 

II. Site Description and Setting ........................................................................................................3 

Surrounding Land Uses 4 

III. Applicable Review Criteria ..........................................................................................................4 

CITY OF SANDY MUNICIPAL CODE 4 

Title 17 – DEVELOPMENT CODE ...................................................................................................................... 4 
CHAPTER 17.18 - PROCESSING APPLICATIONS.............................................................................................. 4 
CHAPTER 17.30 -  ZONING DISTRICTS ........................................................................................................... 6 
CHAPTER 17.34 -  SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (SFR) .................................................................................. 8 
CHAPTER 17.60 -  FLOOD & SLOPE HAZARD (FSH) OVERLAY DISTRICT ......................................................... 9 
CHAPTER 17.84 -  IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED WITH DEVELOPMENT ....................................................... 12 
CHAPTER 17.86 -  PARKLAND & OPEN SPACE ............................................................................................. 25 
CHAPTER 17.90 -  DESIGN STANDARDS ....................................................................................................... 28 
CHAPTER 17.92 -  LANDSCAPING & SCREENING GENERAL STANDARDS - ALL ZONES ................................ 28 
CHAPTER 17.100 - LAND DIVISION .............................................................................................................. 31 
CHAPTER 17.102 -  URBAN FORESTRY......................................................................................................... 45 

IV. Conclusion ................................................................................................................................ 46 

 

Exhibits 
 
Exhibit A: Preliminary Plans 
Exhibit B: City of Sandy Land Use Application Forms and Checklists 
Exhibit C: Property Ownership Information 
Exhibit D: Clackamas County Assessor’s Map 
Exhibit E: Public Notification 
Exhibit F: Traffic Impact Analysis 
Exhibit G: Preliminary Stormwater Report 
Exhibit H: Flood & Slope Hazard (FSH) Analysis 
Exhibit I: Documentation of Plat Name Reservation 
Exhibit J: Geotechnical Engineering Report 
  
Also Included with This Application 
 
Cover Letter from Applicant’s Legal Counsel (November 2019) 

Cover Letter from Applicant’s Legal Counsel (July 2019) 

 

 

Page 381 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 1 

Bailey Meadows Subdivision 
 

 Submitted to: City of Sandy 
Planning Department 
39250 Pioneer Boulevard 
Sandy, OR 97055 

 
Applicant: Allied Homes and Development 
 12402 SE Sunnyside Road, Suite 706 
 Clackamas, OR 97015 
 

 Property Owner: Myrtle J. Sturm and Grant E. Sturm, 
  Trustees of the Sturm Family Trust 
  647 E Historic Columbia River Highway 
  Troutdale, OR 97060 
  

Applicant’s Consultant: AKS Engineering & Forestry, LLC 
12965 SW Herman Road, Suite 100    
Tualatin, OR 97062 
Contact(s):  Chris Goodell, AICP, LEEDAP 
Email:  chrisg@aks-eng.com  
Phone:  (503) 563-6151  

  
Applicant’s Legal Counsel:  Schwabe, Williamson & Wyatt 
 Pacwest Center 1211 SW 5th Avenue, Suite 190 
 Portland, OR 97204 
 Contact(s):  Michael Robinson 
 Email:  mrobinson@schwabe.com  
 Phone:  (503) 796-3756 
 
Applicant’s Transportation  Lancaster Engineering 
Engineer:  321 SW 4th Avenue, Suite 400 
 Portland, OR 97204 
 Contact(s):  Todd Mobley 
 Email:  todd@lancasterengineering.com 
 Phone:  (503) 248-0313 

 
Applicant’s Geotechnical  GeoPacific Engineering, Inc. 
Engineer:  14835 SW 72nd Avenue 
 Tigard, OR 97224 
 Contact(s):  Jim Imbrie 
 Email:  jimbrie@geopacificeng.com  
 Phone:  (503) 598-8445 

 
Clackamas County  24E 23 Tax Lots 800, 801, 802, 803, and 804 
Assessor’s Map: 

   
 

Page 382 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 2 

Site Size: One subdivision affecting five lots at ±23.42 total acres: 
 ±2.40 acres (Lot 800) 
 ±4.74 acres (Lot 801) 
 ±4.74 acres (Lot 802) 
 ±9.17 acres (Lot 803) 
 ±2.37 acres (Lot 804) 

 
Land Use District: Single-Family Residential (SFR)  

Page 383 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 3 

I. Executive Summary  
To address the City of Sandy’s identified need for urban land for housing under statewide planning goal 
10, “housing,” the City of Sandy (City) in 2017 expanded its Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) south to 
include the subject site. In June 2017, the property was annexed to the City of Sandy. The UGB expansion 
is final and acknowledged by the state. 
 
This application for the Bailey Meadows Subdivision (the “Subdivision”) is part of the planned progression 
of land use planning for the area and involves the creation of “Needed Housing” under ORS 197-303(1) 
and 197.307(4) on residential land properly zoned for the proposed use within the incorporated limits of 
the City of Sandy. The Applicant is submitting this application to the City of Sandy for a Single-Family 
Residential Subdivision on the ±23.42-acre site, designated with Single Family Residential (SFR) zoning. 
Planned project site features include: 
 

• 100 lots for single-family detached housing 
• Interconnected system of sidewalks and local public streets 
• On-street parking 
• Three planned phases with concurrent infrastructure improvements 
• Full range of underground utilities including sanitary sewer, water, and franchise utilities 
• Fee-in-lieu payment for parkland dedication 
• Fee-in-lieu payment for improvements to SE Ponder Lane 

 
This application package includes the City of Sandy application forms, written materials, and Preliminary 
Plans necessary for City staff to review and determine compliance with the applicable approval criteria. 
The evidence is substantial and supports the City’s approval of this Subdivision.  
 
This application is a “Needed Housing” application under ORS 197.303(1)(a) as it provides housing within 
an acknowledged urban growth boundary. ORS 197.307(4) states that a local government may apply only 
clear and objective standards, conditions, and procedures regulating the creation of Needed Housing, and 
such standards, conditions, and procedures cannot have the effect, either in themselves or cumulatively, 
of discouraging Needed Housing through unreasonable cost or delay.  
 
Oregon Courts and the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) have held that an approval standard is not clear 
and objective if it imposes on an applicant “subjective, value-laden analyses that are designed to balance 
or mitigate impacts of the development.” Rogue Valley Association of Realtors v. City of Ashland, 35 Or 
LUBA 139, 158 (1998) aff’d, 158 Or App 1 (1999). ORS 197.831 places the burden on local governments to 
demonstrate that the standards and conditions placed on Needed Housing applications can be imposed 
only in a clear and object1ive manner. While this application addresses all standards and conditions, the 
Applicant reserves the right to object to the application of standards or conditions that are not clear and 
objective and does not waive its right to assert that the Needed Housing statutes apply to this application. 
The exceptions in ORS 197.307(4)(a) and 197.307(5) do not apply to this application. ORS 197.307(7)(a) is 
controlled by ORS 197.307(4). The City has not taken an exception for Needed Housing under 197.303(3). 
 
II. Site Description and Setting 
The subject property is approximately ±23.42 acres and is comprised of five separate tax lots generally 
located directly south of the Nicolas Glen No. 2 Subdivision. The site is designated “SFR” with no existing 
structures on the site. The site is primarily used for agricultural purposes with a few trees along the 
southern border of Tax Lots 800 and 803.  

Page 384 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 4 

Surrounding Land Uses 

North: The site abuts 14 residential lots within the southern portion of the Nicolas Glen No. 2 Subdivision. 
These properties have a general lot size of ±0.12 acres and are zoned Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
and are in the City. The planned access for Bailey Meadows Subdivision is via the existing right-of-way 
street stub terminus at Melissa Avenue, directly north of the project boundary.  
 
East: The property to the east is within both the City’s UGB and unincorporated Clackamas County and is 
zoned Rural Residential Farm Forest 5-Acre (RRFF-5). It is currently improved with a single-family dwelling 
which accesses off Ponder Lane. 
 
South/West: The properties south and west of the site are undeveloped and located outside of the City’s 
UGB and are zoned Exclusive Farm Use District (EFU) by Clackamas County.  
 
III. Applicable Review Criteria 
 

CITY OF SANDY MUNICIPAL CODE 

Title 17 – DEVELOPMENT CODE 

CHAPTER 17.18 - PROCESSING APPLICATIONS 

17.18.00  PROCEDURES FOR PROCESSING LAND USE APPLICATIONS  

An application shall be processed under a Type I, II, III or IV procedure. The 
differences between the procedures are generally associated with the different 
nature of the decisions as described in Chapter 17.12.  

When an application and proposed development is submitted, the Director 
shall determine the type of procedure the Code specifies for its processing and 
the potentially affected agencies.   

If a development proposal requires an applicant to file a land use application 
with the city (e.g. a design review application) and if there is a question as to 
the appropriate procedure to guide review of the application (e.g. a Type II 
versus a Type III design review process), the question will be resolved in favor 
of the lower type number.   

If a development proposal requires an applicant to file more than one land use 
application with the city (e.g. a design review application and a variance) and 
if the development code provides that the applications are to be reviewed 
under separate types of procedures (e.g. a Type II design review and a Type 
III variance):   

• the Director will generally elevate all of the required applications to the 
highest number procedure for review (e.g. the Type II design review 
application would be reviewed by the Planning Commission along with 
the Type III variance).    

In situations where an applicant has attended a pre-application conference 
and has reviewed the application with the Director prior to submitting the 
applications, the Director may exercise his/her discretion to review the Type 
II application(s) at the staff level and only schedule a public hearing for the 
Type III portion(s) of the development proposal.    

Response: The application requires a Type III Review Procedure, following conclusions of the 
November 20, 2018 pre-application conference (see response below). 

Page 385 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 5 

 
17.18.20  PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCE  

A pre-application conference is required for all Type II, III, and IV 
applications unless the Director determines a conference is not needed. A 
request for a pre-application conference shall be made on the form provided 
by the city and will be scheduled following submittal of required materials 
and payment of fees. The purpose of the conference is to acquaint the 
applicant with the substantive and procedural requirements of the Code, 
provide for an exchange of information regarding applicable elements of the 
Comprehensive Plan and development requirements, arrange such technical 
and design assistance which will aid the applicant, and to otherwise identify 
policies and regulations that create opportunities or pose significant 
constraints for the proposed development. The Director will provide the 
applicant with notes from the conference within 10 days of the conference. 
These notes may include confirmation of the procedures to be used to process 
the application, a list of materials to be submitted, and the applicable code 
sections and criteria that may apply to the application. Any opinion expressed 
by the Director or City staff during a pre-application conference regarding 
substantive provisions of the City’s code is advisory and is subject to change 
upon official review of the application.   

Response: A pre-application conference was held with the City of Sandy on November 20, 2018. An 
additional meeting with City staff was held on January 29, 2019. This requirement is met.  

17.18.30  LAND USE APPLICATION MATERIALS  

Unless otherwise specified in this code, an application shall consist of the 
materials specified in this section, plus any other materials required by this 
Code.  

A.  A completed application form and payment of fees.   

B.  List and mailing labels of Affected Property Owners.  

C.  An explanation of intent, stating the nature of the proposed 
development, reasons for the request, pertinent background 
information, information required by the Development Code and 
other material that may have a bearing in determining the action to 
be taken.  

D.  Proof that the property affected by the application is in the exclusive 
ownership of the applicant, that the applicant has the consent of all 
parties in ownership of the affected property, or the applicant is the 
contractual owner.  

E.  Legal description of the property affected by the application.  

F.  Written narrative addressing applicable code chapters and approval 
criteria.  

G.  Vicinity Map showing site in relation to local and collector streets, 
plus any other significant features in the nearby area.  

F.  Site plan of proposed development  

G.  Number of Copies to be Submitted:  

1.  One copy of items A through D listed above;  

(…) 

Page 386 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 6 

4.  Type III: 15 copies of site plan and other materials required 
by the Code  

The Director may vary the quantity of materials to be submitted as 
deemed necessary. 

Response:  The application submittal materials include the items listed above. The list and mailing 
labels are applicable to property owners within 500 feet of the subject properties. The 
remainder of the Code Section discusses the processing requirements to be completed 
by the City. For purposes of brevity, those Sections are not included in this narrative. This 
requirement is met.  

 
CHAPTER 17.20 -  PUBLIC HEARINGS 

17.20.40  APPLICANT’S RESPONSIBILITY 

(…) 

C.  Neighborhood Meetings. Applicants intending to develop a major 
project within the City are strongly urged to conduct their own 
informational meetings in the neighborhood affected prior to 
submitting their application to the City. 

Response:  On September 18, 2019, the Applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting at the Sandy 
Public Library. The above City recommendation has been satisfied.  

 
CHAPTER 17.30 -  ZONING DISTRICTS 

17.30.20  RESIDENTIAL DENSITY CALCULATION PROCEDURE  

The number of dwelling units permitted on a parcel of land is calculated after 
the determination of the net site area and the acreage of any restricted 
development areas (as defined by Chapter 17.60). Limited density transfers 
are permitted from restricted development areas to unrestricted areas 
consistent with the provisions of the Flood and Slope Hazard Area Overlay 
District, Chapter 17.60. 

Calculation of Net Site Area (NSA): Net site area should be calculated in acres 
based upon a survey of the property boundaries excluding areas dedicated for 
public use. 

A.  Minimum and Maximum Dwelling Units for Sites with No 
Restricted Areas. The allowable range of housing units on a piece of 
property is calculated by multiplying the net site area (NSA) in acres 
by the minimum and maximum number of dwelling units allowed in 
that zone.  

For example:  A site (NSA) containing 10 acres in the Single-Family 
Residential Zoning District requires a minimum of 30 units and 
allows a maximum of 58 units.  (NSA x 3 units/acre = 30 units 
minimum) (NSA x 5.8 units/acre = 58 units maximum)  

Response:  The subject site is zoned Single Family Residential (SFR). The planned subdivision includes 
a total of 100 units on a total net site area of ±18.21 acres resulting in a net residential 
density of ±5.49 units per acre. This planned density falls within the minimum number of 
dwelling units required of 3 and the maximum of 5.8 units per acre. The tables below 
provide the details of the density calculations. Note that the gross site area excludes 
existing SE Ponder Lane right-of-way. The criteria are met. 

Page 387 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 7 

 
 
 

 
 
 

B.  Minimum and Maximum Dwelling Units for Sites with Restricted 
Areas  

1.  Unrestricted Site Area: To calculate unrestricted site area 
(USA): subtract all restricted development areas (RDA) as 
defined by Section 17.60.20(A) from the net site area (NSA), 
if applicable.  

NSA - RDA = USA  

2.  Minimum Required Dwelling Units: The minimum number 
of dwelling units required for the site is calculated using the 
following formula:    

USA (in acres) x Minimum Density (Units per Acre) of 
Zoning District = Minimum Number of Dwelling Units 
Required.   

3.  Maximum Allowed Dwelling Units: The maximum number 
of dwelling units allowed on a site is the lesser of the results 
of these two formulas:  

a.  NSA (in acres) x Maximum Density of Zoning 
District (units/acre)  

b.  USA (in acres) x Maximum Density of Zoning 
District (units/acre) x 1.5 (maximum allowable 
density transfer based on Chapter 17.60)  

For example: suppose a site in a zone with a 
maximum density of eight (8) units per acre has 6 
acres of unrestricted site area (USA= 6) and two 
acres of restricted development area (RDA=2), for a 
total net site area of 8 acres (NSA= 8). Then NSA 
(8) x 8 units/acre = 64 and USA (6) x 8 units/acre x 
1.5 = 72, so the maximum permitted number of 
dwelling units is 64 (the lesser of the two results).   

Response:  The project site does not contain any restricted areas. See Exhibit H for Flood and Slope 
Hazard Analysis. The criteria do not apply. 

C.  Lot Sizes:  Lot sizes shall comply with any minimum lot size 
standards of the underlying zoning district.  

D.  Rounding:  A dwelling unit figure is rounded down to the nearest 
whole number for all total maximum or minimum figures less than 
four dwelling units. For dwelling unit figures greater than four 
dwellings units, a partial figure of one-half or greater is rounded up 
to the next whole number.  

For example:  A calculation of 3.7 units is rounded down to 3 units. 
A calculation of 4.2 units is rounded down to 4 units and a calculation 
of 4.5 units is rounded up to 5 units. 

Gross Area 
(AC) 

ROW 
(AC) 

NSA (AC)= 
GROSS-ROW 

23.42 5.21 18.21 

 Units 
Per Acre 

Density Total 
Density 

MIN 3 54.63 55 

MAX 5.8 105.62 106 

Page 388 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 8 

Response:  The application involves subdividing the subject site into 100 lots suitable for future 
single-family detached dwellings, all complying with the minimum lot size of 7,500 square 
feet. The subdivision also includes one tract for stormwater management infrastructure. 
Rounding as stated above is demonstrated in the density calculation. The criterion is met.  

CHAPTER 17.34 -  SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (SFR) 

17.34.10  PERMITTED USES  

A.  Primary Uses Permitted Outright:  

1.  Single detached dwelling subject to design standards in 
Chapter 17.90;  

Response:  The Applicant plans on building model homes with this subdivision. To the extent this 
cannot be done, the Applicant will work with the City and build a new single-family home 
on each of the lots of record prior to plat recordation, similar to a model home scenario. 

 
2.  Single detached manufactured dwelling subject to design 

standards in Chapter 17.90; 

17.34.30  DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

Type Standard 
A. Minimum Lot Area – Single detached 

dwelling  
7,500 square ft. 

B. Minimum Average Lot Width – Single 
detached dwelling 

60 ft. 

C. Minimum Lot Frontage 20 ft, except as allowed by Section 17.100.160 
D. Minimum Average Lot Depth No minimum 
E. Setbacks (Main Building) 

  Front Yard 
  Rear Yard 
  Side Yard (interior) 
  Corner Lot 

 
10 ft. minimum 
20 ft. minimum 
7.5 ft. minimum 
10 ft. minimum on side abutting the street1 

F. Setbacks (Garage/Carport) 22 ft. minimum for front vehicle access 
15 ft. minimum if entrance is perpendicular to 
street (subject to Section 17.90.220) 
5 ft. minimum for alley or rear access 

 
Response:  This application proposes lots for the permitted use of “single detached dwelling” listed 

above. The minimum standards for newly created lots in the SFR district are included in 
the table above. As planned, each of the lots meets the 20-foot minimum lot frontage to 
the street and the 60-foot average lot width for a single detached dwelling. The 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat, included in Exhibit A, demonstrates that future homes can 
meet the minimum setback requirements at the time of future building permit submittal. 
As shown, each lot meets the 7,500 square-foot minimum lot size requirement. The 
criteria are met.  

17.34.40  MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS  

A.  Must connect to municipal water.  

B.  Must connect to municipal sewer if service is currently within 200 feet 
of the site. Sites more than 200 feet from municipal sewer, may be 

Page 389 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 9 

approved to connect to an alternative disposal system provided all of 
the following are satisfied:  

1.  A county septic permit is secured and a copy is provided to 
the city;  

2.  The property owner executes a waiver of remonstrance to a 
local improvement district and/or signs a deed restriction 
agreeing to complete improvements, including but not 
limited, to curbs, sidewalks, sanitary sewer, water, storm 
sewer or other improvements which directly benefit the 
property; 

3.  The minimum size of the property is one acre or is a pre-
existing buildable lot, as determined by the city;  

4.  Site consists of a buildable parcel(s) created through 
dividing property in the city, which is less than five acres in 
size.  

C.  The location of any real improvements to the property must provide 
for a future street network to be developed.  

D.  Must have frontage or approved access to public streets.  

Response:  The Preliminary plans include information illustrating how the subdivision is planned to 
be serviced with municipal water, sanitary sewer, planned street network and 
improvements, and frontage on public streets. These criteria will be met.  

 
17.34.50  ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS  

A.  Design review as specified in Chapter 17.90 is required for all uses.  

Response:  This application involves a subdivision; design review for specific uses will be reviewed at 
the time of future permit submittal, if necessary. The standard is understood. 

 
B.  Lots with 40 feet or less of street frontage shall be accessed by a rear 

alley or a shared private driveway.  

Response:  As illustrated by the Preliminary Plans, each lot is planned with at least 40 feet of street 
frontage. This criterion does not apply. 

 
C.  Lots with alley access may be up to 10 percent smaller than the 

minimum lot size of the zone.  

Response:  Alleys are not included in this project. The criterion does not apply. 
 

D.  Zero Lot Line Dwellings: Prior to building permit approval, the 
applicant shall submit a recorded easement between the subject 
property and the abutting lot next to the yard having the zero setback. 
This easement shall be sufficient to guarantee rights for maintenance 
purposes of structures and yard, but in no case shall it be less than 5 
ft. in width.  

Response:  Building setback requirements will be reviewed at the time of future building permit 
submittal. This criterion is understood. 

 
CHAPTER 17.60 -  FLOOD & SLOPE HAZARD (FSH) OVERLAY DISTRICT 

Page 390 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 10 

17.60.10  INTERPRETATION AND MAPPING  

The Director has the ultimate responsibility for maintaining the FSH Overlay 
District on the City of Sandy Zoning Map, determining on-site measuring 
methods, and otherwise interpreting the provisions of this chapter. Technical 
terms used in this chapter are defined in Chapter 17.10, Definitions. This 
chapter does not regulate development on lots or parcels entirely outside the 
FSH Overlay District.  

A.  FSH Overlay District. The only areas subject to the restrictions and 
prohibitions of the FSH overlay district are those indicated on the 
City of Sandy Zoning Map on file in the Planning Department and 
areas of special flood hazard identified by the Federal Insurance 
Administration in a scientific and engineering report entitled, “Flood 
Insurance Study (FIS) for Clackamas County, Oregon and 
Incorporated Areas,” dated January 18, 2019, with accompanying 
Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs). This chapter does not regulate 
lots or parcels entirely outside the FSH Overlay District.  

1.  The FIS and FIRMs are hereby adopted by reference and 
declared to be a part of Section 17.60 and are on file at the 
City of Sandy.  

Response:  According to the current Zoning Map, the site is located inside the City limits, within the 
UGB and is unaffected by the FSH Overlay. However, the project site was not included on 
the City’s Goal 5 Inventory to determine whether wetlands, streams, or the FSH Overlay 
applies to the site because that inventory was created prior to the site’s inclusion within 
the UGB and annexation to the City. A FSH Analysis (Exhibit H) is included in the 
application materials demonstrating that the FSH Overlay District does not apply to the 
project site. 

 
B.  Development Approval Required. No development shall occur 

within the FSH overlay district without first obtaining City approval 
under the provisions of this chapter. The Director shall notify the 
Oregon Division of State Lands whenever any inventoried wetland is 
proposed for development, in accordance with ORS 227.350. In 
riverine situations, the Director shall notify adjacent communities 
and the State Coordinating Office prior to any alteration or relocation 
of a watercourse, and submit copies of such notification to the 
administrator.  

C.  Interpretation  

All provisions of the FSH overlay code shall be:  

1.  Considered as minimum requirements;  

2.  Liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and   

3.  Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted 
under state statutes. 

D.  Applicant Responsibilities. The applicant for alteration or 
development within the FSH overlay district shall be responsible for 
preparing a survey of the entire site, based on site- specific field 
surveys or Corps of Engineers data that precisely maps and 
delineates the following areas:  

1.  The name, location and dimensions of affected streams or 
rivers, and the tops of their respective banks.  

Page 391 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 11 

2.  Area of Special Flood Hazard boundaries and elevations as 
determined by the January 18, 2019 FIS for Clackamas 
County and Incorporated Areas.  

Response:  According to Federal Emergency Management Area (FEMA) mapping, Special Flood 
Hazard Areas are not mapped within the project site.  

 
3.  The City of Sandy FSH overlay district boundary as depicted 

on the City of Sandy FSH Map.  

Response:  The subject site is not located within the City’s FSH Overlay District. 
 

4.  The water quality and slope setback area(s) as defined in 
Section 17.60.30.  

5.  The size and location of locally significant wetlands shall be 
determined based on the City of Sandy Locally Significant 
Wetland Inventory (2002) unless modified by a wetland 
delineation approved by the Oregon Division of State Lands 
and submitted to the City. Wetland delineations that have 
formal concurrence from the Division of State Lands shall be 
valid for the period specified in that agency’s administrative 
rules.  

Response:  The project site is located outside of the City of Sandy’s Local Wetland Inventory. 
 

6.  Steep slope areas where the slope of the land is 25% or 
greater within the FSH overlay district boundary.  

7.  The area enclosed by a continuous line, measured 25 feet 
horizontally, parallel to and upland from the top of a steep 
slope area, where the top of the steep slope is within the FSH 
overlay district boundary.  

Response:  The FSH Analysis (Exhibit H) concludes that wetlands, waters, or slopes greater than 25% 
are not located on the subject site.  

 
8.  Existing public rights-of-way, structures, roads and utilities.  

9.  Natural vegetation, including trees or tree clusters and 
understory within the FSH Overlay District boundary.  

10.  Existing and proposed contours at 2-foot intervals. 

Response:  The FSH Analysis (Exhibit H) contains the applicable information as listed above. The 
criteria are met. 

 
17.60.20  PERMITTED USES AND ACTIVITIES  

This chapter lists permitted uses, or uses allowed under prescribed 
conditions, within the FSH overlay district. Where there are conflicts, this 
chapter supersedes the use provisions of the underlying district.  

Response:  The FSH Analysis (Exhibit H) documents that wetlands, waters, or slopes greater than 25% 
are not located on the subject site. Therefore, the FSH Overlay District does not apply to 
the project site and thus the criteria of Chapter 17.60 do not apply and have been omitted 
for brevity. 

 

Page 392 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 12 

CHAPTER 17.84 -  IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED WITH DEVELOPMENT 

17.84.20  TIMING OF IMPROVEMENTS  

A.  All improvements required by the standards in this chapter shall be 
installed concurrently with development, as follows:  

1.  Where a land division is proposed, each proposed lot shall 
have required public and franchise utility improvements 
installed or financially guaranteed in accordance with the 
provisions of Chapter 17 prior to approval of the final plat.  

2.  Where a land division is not proposed, the site shall have 
required public and franchise utility improvements installed 
or financially guaranteed in accordance with the provisions 
of Chapter 17 prior to temporary or final occupancy of 
structures.  

Response:  As shown in the Preliminary Plans in Exhibit A, each lot is to be provided with utility, 
sanitary sewer, water, and stormwater infrastructure. The criterion is met. 

 
B.  Where specific approval for a phasing plan has been granted for a 

planned development and/or subdivision, improvements may 
similarly be phased in accordance with that plan.  

Response:  As depicted in the Preliminary Plans, improvements are planned to be phased with the 
approved plans. See Exhibit A for detailed phasing logistics. 

 
17.84.30  PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLIST REQUIREMENTS  

A.  Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of all arterial, collector, 
and local streets, as follows:  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, sidewalks are planned to be provided on the streets 
within the subdivision and along the unimproved street stub section of Melissa Avenue. 

 
1.  Sidewalks shall be a minimum of 5 ft. wide on local streets. 

The sidewalks shall be separated from curbs by a tree 
planting area that provides separation between sidewalk and 
curb, unless modified in accordance with Subsection 3 
below.  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, sidewalks will be a minimum of 5 feet wide on the 
local street sections interior to the subdivision. See Exhibit A for detailed landscaping 
plans. The criterion is met. 

 
2.  Sidewalks along arterial and collector streets shall be 

separated from curbs with a planting area, except as 
necessary to continue an existing curb-tight sidewalk. The 
planting area shall be landscaped with trees and plant 
materials approved by the City. The sidewalks shall be a 
minimum of 6 ft. wide.  

Response:  The project site does not include proposed arterial or collector streets. The criterion does 
not apply. 

 

Page 393 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 13 

3.   Sidewalk improvements shall be made according to city 
standards, unless the city determines that the public benefit 
in the particular case does not warrant imposing a severe 
adverse impact to a natural or other significant feature such 
as requiring removal of a mature tree, requiring undue 
grading, or requiring modification to an existing building. 
Any exceptions to the standards shall generally be in the 
following order.  

a)  Narrow landscape strips  

b)  Narrow sidewalk or portion of sidewalk to no less 
than 4 feet in width  

c)  Eliminate landscape strips  

d)  Narrow on-street improvements by eliminating on-
street parking  

e)  Eliminate sidewalks  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, sidewalks are planned adjacent to the new streets 
within the subdivision. The criteria do not apply.  

 
4.  The timing of the installation of sidewalks shall be as 

follows: 

a)  Sidewalks and planted areas along arterial and 
collector streets shall be installed with street 
improvements, or with development of the site if 
street improvements are deferred.  

Response:  The project site does not include proposed arterial or collector streets. The criterion does 
not apply. 

 
b)  Sidewalks along local streets shall be installed in 

conjunction with development of the site, generally 
with building permits, except as noted in (c) below.  

Response:  Sidewalks are planned to be completed in conjunction with frontage improvements as 
phased with the approved plans. The criterion is met. 

 
c)  Where sidewalks on local streets abut common 

areas, drainageways, or other publicly owned or 
semi-publicly owned areas, the sidewalks and 
planted areas shall be installed with street 
improvements.  

Response:  The project site does not abut drainageways, publicly owned areas, or common areas. 
The criterion does not apply. 

 
B.  Safe and convenient pedestrian and bicyclist facilities that strive to 

minimize travel distance to the extent practicable shall be provided 
in conjunction with new development within and between new 
subdivisions, planned developments, commercial developments, 
industrial areas, residential areas, public transit stops, school transit 
stops, and neighborhood activity centers such as schools and parks, 
as follows:  

Page 394 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 14 

1.  For the purposes of this section, “safe and convenient” 
means pedestrian and bicyclist facilities that: are reasonably 
free from hazards which would interfere with or discourage 
travel for short trips; provide a direct route of travel between 
destinations; and meet the travel needs of pedestrians and 
bicyclists considering destination and length of trip.  

Response:  As shown on the Updated Preliminary Plan Sheets, a pedestrian path is planned in the 
northwest portion of the project site to provide a potential connection for a future 
development to the west. Pedestrian routes as planned are safe, direct, and convenient 
and don’t deviate unnecessarily from a straight line, involve a significant amount of out-
of-direction travel for likely users, or contain hazards. The criteria are met. 

2.  To meet the intent of “B” above, right-of-ways connecting 
cul-de-sacs or passing through unusually long or oddly 
shaped blocks shall be a minimum of 15 ft. wide with 8 feet 
of pavement.   

Response:  The application does not include cul-de-sac improvements or unusual blocks; the criterion 
is met.  

3.  12 feet wide pathways shall be provided in areas with high 
bicycle volumes or multiple use by bicyclists, pedestrians, 
and joggers.  

Response:  The application does not involve high volume pedestrian travel. The criterion does not 
apply.  

 
4.  Pathways and sidewalks shall be encouraged in new 

developments by clustering buildings or constructing 
convenient pedestrian ways. Pedestrian walkways shall be 
provided in accordance with the following standards:  

a)  The pedestrian circulation system shall be at least 
five feet in width and shall connect the sidewalk on 
each abutting street to the main entrance of the 
primary structure on the site to minimize out of 
direction pedestrian travel.  

b)  Walkways at least five feet in width shall be 
provided to connect the pedestrian circulation 
system with existing or planned pedestrian facilities 
which abut the site but are not adjacent to the 
streets abutting the site.  

c)  Walkways shall be as direct as possible and avoid 
unnecessary meandering.  

d)  Walkway/driveway crossings shall be minimized. 
Internal parking lot design shall maintain ease of 
access for pedestrians from abutting streets, 
pedestrian facilities, and transit stops.  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, pedestrian walkways are intended to connect to the 
existing and planned pedestrian circulation system and future building entrances. 
Therefore, the applicable standards above are met. 

 

Page 395 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 15 

e)  With the exception of walkway/driveway crossings, 
walkways shall be separated from vehicle parking or 
vehicle maneuvering areas by grade, different 
paving material, painted crosshatching or 
landscaping. They shall be constructed in 
accordance with the sidewalk standards adopted by 
the City. (This provision does not require a 
separated walkway system to collect drivers and 
passengers from cars that have parked on site 
unless an unusual parking lot hazard exists).  

Response:  The application does not involve common space walkways of this nature. Therefore, the 
criteria are not applicable.  

f)  Pedestrians amenities such as covered walk-ways, 
awnings, visual corridors and benches will be 
encouraged. For every two benches provided, the 
minimum parking requirements will be reduced by 
one, up to a maximum of four benches per site. 
Benches shall have direct access to the circulation 
system.  

Response:  The application does not include pedestrian amenities as described above. The criterion 
is not applicable. 

 
C.  Where a development site is traversed by or adjacent to a future trail 

linkage identified within the Transportation System Plan, 
improvement of the trail linkage shall occur concurrent with 
development. Dedication of the trail to the City shall be provided in 
accordance with 17.84.80.  

Response:  According to the City of Sandy’s Transportation System Plan (the “TSP”), there are no 
existing or planned trails adjacent to the project site which warrant a linkage. Therefore, 
the standard does not apply. However, this application is not subject to the TSP as 
explained above. 

 
D.  To provide for orderly development of an effective pedestrian 

network, pedestrian facilities installed concurrent with development 
of a site shall be extended through the site to the edge of adjacent 
property(ies).  

Response:  As illustrated by the Updated Preliminary Plan Sheets, continuous pedestrian facilities 
extending from the Nicolas Glen No. 2 Subdivision throughout the site are planned 
concurrently with each individual project phase. In addition, a pedestrian pathway is 
planned to provide a potential connection for a future development west of the project 
site.  Sidewalks are planned to be completed prior to occupancy of the adjoining home, 
as indicated on the Preliminary Plans. Therefore, the standard is met.  

 
E.  To ensure improved access between a development site and an 

existing developed facility such as a commercial center, school, park, 
or trail system, the Planning Commission or Director may require off-
site pedestrian facility improvements concurrent with development.  

Response:  Existing adjacent trails, future phases, or public parks that warrant a connection are not 
included in the project. Therefore, the standard does not apply.   

Page 396 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 16 

 
17.84.40  TRANSIT AND SCHOOL BUS TRANSIT REQUIREMENTS  

A.  Development sites located along existing or planned transit routes 
shall, where appropriate, incorporate bus pull-outs and/or shelters 
into the site design. These improvements shall be installed in 
accordance with the guidelines and standards of the transit agency. 
School bus pull-outs and/or shelters may also be required, where 
appropriate, as a condition of approval for a residential development 
of greater than 50 dwelling units where a school bus pick-up point is 
anticipated to serve a large number of children.  

B.  New developments at or near existing or planned transit or school 
bus transit stops shall design development sites to provide safe, 
convenient access to the transit system, as follows:  

1.  Commercial and civic use developments shall provide a 
prominent entrance oriented towards arterial and collector 
streets, with front setbacks reduced as much as possible to 
provide access for pedestrians, bicycles, and transit.  

2.  All developments shall provide safe, convenient pedestrian 
walkways between the buildings and the transit stop, in 
accordance with the provisions of 17.84.30 B.  

Response:  The project site is not located along any existing or planned transit or school bus transit 
stops. The criteria do not apply. 

 
17.84.50  STREET REQUIREMENTS 

A.  Traffic evaluations may be required of all development proposals in 
accordance with the following:  

1.  A proposal establishing the scope of the traffic evaluation 
shall be submitted for review to the City Engineer. The 
evaluation requirements shall reflect the magnitude of the 
project in accordance with accepted traffic engineering 
practices. Large projects should assess all nearby key 
intersections. Once the scope of the traffic evaluation has 
been approved, the applicant shall present the results with 
and an overall site development proposal. If required by the 
City Engineer, such evaluations shall be signed by a 
Licensed Professional Civil Engineer or Licensed 
Professional Traffic Engineer licensed in the State of 
Oregon.  

Response:  The Traffic Impact Analysis (Exhibit F) assesses the traffic in accordance with planned site 
improvements and accepted traffic engineering practices. The standard is met. 

 
2.  If the traffic evaluation identifies level-of-service conditions 

less than the minimum standard established in the 
Transportation System Plan, improvements and funding 
strategies mitigating the problem shall be considered 
concurrent with a development proposal.  

Response:  The Traffic Impact Analysis (Exhibit F) reports conditions which meet the minimum 
standard established in the Transportation System Plan. The criterion does not apply. 

 

Page 397 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 17 

B.  Location of new arterial streets shall conform to the Transportation 
System Plan in accordance with the following:  

1.  Arterial streets should generally be spaced in one-mile 
intervals.  

2.  Traffic signals should generally not be spaced closer than 
1500 ft. for reasonable traffic progression.  

Response:  This application does not include construction of new arterial streets. The criteria do not 
apply. 

C.  Local streets shall be designed to discourage through traffic. NOTE: 
for the purposes of this section, “through traffic” means the traffic 
traveling through an area that does not have a local origination or 
destination. To discourage through traffic and excessive vehicle 
speeds the following street design characteristics shall be considered, 
as well as other designs intended to discourage traffic:  

1.  Straight segments of local streets should be kept to less than 
a quarter mile in length. As practical, local streets should 
include traffic calming features, and design features such as 
curves and “T” intersections while maintaining pedestrian 
connectivity.  

2.  Local streets should typically intersect in “T” configurations 
rather than 4-way intersections to minimize conflicts and 
discourage through traffic. Adjacent “T” intersections shall 
maintain a minimum of 150 ft. between the nearest edges of 
the 2 rights-of-way.   

Response:  The Preliminary Plans include information on the local street pattern and intersections 
internal to the subdivision. The design incorporates curves, “T” intersections, straight 
segments less than a quarter mile in length, and maintains pedestrian connectivity. The 
traffic traveling through the area will be of local origin. The criteria are met. 

 
3.  Cul-de-sacs should generally not exceed 400 ft. in length nor 

serve more than 20 dwelling units, except in cases where 
existing topography, wetlands, or drainage systems or other 
existing features necessitate a longer cul-de-sac in order to 
provide adequate access to an area. Cul-de-sacs longer than 
400 feet or developments with only one access point may be 
required to provide an alternative access for emergency 
vehicle use only, install fire prevention sprinklers, or provide 
other mitigating measures, determined by the City.  

Response:  The project site does not include cul-de-sacs as defined in SDC 17.10.30: a local street 
with only one outlet and having a bulb at the opposite end. Additionally, as shown on the 
Updated Preliminary Plans Sheets, the project site is planned to be served with two 
accesses. The standard does not apply. 

 
D.  Development sites shall be provided with access from a public street 

improved to City standards in accordance with the following:  

1.  Where a development site abuts an existing public street not 
improved to City standards, the abutting street shall be 
improved to City standards along the full frontage of the 
property concurrent with development.  

Page 398 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 18 

2.  Half-street improvements are considered the minimum 
required improvement. Three-quarter-street or full-street 
improvements shall be required where traffic volumes 
generated by the development are such that a half-street 
improvement would cause safety and/or capacity problems. 
Such a determination shall be made by the City Engineer.  

3.  To ensure improved access to a development site consistent 
with policies on orderly urbanization and extension of public 
facilities the Planning Commission or Director may require 
off-site improvements concurrent with development. Off-
site improvement requirements upon the site developer shall 
be reasonably related to the anticipated impacts of the 
development.  

4.  Reimbursement agreements for ¾ street improvements (i.e., 
curb face to curb face) may be requested by the developer 
per Chapter 12 of the SMC.  

5.   A ½ street improvement includes curb and pavement 2 feet 
beyond the center line of the right-of-way. A ¾ street 
improvement includes curbs on both sides of the side and 
full pavement between curb faces. 

Response:  The Preliminary Plans show the project site is provided with access extending from 
Melissa Avenue, an existing public street right-of-way stubbed to the property. Per the 
Preliminary Plans, a fee-in-lieu of half-street improvements is planned on east SE Ponder 
Lane. Required frontage improvements on streets applicable to the project site will be 
completed as necessary. The criterion is met. 

 
E.   As necessary to provide for orderly development of adjacent 

properties, public streets installed concurrent with development of a 
site shall be extended through the site to the edge of the adjacent 
property(ies) in accordance with the following:  

1.  Temporary dead-ends created by this requirement to extend 
street improvements to the edge of adjacent properties may 
be installed without turn-arounds, subject to the approval of 
the Fire Marshal.  

2.  In order to assure the eventual continuation or completion 
of the street, reserve strips may be required.  

Response:  The Preliminary Plans illustrate local street sections extending through the site to the 
edge of the property boundaries. Temporary dead-ends, as necessary, can be provided in 
the phase it is associated with, as indicated on the Preliminary Plans. The criteria can be 
met. 

      
Appendix D, Section D107 of the Oregon Fire Code addresses standards regarding fire 
apparatus access roads for one or two-family residential developments. Developments 
which exceed 30 dwelling units shall be provided with two separate and approved fire 
apparatus access roads and shall meet the requirements of Section D104.3. 

F.  Where required by the Planning Commission or Director, public 
street improvements may be required through a development site to 
provide for the logical extension of an existing street network or to 
connect a site with a nearby neighborhood activity center, such as a 

Page 399 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 19 

school or park. Where this creates a land division incidental to the 
development, a land partition shall be completed concurrent with the 
development.  

Response:  This application does not include an incidental land division as stated above. The standard 
does not apply. 

 
G.  Except for extensions of existing streets, no street names shall be 

used that will duplicate or be confused with names of existing streets. 
Street names and numbers shall conform to the established pattern 
in the surrounding area and be subject to approval of the Director.  

Response:  Street names which conform to the surrounding area will be subjected to the approval of 
the Director. The criterion is met. 

 
H.  Location, grades, alignment, and widths for all public streets shall be 

considered in relation to existing and planned streets, topographical 
conditions, public convenience and safety, and proposed land use. 
Where topographical conditions present special circumstances, 
exceptions to these standards may be granted by the City Engineer 
provided the safety and capacity of the street network is not adversely 
affected. The following standards shall apply:  

1.  Location of streets in a development shall not preclude 
development of adjacent properties. Streets shall conform to 
planned street extensions identified in the Transportation 
Plan and/or provide for continuation of the existing street 
network in the surrounding area.  

2.  Grades shall not exceed 6 percent on arterial streets, 10 
percent on collector streets, and 15 percent on local streets.  

Response:  The planned locations of streets internal to the subdivision provide continuation of the 
existing street network stemming from the stub at Melissa Avenue, as identified in the 
Transportation Plan. Location of streets internal to the subdivision do not preclude 
development of adjacent properties. The grades on the planned local streets are not 
intended to exceed 15 percent; the project does not include arterial or collector streets. 
It is understood that if any special circumstances are identified, the standards of this 
Section will apply and be reviewed for compliance by the City Engineer. The criterion is 
met. 

 
3.  As far as practical, arterial streets and collector streets shall 

be extended in alignment with existing streets by 
continuation of the street centerline. When staggered street 
alignments resulting in “T” intersections are unavoidable, 
they shall leave a minimum of 150 ft. between the nearest 
edges of the two rights-of-way.  

Response:  The project site does not include the extension of arterial or collector streets. The 
standard does not apply.  

 
4.  Centerline radii of curves shall not be less than 500 ft. on 

arterial streets, 300 ft. on collector streets, and 100 ft. on local 
streets.  

Page 400 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 20 

Response:  The Preliminary Plans show the centerline radii of curves are not less than 100-foot on 
internal local streets. The standard is met. 

 
5.  Streets shall be designed to intersect at angles as near as 

practicable to right angles and shall comply with the 
following:  

a)  The intersection of an arterial or collector street 
with another arterial or collector street shall have a 
minimum of 100 ft. of straight (tangent) alignment 
perpendicular to the intersection.  

Response:  The project site does not include arterial or collector streets. The criterion does not apply. 
 

b)  The intersection of a local street with another street 
shall have a minimum of 50 ft. of straight (tangent) 
alignment perpendicular to the intersection.  

c)  Where right angle intersections are not possible, 
exceptions can be granted by the City Engineer 
provided that intersections not at right angles have 
a minimum corner radius of 20 ft. along the right-
of-way lines of the acute angle.  

d)  Intersections with arterial streets shall have a 
minimum curb corner radius of 20 ft. All other 
intersections shall have a minimum curb corner 
radius of 10 ft. 

Response:  The project site does not intersect with existing arterial streets. The criteria do not apply. 
 

6.  Right-of-way and improvement widths shall be as specified 
by the Transportation System Plan. Exceptions to those 
specifications may be approved by the City Engineer to deal 
with specific unique physical constraints of the site.   

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, right-of-way and improvement widths for streets 
within Bailey Meadows are being designed in accordance with City standards. The 
criterion is met. 

 
J.  Private streets may be considered within a development site provided 

all the following conditions are met:  

Response:  This application includes public, local street infrastructure and thus the criteria for private 
streets do not apply and has been deleted for brevity. 

 
17.84.50 STREET REQUIREMENTS  

(…)  

B.  Location of new arterial streets shall conform to the Transportation 
System Plan in accordance with the following:  

1.  Arterial streets should generally be spaced in one-mile 
intervals.  

2.  Traffic signals should generally not be spaced closer than 
1500 ft. for reasonable traffic progression. 

Page 401 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 21 

Response:  This application does not involve the completion of arterial street infrastructure. The TSP 
details Gunderson Road as a minor arterial street section along the southern property 
boundary. Due to circumstances outside of the Applicant’s control, Gunderson Road 
cannot be extended within the UGB via the property to the east as depicted in the TSP.  

 
17.84.60  PUBLIC FACILITY EXTENSIONS  

A.  All development sites shall be provided with public water, sanitary 
sewer, broadband (fiber), and storm drainage.  

B.  Where necessary to serve property as specified in “A” above, required 
public facility installations shall be constructed concurrent with 
development.  

C.  Off-site public facility extensions necessary to fully serve a 
development site and adjacent properties shall be constructed 
concurrent with development.  

D.  As necessary to provide for orderly development of adjacent 
properties, public facilities installed concurrent with development of 
a site shall be extended through the site to the edge of adjacent 
property(ies).  

E.  All public facility installations required with development shall 
conform to the City’s facilities master plans.  

Response:  The Preliminary Plans include information detailing the nature of public facility extensions 
to each lot, and to the edge of properties adjacent to the subdivision, where applicable. 
Installations are planned to be completed concurrent with the approved phasing of the 
subdivision and conform to the City’s facilities master plans. The criteria are met. 

 
F.  Private on-site sanitary sewer and storm drainage facilities may be 

considered provided all the following conditions exist:  

1.  Extension of a public facility through the site is not 
necessary for the future orderly development of adjacent 
properties;  

2.  The development site remains in one ownership and land 
division does not occur (with the exception of land divisions 
that may occur under the provisions of 17.84.50 F above);  

3.  The facilities are designed and constructed in accordance 
with the Uniform Plumbing Code and other applicable 
codes, and permits and/or authorization to proceed with 
construction is issued prior to commencement of work.  

Response:  The application does not include private facilities as described above. The criterion does 
not apply. 

 
17.84.70  PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROCEDURES  

It is in the best interests of the community to ensure public improvements 
installed in conjunction with development are constructed in accordance with 
all applicable City policies, standards, procedures, and ordinances. Therefore, 
prior to commencement of installation of public water, sanitary sewer, storm 
drainage, broadband (fiber), street, bicycle, or pedestrian improvements for 
any development site, developers shall contact the City Engineer to receive 
information regarding adopted procedures governing plan submittal, plan 

Page 402 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 22 

review and approval, permit requirements, inspection and testing 
requirements, progress of the work, and provision of easements, dedications, 
and as-built drawings for installation of public improvements. All work shall 
proceed in accordance with those adopted procedures, and all applicable City 
policies, standards, and ordinances.  

Whenever any work is being done contrary to the provisions of this Code, the 
Director may order the work stopped by notice in writing served on the 
persons engaged in performing the work or causing the work to be performed. 
The work shall stop until authorized by the Director to proceed with the work 
or with corrective action to remedy substandard work already completed.  

Response:  Site work is planned to be completed in accordance with the public improvement 
procedures described above. 

 
17.84.80  FRANCHISE UTILITY INSTALLATIONS  

These standards are intended to supplement, not replace or 
supersede, requirements contained within individual franchise 
agreements the City has with providers of electrical power, 
telephone, cable television, and natural gas services (hereinafter 
referred to as “franchise utilities”).  

A.  Where a land division is proposed, the developer shall provide 
franchise utilities to the development site. Each lot created within a 
subdivision shall have an individual service available or financially 
guaranteed prior to approval of the final plat.  

B.  Where necessary, in the judgment of the Director, to provide for 
orderly development of adjacent properties, franchise utilities shall 
be extended through the site to the edge of adjacent property(ies), 
whether or not the development involves a land division.  

C.  The developer shall have the option of choosing whether or not to 
provide natural gas or cable television service to the development 
site, providing all of the following conditions exist:  

1.  Extension of franchise utilities through the site is not 
necessary for the future orderly development of adjacent 
property(ies);  

2.  The development site remains in one ownership and land 
division does not occur (with the exception of land divisions 
that may occur under the provisions of 17.84.50 F above); and  

3.  The development is non-residential.  

 
D.  Where a land division is not proposed, the site shall have franchise 

utilities required by this section provided in accordance with the 
provisions of 17.84.70 prior to occupancy of structures.  

E.  All franchise utility distribution facilities installed to serve new 
development shall be placed underground except as provided below. 
The following facilities may be installed above-ground: 

1.  Poles for street lights and traffic signals, pedestals for police 
and fire system communications and alarms, pad mounted 
transformers, pedestals, pedestal mounted terminal boxes 
and meter cabinets, concealed ducts, substations, or 
facilities used to carry voltage higher than 35,000 volts;  

Page 403 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 23 

2.  Overhead utility distribution lines may be permitted upon 
approval of the City Engineer when unusual terrain, soil, or 
other conditions make underground installation 
impracticable. Location of such overhead utilities shall 
follow rear or side lot lines wherever feasible.  

Response:  The Preliminary Plans include information for franchise utility installations. The 
installation of franchise utilities will be in accordance with the provisions of this Section 
and arranged with franchise utility providers. The criteria are met. 

 
F.  The developer shall be responsible for making necessary 

arrangements with franchise utility providers for provision of plans, 
timing of installation, and payment for services installed. Plans for 
franchise utility installations shall be submitted concurrent with plan 
submittal for public improvements to facilitate review by the City 
Engineer.  

Response:  The Preliminary Plans include information for franchise utility installations. The standard 
is met. 

 
G.  The developer shall be responsible for installation of underground 

conduit for street lighting along all public streets improved in 
conjunction with the development in accordance with the following:  

1.  The developer shall coordinate with the City Engineer to 
determine the location of future street light poles. The street 
light plan shall be designed to provide illumination meeting 
standards set by the City Engineer.  

2.  The developer shall make arrangements with the serving 
electric utility for trenching prior to installation of 
underground conduit for street lighting.  

Response:  The installation of franchise utilities will be in accordance with the provisions of this 
Section and arranged with franchise utility providers. The criteria are met. 

 
17.84.90  LAND FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES  

A.  Easements for public sanitary sewer, water, storm drain, pedestrian 
and bicycle facilities shall be provided whenever these facilities are 
located outside a public right-of-way in accordance with the 
following:  

1.  When located between adjacent lots, easements shall be 
provided on one side of a lot line.  

2.  The minimum easement width for a single utility is 15 ft. The 
minimum easement width for two adjacent utilities is 20 ft. 
The easement width shall be centered on the utility to the 
greatest extent practicable. Wider easements may be 
required for unusually deep facilities.  

B.  Public utility easements with a minimum width of 5 feet shall be 
provided adjacent to all street rights-of-way for franchise utility 
installations.  

Response:  The Preliminary Subdivision Plat in the Preliminary Plans depicts required dedications and 
easements. The criteria are met. 

Page 404 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 24 

 
C.  Where a development site is traversed by a drainageway or water 

course, a drainage way dedication shall be provided to the City.  

Response:  The project site does not include water course or drainageway, as reported in the FSH 
Analysis (Exhibit H). This criterion does not apply. 

 
D.  Where a development is traversed by, or adjacent to, a future trail 

linkage identified within the Transportation System Plan, 
dedications of suitable width to accommodate the trail linkage shall 
be provided. This width shall be determined by the City Engineer, 
considering the type of trail facility involved.  

Response:  The project site does not contain adjacent or future trails within the Transportation 
System Plan. This criterion does not apply. 

 
E.  Where existing rights-of-way and/or easements within or adjacent to 

development sites are nonexistent or of insufficient width, 
dedications may be required. The need for and widths of those 
dedications shall be determined by the City Engineer.  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, right-of-way and improvement widths for streets 
within Bailey Meadows are being designed in accordance with City standards. Dedications 
related to existing right-of-way on SE Ponder Lane, east adjacent to the subdivision, are 
detailed for review by the City Engineer. The criterion is met. 

 
F.  Where easement or dedications are required in conjunction with land 

divisions, they shall be recorded on the plat. Where a development 
does not include a land division, easements and/or dedications shall 
be recorded on standard document forms provided by the City 
Engineer.  

Response:  The Preliminary Subdivision Plat in Exhibit A includes details of necessary easements and 
dedications to be recorded on the plat as required. The criteria are met. 

 
G.  If the City has an interest in acquiring any portion of a proposed 

subdivision or planned development site for a public purpose, other 
than for those purposes listed above, or if the City has been advised 
of such interest by a school district or other public agency, and there 
is a reasonable assurance that steps will be taken to acquire the land, 
the Planning Commission may require those portions of the land be 
reserved for public acquisition for a period not to exceed 1 year.  

Response:  Other than for necessary supporting public infrastructure, this application does not 
include land designated for a public purpose. The criteria do not apply. 

 
H.  Environmental assessments for all lands to be dedicated to the public 

or City may be required to be provided by the developer. An 
environmental assessment shall include information necessary for 
the City to evaluate potential liability for environmental hazards, 
contamination, or required waste cleanups related to the dedicated 
land. An environmental assessment shall be completed prior to the 
acceptance of dedicated lands in accordance with the following:  

Page 405 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 25 

1.  The initial environmental assessment shall detail the history 
of ownership and general use of the land by past owners. 
Upon review of the information provided by the grantor, as 
well as any site investigation by the City, the Director will 
determine if the risks of potential contamination warrant 
further investigation. When further site investigation is 
warranted, a Level I Environmental Assessment shall be 
provided by the grantor.  

Response:  Other than for necessary supporting public infrastructure, this application does not 
include land designated for a public purpose. The criteria do not apply. 

 
17.84.100  MAIL DELIVERY FACILITIES  

A.  In establishing placement of mail delivery facilities, locations of 
sidewalks, bikeways, intersections, existing or future driveways, 
existing or future utilities, right-of-way and street width, and vehicle, 
bicycle and pedestrian movements shall be considered. The final 
location of these facilities shall meet the approval of the City 
Engineer and the Post Office. Where mail delivery facilities are being 
installed in conjunction with a land division, placement shall be 
indicated on the plat and meet the approval of the City Engineer and 
the Post Office prior to final plat approval.  

B.  Where mail delivery facilities are proposed to be installed in areas 
with an existing or future curb-tight sidewalk, a sidewalk transition 
shall be provided that maintains the required design width of the 
sidewalk around the mail delivery facility. If the right-of-way width 
will not accommodate the sidewalk transition, a sidewalk easement 
shall be provided adjacent to the right-of-way.  

C.  Mail delivery facilities and the associated sidewalk transition (if 
necessary) around these facilities shall conform with the City’s 
standard construction specifications. Actual mailbox units shall 
conform with the Post Office standards for mail delivery facilities.  

D.  Installation of mail delivery facilities is the obligation of the 
developer. These facilities shall be installed concurrently with the 
public improvements. Where development of a site does not require 
public improvements, mail delivery facilities shall be installed 
concurrently with private site improvements. 

Response:  In conjunction with the final construction plans, locations for mail delivery facilities will 
be coordinated and established with the U.S. Post Office. 

CHAPTER 17.86 -  PARKLAND & OPEN SPACE   

Parkland Dedication: New residential subdivisions, planned developments, 
multi-family or manufactured home park developments shall be required to 
provide parkland to serve existing and future residents of those developments. 
Multi-family developments which provide some "congregate" services 
and/or facilities, such as group transportation, dining halls, emergency 
monitoring systems, etc., but which have individual dwelling units rather than 
sleeping quarters only, are considered to be multi-family developments for the 
purpose of parkland dedication. Licensed adult congregate living facilities, 
nursing homes, and all other similar facilities which provide their clients with 
individual beds and sleeping quarters, but in which all other care and services 
are communal and provided by facility employees, are specifically exempt 
from parkland dedication and system development fee requirements.  

Page 406 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 26 

1.  The required parkland shall be dedicated as a condition of 
approval for the following:  

a.  Tentative plat for a subdivision or partition;  

2.  Calculation of Required Dedication: The required parkland 
acreage to be dedicated is based on a calculation of the 
following formula rounded to the nearest 1/100 (0.00) of an 
acre:  

Required parkland dedication (acres) = (proposed units) x 
(persons/unit) x 0.0043 (per person park land dedication 
factor)  

a.    Population Formula: The following table shall be 
used to determine the number of persons per unit 
to be used in calculating required parkland 
dedication: 

 
Type of Unit Total Persons Per Unit 
Single-family residential 3.0 

 
Persons per unit, age distribution, and local 
conditions change with time. The specific formula 
for the dedication of land will, therefore, be subject 
to periodic review and amendment.  

b.  Per Person Parkland Dedication Factor: The total 
parkland dedication requirement shall be 0.0043 of 
an acre per person based on the adopted standard 
of 4.3 acres of land per one thousand of ultimate 
population per the Parks Master Plan 

1.  This standard represents the citywide land-
to-population ratio for city parks, and may 
be adjusted periodically through 
amendments to the Parks Master Plan.  

Response:  The criteria above are satisfied by means of a fee in lieu of parkland dedication per the 
City standard 17.86.40. The remainder of Chapter 17 Section 86, which does not apply to 
the project, has been omitted for brevity. 

 
17.86.40  CASH IN LIEU OF DEDICATION  

At the city’s discretion only, the city may accept payment of a fee in lieu of 
land dedication. The city may require payment in lieu of land when the park 
land to be dedicated is less than 3 acres. A payment in lieu of land dedication 
is separate from Park Systems Development Charges, and is not eligible for a 
credit of Park Systems Development Charges. The amount of the fee in lieu 
of land dedication (in dollars per acre) shall be set by City Council Resolution, 
and it shall be based on the typical market value of developed property 
(finished lots) in Sandy net of related development costs.  

1. The following factors shall be used in the choice of whether 
to accept land or cash in lieu:  

Response:  This application is a “Needed Housing” application pursuant to ORS 197.303(1) and ORS 
197.307(4), therefore, only objective standards and procedures apply to the application 

Page 407 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 27 

review. The choice between dedication and payment is subjective, as is the procedure to 
make the recommendation on the choice. 

 
a. The topography, geology, access to, parcel size, and 

location of land in the development available for 
dedication;  

Response:  This criterion is subjective and cannot be applied to a “Needed Housing” application 
under ORS 197.307(4).  

b. Potential adverse/beneficial effects on 
environmentally sensitive areas;  

Response:  This application does not include any environmentally sensitive areas as reported in the 
FSH Analysis (Exhibit H). The criterion does not apply. 

c.  Compatibility with the Parks Master Plan, Public 
Facilities element of the Comprehensive Plan, and 
the City of Sandy Capital Improvements Program in 
effect at the time of dedication;  

Response:  This application is a “Limited Land Use Decision” pursuant to ORS 197.195(1) and Plans 
may be approval criteria only if specific policies are incorporated into the City’s land use 
regulations. The City’s land use regulation’s approval criteria in SDC 17.100.60 do not 
incorporate the 1997 Parks Master Plan, nor the above Plans with the specificity required 
by ORS 197.195(1), so they are not mandatory approval criteria and do not apply to this 
application. 

 
d.  Availability of previously acquired property; and  

e.  The feasibility of dedication.  

Response:  The above criteria are subjective and cannot be applied to a “Needed Housing” 
application per ORS 197.307(4).  

2.   Cash in lieu of parkland dedication shall be paid prior to 
approval of the final plat or as specified below:  

a.  50 percent of the payment shall be paid prior to final 
plat approval, and  

b.  The remaining 50 percent of the payment pro-rated 
equally among the lots, plus an administrative 
surcharge as determined by the City Council 
through a resolution, will constitute a lien against 
the property payable at the time of sale.      

Response:  Cash in lieu of parkland dedication will be paid as determined and recorded in the 
resolution. The table below provides a preliminary cost estimate calculation. The criteria 
can be met. 

 
CASH IN LIEU OF DEDICATION 

Proposed Units 100 

Persons Per Unit 3 

Page 408 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 28 

Per Person Parkland Dedication Factor 0.0043 

Required Parkland (Acres) 1.29 

Cash in Lieu Cost Estimate $310,890 

 
 

CHAPTER 17.90 -  DESIGN STANDARDS 

17.90.10  APPLICABILITY 

The provisions of this chapter apply to all zones and uses as follows except as 
specified in Sections 17.90.10(B), (C), (D), (E), and (F) below: 

C.  Residential Dwelling Exception:  Single family dwellings, duplexes, 
manufactured dwellings on individual lots of record, and 
manufactured dwellings in parks are exempt from all requirements 
of this chapter except for Section 17.90.150. 

Response:  This application involves a planned subdivision of lots suitable for future single-family 
detached dwellings. The Preliminary Dimensioned Subdivision Plan with Setbacks, 
included in Exhibit A, demonstrates that future homes can meet the minimum setback 
requirements of the Single-Family Residential zone. The residential design standards, 
which apply to the street-facing facades of all new single-family dwellings, will be 
assessed at time of future building permit submittal. The remainder of Section 17.90.150 
has been omitted for brevity. 

 
CHAPTER 17.92 -  LANDSCAPING & SCREENING GENERAL STANDARDS - ALL 

ZONES 

17.92.30  REQUIRED TREE PLANTINGS  

Planting of trees is required for all parking lots with 4 or more parking spaces, 
public street frontages, and along private drives more than 150 feet long. Trees 
shall be planted outside the street right-of-way except where there is a 
designated planting strip or City adopted street tree plan.  

The City maintains a list of appropriate trees for street tree and parking lot 
planting situations. Selection of species should be made from the city-
approved list. Alternate selections may be approved by the Director following 
written request. The type of tree used shall determine frequency of trees in 
planting areas. Trees in parking areas shall be dispersed throughout the lot to 
provide a canopy for shade and visual relief. 

 
Area/Type of Planting Canopy Spacing 
Street Tree Medium 30 ft. on center 
Street Tree Large 50 ft. on center 

 
Trees may not be planted:  

• Within 5 ft. of permanent hard surface paving or walkways, unless specific 
species, special  

• planting techniques and specifications approved by the Director are used.  

• Unless approved otherwise by the City Engineer:  

• Within 10 ft. of fire hydrants and utility poles  

Page 409 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 29 

• Within 20 ft. of street light standards  

• Within 5 ft. from an existing curb face  

• Within 10 ft. of a public sanitary sewer, storm drainage or water line  

• Where the Director determines the trees may be a hazard to the public 
interest or general welfare.  

• Trees shall be pruned to provide a minimum clearance of 8 ft. above 
sidewalks and 12 ft. above street and roadway surfaces.  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Street Tree and Stormwater Screening Planting Plan 
(included in Exhibit A), required street trees and planting strips are generally planned to 
be completed prior to occupancy of the adjoining lot. Street trees and planting strips that 
are located along the stormwater facility and at the site access are planned to be 
completed with the subdivision infrastructure as shown on the Preliminary Plans.  
Landscaping will be provided in accordance with the above criteria. Therefore, this 
standard is met. 

 
17.92.40  IRRIGATION  

Landscaping shall be irrigated, either with a manual or automatic system, to 
sustain viable plant life. 

Response:  This standard is understood. No additional response is necessary. 
 

17.92.60  REVEGETATION IN UNLANDSCAPED OR NATURAL LANDSCAPED 
AREAS  

A.  Areas where natural vegetation has been removed or damaged 
through grading or construction activity in areas not affected by the 
landscaping requirements and that are not to be occupied by 
structures or other improvements shall be replanted.  

B.  Plant material shall be watered at intervals sufficient to assure 
survival and growth.  

C.  The use of native plant materials or plants acclimatized to the Pacific 
Northwest is encouraged to reduce irrigation and maintenance 
demands.  

Response:  This standard is understood. No additional response is necessary. 
 

17.98.20 OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS  

A.  Off Street Parking Requirements. Off street parking shall conform to 
the following standards:  

1.  All square footage measurements are gross square feet of 
total floor area.  

2.  18 lineal inches of bench shall be considered 1 seat.  

3.  Except as otherwise specified, parking for employees shall 
be provided based on 1 space per 2 employees for the largest 
shift in addition to required parking specified in Sections 
A6-A9 below.  

Page 410 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 30 

4.  Where less than 5 parking spaces are required, then only one 
bicycle space shall be required except as otherwise modified 
in Sections 5-9 below.  

5.  In addition to requirements for residential off street parking, 
new dwellings shall meet the on-street parking requirements 
in Section 17.98.200. 

6.  
 
 
 
 
Response:  This application is for a residential subdivision suitable for single-family detached homes. 

As shown on the Preliminary Parking Plan in Exhibit A, future driveways provide for two 
off-street parking spaces per dwelling. Bicycle parking is not required or provided. As 
applicable, the criteria above are met. 

 
17.98.200 RESIDENTIAL ON-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS  

A.  Residential On-Street Parking Requirements. Residential on-street 
parking shall conform to the following standards:  

1.  In addition to required off-street parking, all new residential 
planned developments, subdivisions and partitions shall 
provide one (1) on-street parking space within 200 feet of 
each dwelling except as provided in Section 17.98.200(A)(6) 
below.  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Parking Plan in Exhibit A, in addition to required off-street 
parking, the 100-lot subdivision is planned to provide 122 on-street parking spaces. The 
criterion is met. 

 
2. The location of residential on-street parking shall be 

reviewed for compliance with this section through submittal 
of a Residential Parking Analysis Plan as required in Section 
17.98.10(M).  

Response:  The Preliminary Plans (Exhibit A) include a Preliminary Parking Plan sheet. The submittal 
requirements are met. 

 
3.  Residential on-street parking shall not obstruct required 

clear vision areas and shall not violate any local or state laws.  

4.  Parallel residential on-street parking spaces shall be 22 feet 
minimum in length.  

5.  Residential on-street parking shall be measured along the 
curb from the outside edge of a driveway wing or curb cut. 
Parking spaces must be set back a minimum of 15 feet from 
an intersection and may not be located within 10 feet of a fire 
hydrant.  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Parking Plan in Exhibit A, on-street parking is planned to not 
obstruct clear vision areas. Parallel on-street parking spaces meet the minimum length 
and setback requirements as detailed above. The criteria are met. 

 

Residential Uses Number of 
Parking Spaces 

Number of 
Bicycle Spaces 

Single Family 
Detached 

2 per dwelling 0 

Page 411 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 31 

6.  Portions of residential on-street parking required by this 
section may be provided in parking courts that are 
interspersed throughout a development when the following 
standards are met:  

a.  No more than eight (8) parking spaces shall be 
provided in a parking court;  

b. Parking spaces within a parking court shall be nine 
(9) feet wide and 18 feet in depth;  

c. Notwithstanding Section 17.98.70, vehicles parked 
in a parking court are permitted to back onto the 
public right-of-way from the parking court;  

d.  A parking court shall be located within 200 feet of 
the dwellings requiring parking in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 17.98.10(M);  

e.  No more than two (2) parking courts shall be 
provided within a block, with only one (1) parking 
court provided along a block face;  

f.  A parking court shall be paved in compliance with 
the standards of this chapter and the latest adopted 
grading and drainage standards; 17.98 - 13 Revised 
by Ordinance No. 2013-04 (effective 07/03/13)  

g.  If a parking court is adjacent to a public right-of-
way, it shall be publicly owned and maintained;  

h.  If a parking court is adjacent to a private drive, it 
shall be privately owned and maintained. For each 
parking court there shall be a legal recorded 
document which includes:  

i.  A legal description of the parking court;  

ii.  Ownership of the parking court;  

iii.  Use rights; and  

iv.  A maintenance agreement and the 
allocation and/or method of determining 
liability for maintenance of the parking 
court;  

i. A parking court shall be used solely for the parking 
of operable passenger vehicles. 

Response:  This application does not include parking courts. The criteria listed above are not 
applicable. 

 
CHAPTER 17.100 - LAND DIVISION 

17.100.20 LAND DIVISION CLASSIFICATION - TYPE I, II OR III PROCEDURES 

E.  Type III Land Division (Major Partition or Subdivision). A major 
partition or subdivision shall be a Type III procedure if 
unsatisfactory street conditions exist or the resulting parcels/lots do 
not comply with the standards of the zoning district and this chapter. 
The Director shall determine if unsatisfactory street conditions exist 
based on one of the following criteria:  

Page 412 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 32 

1.  The land division does not link streets that are stubbed to 
the boundaries of the property.   

Response:  This application links to and includes the continuation of the existing Melissa Avenue 
right-of-way street stub, north of the project site as shown on the Preliminary Plans in 
Exhibit A. Therefore, this criterion does not apply, and future street conditions will be 
satisfactory. 

 
2.  An existing street or a new proposed street will be extended 

beyond the boundaries of the land division to complete a 
street system or provide access to adjacent property.  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, planned streets are not extended beyond the 
boundaries of the subdivision. Therefore, this criterion does not apply, and future street 
conditions will be satisfactory. 

 
3.  The proposed street layout is inconsistent with a street 

pattern adopted as part of the Comprehensive Plan or 
officially adopted City street plan.   

Response:  The Preliminary Plans include information illustrating how the infrastructure is planned 
to be consistent with City standards. Therefore, the criterion will be met, and future street 
conditions will be satisfactory. 

 
17.100.60 SUBDIVISIONS   

Approval of a subdivision is required for a land division of 4 or more parcels 
in a calendar year.  

A two-step procedure is required for subdivision approval: (1) tentative plat 
review and approval; and (2) final plat review and approval.   

A. Preapplication Conference. The applicant for a subdivision shall 
participate in a preapplication conference with city staff to discuss 
procedures for approval, applicable state and local requirements, 
objectives and policies of the Sandy Comprehensive Plan, and the 
availability of services. The preapplication conference provides the 
opportunity to discuss the conceptual development of the property in 
advance of formal submission of the tentative plan in order to save 
the applicant unnecessary delay and cost. 

Response: A pre-application conference was held on November 20, 2018. 

B.  Application Requirements for a Tentative Plat. Subdivision 
applications shall be made on forms provided by the planning 
department and shall be accompanied by:  

1.  20 copies of the tentative plat;  

2.  Required fee and technical service deposit;  

3.  20 copies of all other supplementary material as may be 
required to indicate the general program and objectives of 
the subdivision;  

4.  Preliminary title search;  

5.  List of affected property owners.  

Page 413 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 33 

Response: Exhibit B contains the documents listed above. These submittal requirements are met. 

B. Format. The Tentative Plat shall be drawn on a sheet 18 x 24 inches 
in size and at a scale of one inch equals one hundred feet unless an 
alternative format is approved by the Director at the preapplication 
conference. The application shall include one copy of a scaled 
drawing of the proposed subdivision, on a sheet 8 1/2 x 11, suitable 
for reproduction.   

Response: Exhibit A contains the Preliminary Subdivision Plat. This submittal requirement is met. 

D.  Data Requirements for Tentative Plat.  

1.  Scale of drawing, north arrow, and date.   

2.  Location of the subdivision by section, township and range, 
and a legal description sufficient to define the location and 
boundaries of the proposed tract.   

3.  A vicinity map, showing adjacent property boundaries and 
how proposed streets may be extended to connect to existing 
streets.   

4.  Names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the owner(s) 
of the property, the engineer or surveyor, and the date of the 
survey.   

5.  Streets: location, names, paved widths, alleys, and right-of-
way (existing and proposed) on and within 400 feet of the 
boundaries of the subdivision tract.   

6.  Easements: location, widths, purpose of all easements 
(existing and proposed) on or serving the tract.   

7.  Utilities: location of storm drainage, sanitary sewers and 
water lines (existing and proposed) on and abutting the 
tract. If utilities are not on or abutting the tract, indicate the 
direction and distance to the nearest locations.   

8.  Ground elevations shown by contour lines at two-foot 
vertical intervals for ground slopes of less than 10 percent 
and at ten-foot vertical intervals for ground slopes exceeding 
10 percent. Ground elevation shall be related to an 
established benchmark or other datum approved by the 
Director.   

9.  Natural features such as marshes, rock outcroppings, 
watercourses on and abutting the property, location of 
wooded areas.  

10.  Approximate location of areas subject to periodic inundation 
or storm sewer overflow, location of any floodplain or flood 
hazard district.  

11.  Location, width, and direction of flow of all water courses.  

12.  Identification of the top of bank and boundary of mandatory 
setback for any stream or water course.  

13.  Identification of any associated wetland and boundary of 
mandatory setback.  

Page 414 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 34 

14.  Identification of any wetland and boundary of mandatory 
setback.  

15.  Location of at least one temporary bench mark within the 
tract boundaries.   

16.  Existing uses of the property, including location and present 
use of all existing structures to remain on the property after 
platting.   

17.  Lots and Blocks: approximate dimensions of all lots, 
minimum lot sizes, and proposed lot and block numbers.   

18.  Existing zoning and proposed land use.   

19.  Designation of land intended to be dedicated or reserved for 
public use, with the purpose, conditions, or limitations of 
such reservations clearly indicated.   

20.  Proposed development phases, if applicable.   

21.  Any other information determined necessary by the Director 
at the preapplication conference, such as a soil report or 
other engineering study, traffic analysis, floodplain or 
wetland delineation, etc.   

Response: The Preliminary Plans and other documentation include the information listed above, as 
applicable. Therefore, these submittal requirements are met. 

E.  Approval Criteria. The Director or Planning Commission shall review 
the tentative plat for the subdivision based on the classification 
procedure (Type II or III) set forth in Section 17.12 and the following 
approval criteria:  

1.  The proposed subdivision is consistent with the density, 
setback and dimensional standards of the base zoning 
district, unless modified by a Planned Development 
approval.   

Response: As shown on the Preliminary Subdivision Plat in Exhibit A and findings provided in the 
written document, the planned subdivision is consistent with the density, setback, and 
dimensional standards of the SFR zoning district. The project is not modified by Planned 
Development standards of approval. The criterion is met.  

 
3. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the design 

standards set forth in this chapter.  

Response: This subdivision application is consistent with the design standards set forth in SD 
17.100.70 and in conformance with the applicable SFR zoning district. Therefore, the 
criterion is met. 

 
4. The proposed street pattern is connected and consistent 

with the Comprehensive Plan or official street plan for the 
City of Sandy.   

Response: As shown on the Preliminary Plans, the intended local street pattern internal to the 
subdivision is connected and consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Access from the 
existing street stub, Melissa Avenue, provides a continuous network through and to the 
boundaries of the subdivision. Additionally, this standard may not be applied under ORS 

Page 415 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 35 

197.307(4) because the phrase “connected and consistent” is subjective. Additionally, this 
standard may not be applied under ORS 197.307(4) because the phrase “City standards” 
is subjective. Additionally, this standard may not be applied under ORS 197.307(4) 
because the words “objective” and “necessary” are subjective. 

 
5. Adequate public facilities are available or can be provided to 

serve the proposed subdivision.   

Response: As shown in the Preliminary Plans, public facilities as available will be provided to serve 
the subdivision, including but not limited to stormwater management, sanitary sewer, 
municipal water, and franchise utilities. Infrastructure is planned to be completed 
concurrent with the build out of the associated phase. The criterion is met. 

 
6. All proposed improvements meet City standards.  

Response: Sandy Development Code requirements have been reviewed with the intent that all 
planned improvements meet applicable City standards. 

 
6.  The phasing plan, if requested, can be carried out in a 

manner that meets the objectives of the above criteria and 
provides necessary public improvements for each phase as it 
develops.   

Response: As shown on the Preliminary Subdivision Plat in the Preliminary Plans, the subdivision is 
planned to be completed in three phases and provide necessary public improvements 
concurrently with each phase. The above requirements are satisfied and support the 
City’s approval of this Subdivision. 

F.  Conditions. The Director or Planning Commission may require 
dedication of land and easements and may specify such conditions 
or modifications of the tentative plat as deemed necessary.   

Response: It is understood the Preliminary Subdivision Plat may have conditions or modifications 
required as necessary. The Applicant reserves the right to object to the application of 
standards or conditions other than those that are clear and objective and does not waive 
its right to assert that the needed housing statutes apply to this application. 

G.  Improvements. A detailed list of required improvements for the 
subdivisions shall be set forth in the approval and conditions for the 
tentative plat.   

Response: This criterion is understood. No additional response is necessary. 

H.  Tentative Plat Expiration Date. The final plat shall be delivered to 
the Director for approval within one year following approval of the 
tentative plat, and shall incorporate any modification or condition 
required by approval of the tentative plat. The Director may, upon 
written request of the subdivider, grant an extension of the tentative 
plat approval for up to one additional year. 

Response: This criterion is understood. No additional response is necessary. 

17.100.70 LAND DIVISION DESIGN STANDARDS  

Page 416 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 36 

All land divisions shall be in conformance with the requirements of the 
applicable base zoning district and this chapter, as well as with other 
applicable provisions of this Code. Modifications to these requirements may 
be accomplished through a Planned Development. The design standards in 
this section shall be used in conjunction with street design standards included 
in the City of Sandy Transportation System Plan and standards and 
construction specifications for public improvements as set forth in adopted 
Public Facilities Plans and the Sandy Municipal Code.   

Response: This application contains the Preliminary Plans, reports, analysis, calculations, and 
applicable narrative information to validate conformance with the requirements of the 
Sandy Development Code. The land division design standards of City Code are satisfied. 

 
17.100.80 CHARACTER OF THE LAND  

Land which the Director or the Planning Commission finds to be unsuitable 
for development due to flooding, improper drainage, steep slopes, rock 
formations, adverse earth formations or topography, utility easements, or 
other features which will reasonably be harmful to the safety, health, and 
general welfare of the present or future inhabitants of the partition or 
subdivision and the surrounding areas, shall not be developed unless 
adequate methods are formulated by the subdivider and approved by the 
Director or the Planning Commission to solve the problems created by the 
unsuitable land conditions.   

Response: As detailed in the Flood and Slope Hazard Analysis (Exhibit H) the project site does not 
exhibit or contain unsuitable land conditions. This criterion does not apply. 

 
17.100.90 ACCESS CONTROL GUIDELINES AND COORDINATION  

A.  Notice and coordination with ODOT required. The city will 
coordinate and notify ODOT regarding all proposals for new or 
modified public and private accesses on to Highways 26 and 211.  

B.  It is the city policy to, over time, reduce noncompliance with the 
Oregon Highway Plan Access Management Policy guidelines. 

C.  Reduction of compliance with the cited State standards means that 
all reasonable alternatives to reduce the number of accesses and 
avoid new non-complying accesses will be explored during the 
development review. The methods to be explored include, but are not 
limited to: closure, relocation, and consolidation of access; right-
in/right-out driveways; crossover easements; and use of local streets, 
alleys, and frontage roads.   

Response: The above criterion applies to City processes for noticing and coordinating with ODOT, as 
applicable. This standard is not applicable as the project does not access Highway 26 or 
211 and does not require direct action of the Applicant. The criteria do not apply. 

 
17.100.100 STREETS GENERALLY  

No subdivision or partition shall be approved unless the development has 
frontage or approved access to an existing public street. In addition, all streets 
shall be graded and improved in conformance with the City's construction 
standards, approved by the City Engineer, in accordance with the 
construction plans.   

Page 417 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 37 

A. Street Connectivity Principle. The pattern of streets established 
through land divisions should be connected to: (a) provide safe and 
convenient options for cars, bikes and pedestrians; (b) create a 
logical, recognizable pattern of circulation; and (c) spread traffic over 
many streets so that key streets (particularly U.S. 26) are not 
overburdened.  

Response: The Preliminary Plans illustrate the street network internal to the subdivision and 
establish safe, logical circulation throughout the site. The Street Connectivity Principle is 
met.  

 
B.  Transportation Impact Studies. Transportation impact studies may 

be required by the city engineer to assist the city to evaluate the 
impact of development proposals, determine reasonable and prudent 
transportation facility improvements and justify modifications to the 
design standards. Such studies will be prepared in accordance with 
the following:  

1.  A proposal established with the scope of the transportation 
impact study shall be coordinated with, and agreed to, by 
the city engineer. The study requirements shall reflect the 
magnitude of the project in accordance with accepted 
transportation planning and engineering practices. A 
professional civil or traffic engineer registered in the State of 
Oregon shall prepare such studies.  

2.  If the study identifies level-of-service conditions less than 
the minimum standards established in the Sandy 
Transportation System Plan, improvements and funding 
strategies mitigating the problem shall be considered as part 
of the land use decision for the proposal.  

Response: The Traffic Impact Analysis prepared by a registered professional traffic engineer (Exhibit 
F) is included in the application materials. The scope of the analysis was confirmed with 
the City’s traffic engineer consultant. The requirements are met. 

 
C.  Topography and Arrangement. All streets shall be properly related to 

special traffic generators such as industries, business districts, 
schools, and shopping centers and to the pattern of existing and 
proposed land uses.   

D.  Street Spacing. Street layout shall generally use a rectangular grid 
pattern with modifications as appropriate to adapt to topography or 
natural conditions.  

Response: The Preliminary Plans (Exhibit A) include information which meets the criteria above. The 
streets are arranged in accordance with existing residential activity and a rectangular grid 
pattern is generally used. The criteria are met. 

 
E.  Future Street Plan. Future street plans are conceptual plans, street 

extensions and connections on acreage adjacent to land divisions. 
They assure access for future development and promote a logical, 
connected pattern of streets.  It is in the interest of the city to promote 
a logical, connected pattern of streets. All applications for land 
divisions shall provide a future street plan that shows the pattern of 
existing and proposed future streets within the boundaries of the 
proposed land divisions, proposed connections to abutting 

Page 418 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 38 

properties, and extension of streets to adjacent parcels within a 400 
foot radius of the study area where development may practically 
occur. 

Response: The Preliminary Plans (Exhibit A) include a Conceptual Future Street Plan which meets the 
criteria above. 

 
F.  Connections. Except as permitted under Exemptions, all streets, 

alleys and pedestrian walkways shall connect to other streets within 
the development and to existing and planned streets outside the 
development and to undeveloped properties which have no future 
street plan. Streets shall terminate at other streets or at parks, schools 
or other public land within a neighborhood.   

Where practicable, local roads shall align and connect with other 
roads when crossing collectors and arterials.   

Proposed streets or street extensions shall be located to provide direct 
access to existing or planned transit stops, and existing or planned 
neighborhood activity centers, such as schools, shopping areas and 
parks.   

Response: The Preliminary Plans show local street and pedestrian walkway (sidewalk) connections 
internal to the subdivision. The local streets do not cross any collector or arterial roads 
and there are no exemptions are necessary for the intended street network. 

 
G.  Exemptions.   

1.  A future street plan is not required for partitions of 
residentially zoned land when none of the parcels may be 
redivided under existing minimum density standards.   

2.  Standards for street connections do not apply to freeways 
and other highways with full access control.   

3.  When street connection standards are inconsistent with an 
adopted street spacing standard for arterials or collectors, a 
right turn in/right turn out only design including median 
control may be approved. Where compliance with the 
standards would result in unacceptable sight distances, an 
accessway may be approved in place of a street connection.   

Response: This application does not seek street design exemptions. The criteria do not apply. 
 

17.100.110 STREET STANDARDS AND CLASSIFICATION   

Street standards are illustrated in the figures included at the end of this 
chapter. Functional definitions of each street type are described in the 
Transportation System Plan as summarized below.   

A.  Major arterials are designed to carry high volumes of through traffic, 
mixed with some unavoidable local traffic, through or around the 
city. Major arterials should generally be spaced at 1-mile intervals.   

B.  Minor arterials are designed to collect and distribute traffic from 
major and minor arterials to neighborhood collectors and local 
streets, or directly to traffic destinations. Minor arterials should 
generally be spaced at 1-mile intervals.  

Page 419 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 39 

C.  Residential minor arterials are a hybrid between minor arterial and 
collector type streets that allow for moderate to high traffic volumes 
on streets where over 90% of the fronting lots are residential.     

D.  Collector streets are designed to collect and distribute traffic from 
higher type arterial streets to local streets or directly to traffic 
destinations. Collector streets should generally be spaced at 1/2-mile 
intervals.   

Response:  The project site does not include major or minor arterials, residential minor arterials, or 
collector streets. These standards do not apply. 

 
E.  Local streets are designed to provide direct access to abutting 

property and connect to collector streets. A general spacing of 8-10 
local streets per mile is recommended.   

Response:  The subdivision is accessed via Melissa Avenue, a local street section to the north of the 
property boundary, and a continuous network of local streets allow transportation 
throughout the site. 

 
F.  Cul-de-sacs and dead end streets are discouraged. If deemed 

necessary, cul-de-sacs shall be as short as possible and shall not 
exceed 400 feet in length.  

G.  Public access lanes are designed to provide primary access to a 
limited number of dwellings when the construction of a local street 
is unnecessary.   

H.  Alleys are designed to provide access to multiple dwellings in areas 
where lot frontages are narrow and driveway spacing requirements 
cannot be met.  

Response:  The project site does not include cul-de-sacs, public access lanes, or alleys. These 
standards do not apply. 

 
17.100.120 BLOCKS AND ACCESSWAYS  

A.  Blocks. Blocks shall have sufficient width to provide for two tiers of 
lots at appropriate depths. However, exceptions to the block width 
shall be allowed for blocks that are adjacent to arterial streets or 
natural features.   

B.  Residential Blocks. Blocks fronting local streets shall not exceed 400 
feet in length, unless topographic, natural resource, or other similar 
physical conditions justify longer blocks. Blocks may exceed 400 feet 
if approved as part of a Planned Development, Specific Area Plan, 
adjustment or variance.  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, the residential blocks provide two tiers of lots. Blocks 
front local streets and do not exceed 400 feet in length, except for one instance. The block 
for Street A along the north property line boundary west of Melissa Avenue is ±475 feet. 
This block length cannot be reduced due to the existing adjacent residential block length 
to the north. There is a pedestrian path planned in this northwestern portion of the site 
to enhance mobility in this area. The standards are met. 

 
C.  Commercial Blocks. Blocks located in commercial districts shall not 

exceed 400 feet in length.  

Page 420 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 40 

Response:  This application does not involve commercial districts; the criteria does not apply. 

D.  Pedestrian and Bicycle Access Way Requirements. In any block in a 
residential or commercial district over 600 feet in length, a pedestrian 
and bicycle accessway with a minimum improved surface of 10 feet 
within a 15-foot right-of-way or tract shall be provided through the 
middle of the block. To enhance public convenience and mobility, 
such accessways may be required to connect to cul-de-sacs, or 
between streets and other public or semipublic lands or through 
greenway systems.  

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, this application does not include any blocks greater 
than 600 feet in length. The standard does not apply. 

 
17.100.130 EASEMENTS  

A minimum eight (8) foot public utility easement shall be required along 
property lines abutting a right-of-way for all lots within a partition or 
subdivision. Where a partition or subdivision is traversed by a watercourse, 
drainage way, channel or stream, the land division shall provide a stormwater 
easement or drainage right-of-way conforming substantially with the lines of 
such watercourse, and such further width as determined needed for water 
quality and quantity protection.   

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Subdivision Plat, easements and dedications required along 
property lines abutting a right-of-way will be provided as required. The criterion is met. 

 
17.100.140 PUBLIC ALLEYS  

A.  Public alleys shall have a minimum width of 20 feet.  Structural 
section and surfacing shall conform to standards set by the City 
Engineer.  

B.  Existing alleys may remain unimproved until redevelopment occurs. 
When development occurs, each abutting lot shall be responsible for 
completion of improvements to that portion of the alley abutting the 
property. 

C.  Parking within the alley right-of-way is prohibited except as provided 
in Section 17.100.140(D) below.  

D.  An alley with a minimum width of 28 feet may permit parallel parking 
on one side of the alley only.  

Response:  The application does not include public alleys. The criteria do not apply. 
 

17.100.180 INTERSECTIONS  

A.  Intersections. Streets shall be laid out so as to intersect as nearly as 
possible at right angles. A proposed intersection of two new streets 
at an angle of less than 75 degrees shall not be acceptable. No more 
than two streets shall intersect at any one point unless specifically 
approved by the City Engineer. The city engineer may require left 
turn lanes, signals, special crosswalks, curb extensions and other 
intersection design elements justified by a traffic study or necessary 
to comply with the Development Code.  

B.  Curve Radius. All local and neighborhood collector streets shall have 
a minimum curve radius (at intersections of rights-of-way) of 20 feet, 

Page 421 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 41 

unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. When a local or 
neighborhood collector enters on to a collector or arterial street, the 
curve radius shall be a minimum of 30 feet, unless otherwise 
approved by the City Engineer 

Response:  The Preliminary Plans include information illustrating how the local street system internal 
to the subdivision meets the design requirements. No more than two streets intersect at 
any one point and internal streets meet the minimum curve radius at intersections of 
rights-of-way, as applicable. The criteria are met. 

 
17.100.190 STREET SIGNS  

The subdivider shall pay the cost of street signs prior to the issuance of a 
Certificate of Substantial Completion. The City shall install all street signs and 
upon completion will bill the developer for costs associated with installation. 
In addition, the subdivider may be required to pay for any traffic safety devices 
related to the development. The City Engineer shall specify the type and 
location of the street signs and/or traffic safety devices.   

Response:  This statement is understood. No additional response is necessary. 

17.100.200 STREET SURFACING  

Public streets, including alleys, within the development shall be improved in 
accordance with the requirements of the City or the standards of the Oregon 
State Highway Department. An overlay of asphalt concrete, or material 
approved by the City Engineer, shall be placed on all streets within the 
development. Where required, speed humps shall be constructed in 
conformance with the City's standards and specifications.  

Response:  The statement is understood. No additional response is necessary. 
 

17.100.210 STREET LIGHTING  

A complete lighting system (including, but not limited to: conduits, wiring, 
bases, poles, arms, and fixtures) shall be the financial responsibility of the 
subdivider on all cul-de-sacs, local streets, and neighborhood collector streets. 
The subdivider will be responsible for providing the arterial street lighting 
system in those cases where the subdivider is required to improve an arterial 
street. Standards and specifications for street lighting shall be coordinated 
with the utility and any lighting district, as appropriate.   

Response:  Conceptual locations for street lighting are indicated in the Preliminary Plans. PGE will be 
contacted, and final lighting design elements will be confirmed during the final design 
process, as appropriate. The criterion is met. 

 
17.100.220 LOT DESIGN  

A.  The lot arrangement shall be such that there will be no foreseeable 
difficulties, for reason of topography or other conditions, in securing 
building permits to build on all lots in compliance with the 
Development Code.   

Response:  The Preliminary Subdivision Plat with Setbacks, included in Exhibit A, demonstrates that 
all lots in the subdivision can accommodate future homes which meet the minimum 
setback requirements at the time of future building permit submittal. As shown, each lot 
meets the 7,500 square-foot minimum lot size requirement. The criteria are met. 

Page 422 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 42 

 
B. The lot dimensions shall comply with the minimum standards of the 

Development Code. When lots are more than double the minimum 
lot size required for the zoning district, the subdivider may be 
required to arrange such lots to allow further subdivision and the 
opening of future streets to serve such potential lots.   

Response: As shown on the Preliminary Plans, lot dimensions comply with the minimum dimensions 
and standards of the Development Code. Lots are not larger than twice the minimum lot 
size. The criterion is met. 

 
C. The lot or parcel width at the front building line shall meet the 

requirements of the Development Code and shall abut a public street 
other than an alley for a width of at least 20 feet. A street frontage of 
not less than 15 feet is acceptable in the case of a flag lot division 
resulting from the division of an unusually deep land parcel which is 
of a size to warrant division into not more than two parcels.   

Response: As shown on the Preliminary Plans, each lot complies with the minimum dimensions and 
standards of the Development Code and have proper frontage on a public street. The 
criterion is met. 

 
D. Double frontage lots shall be avoided except where necessary to 

provide separation of residential developments from arterial streets 
or to overcome specific disadvantages of topography or orientation.   

Response: As shown on the Preliminary Plans, the subdivision does not include double-frontage lots. 
The criteria do not apply. 

 
E. Lots shall avoid deriving access from major or minor arterials. When 

driveway access from major or minor arterials may be necessary for 
several adjoining lots, the Director or the Planning Commission may 
require that such lots be served by a common access drive in order to 
limit possible traffic hazards on such streets. Where possible, 
driveways should be designed and arranged to avoid requiring 
vehicles to back into traffic on minor or major arterials.   

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, the lot arrangement demonstrates compliance with 
the requirements of the Development Code. The project site does not contain or connect 
to major or minor arterial streets. The above criterion is met. 

 
17.100.230 WATER FACILITIES  

Water lines and fire hydrants serving the subdivision or partition, and 
connecting the development to City mains, shall be installed to provide 
adequate water pressure to serve present and future consumer demand. The 
materials, sizes, and locations of water mains, valves, service laterals, meter 
boxes and other required appurtenances shall be in accordance with the 
standards of the Fire District, the City, and the State.   

If the city requires the subdivider to install water lines in excess of eight 
inches, the city may participate in the oversizing costs. Any oversizing 
agreements shall be approved by the city manager based upon council policy 
and dependent on budget constraints. If required water mains will directly 
serve property outside the subdivision, the city may enter into an agreement 

Page 423 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 43 

with the subdivider setting forth methods for reimbursement for the 
proportionate share of the cost.    

Response:  As shown on the Preliminary Plans, water infrastructure including conveyance mains, 
lines, and fire hydrants are designed in accordance with applicable standards. This 
criterion is met. 

 
17.100.240 SANITARY SEWERS  

Sanitary sewers shall be installed to serve the subdivision and to connect the 
subdivision to existing mains. Design of sanitary sewers shall take into 
account the capacity and grade to allow for desirable extension beyond the 
subdivision.   

If required sewer facilities will directly serve property outside the subdivision, 
the city may enter into an agreement with the subdivider setting forth 
methods for reimbursement by nonparticipating landowners for the 
proportionate share of the cost of construction.   

Response:  The Preliminary Plans include information illustrating how the project is planned to be 
serviced with sanitary sewer. This infrastructure is planned in accordance with the 
standards of the applicable jurisdictions; therefore, the criterion is met. 

 
17.100.250 SURFACE DRAINAGE AND STORM SEWER SYSTEM  

A.  Drainage facilities shall be provided within the subdivision and to 
connect with off-site drainage ways or storm sewers. Capacity, grade 
and materials shall be by a design approved by the city engineer. 
Design of drainage within the subdivision shall take into account the 
location, capacity and grade necessary to maintain unrestricted flow 
from areas draining through the subdivision and to allow extension 
of the system to serve such areas.  

B.  In addition to normal drainage design and construction, provisions 
shall be taken to handle any drainage from preexisting subsurface 
drain tile. It shall be the design engineer's duty to investigate the 
location of drain tile and its relation to public improvements and 
building construction.   

C.  The roof and site drainage from each lot shall be discharged to either 
curb face outlets (if minor quantity), to a public storm drain or to a 
natural acceptable drainage way if adjacent to the lot.   

Response:  The Preliminary Plans (Exhibit A) and Preliminary Stormwater Report (Exhibit G) include 
information illustrating how stormwater runoff is planned to be managed. The criteria are 
met. 

 
17.100.260 UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  

All subdivisions or major partitions shall be required to install underground 
utilities (including, but not limited to, electrical and telephone wiring). The 
utilities shall be installed pursuant to the requirements of the utility company.   

Response:  The Preliminary Plans include information illustrating how the project is planned to be 
provided with underground utilities. This infrastructure is planned in accordance with the 
standards of the applicable jurisdictions; therefore, the criterion is met. 

 
17.100.270 SIDEWALKS  

Page 424 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 44 

Sidewalks shall be installed on both sides of a public street and in any special 
pedestrian way within the subdivision.  

Response:  The Preliminary Plans show compliance with the local street typical sections in City Code. 
The standard is met. 

 
17.100.280 BICYCLE ROUTES  

If appropriate to the extension of a system of bicycle routes, existing or 
planned, the Director or the Planning Commission may require the 
installation of bicycle lanes within streets. Separate bicycle access ways may 
be required to reduce walking or cycling distance when no feasible street 
connection is available.   

Response:  The project site does not include any existing or planned bicycle routes. The criterion does 
not apply. 

 
17.100.290 STREET TREES  

Where planting strips are provided in the public right-of-way, a master street 
tree plan shall be submitted and approved by the Director. The street tree plan 
shall provide street trees approximately every 30’ on center for all lots.   

Response:  As shown in the Preliminary Plans in Exhibit A, the appropriate number of trees are 
provided on the Street Tree Plan. The criterion is satisfied. 

 
17.100.300 EROSION CONTROL  

Grass seed planting shall take place prior to September 30th on all lots upon 
which a dwelling has not been started but the ground cover has been 
disturbed. The seeds shall be of an annual rye grass variety and shall be sown 
at not less than four pounds to each 1000 square feet of land area.   

Response:  The requirement is understood. No additional response is necessary. 

17.100.310 REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS  

The following improvements shall be installed at no expense to the city, 
consistent with the design standards of Chapter 17.84, except as otherwise 
provided in relation to oversizing.  

A.  Drainage facilities   

B.  Lot, street and perimeter monumentation  

C.  Mailbox delivery units  

D.  Sanitary sewers  

E.  Sidewalks  

F.  Street lights  

G.  Street name signs 

H.  Street trees  

I.  Streets  

J.  Traffic signs  

Page 425 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 45 

K.  Underground communication lines, including broadband (fiber), 
telephone, and cable. Franchise agreements will dictate whether 
telephone and cable lines are required.    

L.  Underground power lines  

M.  Water distribution lines and fire hydrants 

Response:  The above listed improvements are planned to be included in the project design as 
required. The criteria are met. 

CHAPTER 17.102 -  URBAN FORESTRY 

17.102.20 APPLICABILITY  

This chapter applies only to properties within the Sandy Urban Growth 
Boundary that are greater than one acre including contiguous parcels under 
the same ownership.      

A.   General:  No person shall cut, harvest, or remove trees 11 inches DBH 
or greater without first obtaining a permit and demonstrating 
compliance with this chapter. 

1.  As a condition of permit issuance, the applicant shall agree 
to implement required provisions of this chapter and to 
allow all inspections to be conducted.    

2.  Tree removal is subject to the provisions of Chapter 15.44, 
Erosion Control, Chapter 17.56, Hillside Development, and 
Chapter 17.60 Flood and Slope Hazard.  

Response:  As detailed in the Preliminary Plans, the application includes tree removal subject to the 
exception criteria below. Thus, the application is demonstrating compliance with this 
chapter. Tree removal is planned to comply with erosion control provisions of Chapter 
15.44.  As documented in the FSH Analysis (Exhibit H), the provisions of Chapters 17.56 
and 17.60 are not relevant to the site and do not apply. The applicable criteria are 
understood.  

 
B.  Exceptions:  The following tree removals are exempt from the 

requirements of this chapter.  

1.  Tree removal as required by the city or public utility for the 
installation or maintenance or repair of roads, utilities, or 
other structures.    

 
Response:  As detailed in the Preliminary Plans, the application includes tree removal for the 

installation of roads and utilities, including four off-site trees located in the existing public 
right-of-way for Melissa Avenue. Such tree removal is exempt from the requirements of 
this chapter as stated above. As shown on the Preliminary Plans, a tree in the existing 
public right-of-way could potentially be retained upon acceptance of fee-in-lieu for 
improvements to east SE Ponder Lane. 

2.  Tree removal to prevent an imminent threat to public health 
or safety, or prevent imminent threat to public or private 
property, or prevent an imminent threat of serious 
environmental degradation.  In these circumstances, a Type 
I tree removal permit shall be applied for within seven days 
following the date of tree removal. 

Page 426 of 504



 

Bailey Meadows – City of Sandy Updated November 2019 
Land Use Application Page 46 

Response:  The application does not involve tree removal subject to the exception criteria above. 
 
 
IV. Conclusion 
The required findings have been made and this written narrative and accompanying documentation 
demonstrate that the application is consistent with the applicable provisions of the City of Sandy 
Development Code. The evidence in the record is substantial and supports approval of the application.  

Page 427 of 504



 

 

SE Ponder Lane/Future SE Gunderson Road Extension 

 

 

1. Existing Intersection Location 
2. TSP-Identified Alignment 

Page 428 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT V



 

1. Existing Intersection Location 

 

• Intersection not usable for new development given available width, very flat skew angle of 
approach, and topography. 

• Rebuilding a new street and intersection in this location would involve properties that are not 
under control of the applicant or the City of Sandy 

2. TSP-Identified Alignment 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Sight distance limited by horizontal and vertical curves in both directions. Sight distance is 
particularly poor for the future south leg, which would connect to Cascadia Village Drive. 

• Superelevation (banking of the roadway around the curve) is very steep and makes this location 
problematic for an intersection due to difficult turning and crossing movements across the steep 
curve. 

 

Looking South 

Looking North 

Page 429 of 504



Page 430 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT W



Page 431 of 504



Page 432 of 504



61 62 63 646056 5857 59

SE PONDER LANE

AP1-27

A
V

E
N

U
E

 2

GUNDERSON ROAD

S
E

 A
R

L
E

T
H

A
 C

O
U

R
T

HIG
HW

AY 
21

1

STREET D

TYPICAL GUNDERSON ROAD HALF STREET SECTIONA

EASEMENT LEGEND KEYED NOTES

FO
R

ES
TR

Y
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

N
A

TU
R

A
L 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
E

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

B
A

IL
E

Y
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

S
A

N
D

Y
, O

R
E

G
O

N

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

P1-27

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 O

F
F

S
IT

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

Exhibit 1 
Page 1 of 1

Page 433 of 504

vun
Draft



Exhibit 2 
Page 1 of 1

Page 434 of 504



Todd Mobley <todd@lancastermobley.com>

Bailey Meadows - Trip Distribution w/ Gunderson Connection
Todd Mobley <todd@lancastermobley.com> Thu, Dec 5, 2019 at 10:10 AM
To: "Robinson, Michael C." <MRobinson@schwabe.com>
Cc: Cody Bjugan <cody@investpdx.com>, Monty Hurley <monty@aks-eng.com>, Chris Goodell <chrisg@aks-eng.com>,
Marie Holladay <holladaym@aks-eng.com>

Mike,

This email is to explain the changes in trip distribution that we expect to see as a result of the Gunderson connection. A
full TIS addendum is currently being prepared and will be submitted as part of the UGB expansion application.

The Gunderson connection to Highway 211 is expected to serve trips to and from the east, south, and west. Trips to and
from the north are not likely to use the new connection. In addition, some of the existing neighborhood traffic from
Melissa will divert to the south, through the Bailey Meadows site, to Highway 211.

Below is an excerpt from Figure 2 of the TIS, which is already in the record for the subdivision application. It shows the
overall trip overall distribution pattern and is referenced in the sections below:

To & From the East
It is expected that the 15% of site trips previously assigned to Dubarko Road to the east will all use the Gunderson
connection. Turning left onto Highway 211 at the new intersection will have significantly lower delay than turning left or
crossing Highway 211 at Dubarko.
Contribution: 15% via Gunderson

To & From the South
A total of 10% of the trips are expected to be to and from the south, and all of these trips will use the Gunderson
connection to Highway 211, since that will be a much more direct route.
Contribution: 10% via Gunderson  

To & From the West

Page 435 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT X



Trips to and from the west (30%) were assigned primarily to 362nd, as this is the quickest route to shopping destinations
as well as Highway 26 west of Sandy. Travel time studies show that the route using Dubarko Road to 362nd Avenue is
identical in time to the route using Highway 211 to 362nd Avenue. Therefore, the 30% is split evenly via Melissa to the
north and Gunderson to the south.
Contribution: 15% via Gunderson  

Total percentage of site trips using Gunderson = 40%, or 378 of the site's 944 trips per day

Rerouted Existing Trips
Since 40% of the Bailey Meadows trips are expected to use the Gunderson connection to Highway 211, it is expected that
a similar, although slightly lower percentage of the existing neighborhood traffic would also use Gunderson. Since the
existing neighborhood is north of the project site, the use of Gunderson could decrease from 40% to approximately 30%.

30% of the existing 1160 ADT on Melissa would reroute via Gunderson, or 348 trips per day.

In summary, the table below shows the total daily traffic volumes to the north (via Melissa Avenue) and to the south (via
Gunderson Road) with the new street connection in place.

Daily Traffic Volumes
Melissa
Avenue

Gunderson
Road

Existing neighborhood traffic 1160 0

Existing neighborhood traffic w/ Gunderson 812 348

Bailey Meadows site trips with Gunderson 566 378

Total Daily Volume with Gunderson 1378 726

It should also be noted that we know from traffic count data, that the existing neighborhood served by Melissa Avenue
generates 27% fewer trips than the standard ITE trip rates. It is expected that Bailey Meadows will have similar trip
characteristics, but for a worst-case analysis, it was assumed that Bailey Meadows trips would be generated at the higher
ITE rate.

-Todd

Todd E. Mobley, PE

Principal

321 SW 4th Avenue, Suite 400 | Portland, OR 97204
P: 503-248-0313 C: 503-319-9811
Website: lancastermobley.com

Offices: Portland, OR | Bend, OR

Page 436 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/place/321+SW+4th+Ave+%23400,+Portland,+OR+97204/@45.520844,-122.6777965,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x54950a069cc17095:0xab867e6397847fa3!8m2!3d45.520844!4d-122.6756078
http://lancastermobley.com/


Page 437 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT Y



Page 438 of 504



Page 439 of 504



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Re: Bailey Meadows Subdivision (File No. 19-023 Sub/Var/Tree)
1 message

Kristine Hendrix <Kristine.Hendrix@pgn.com> Wed, Sep 18, 2019 at 7:43 AM
To: "emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us" <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Dear Emily,

 

We haven’t found any conflicts related to your project. There is a PGE project
located on SE Ponder Ln. When the developer is ready to start the project please
have them call PGE Service Coordinators at 503.323.6700.

 
Thank you,

Kristine Hendrix| Sr. Design Coordinator

Work Hours 6:30 am to 4:00 pm M – TH  & 6:30 am to 10:30 am Fri

Portland General Electric

1705 NE Burnside, Gresham, OR 97030

| (: (503) 669-5214 | 7: (503) 669-5229 | * kristine.hendrix.@pgn.com

 

Bailey Meadows Subdivision (File No 19-023 Sub-Var-Tree - City of Sandy.pdf
356K

Page 440 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/1705+NE+Burnside,+Gresham,+OR+97030?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:kristine.hendrix.@pgn.com
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=95a4e5548c&view=att&th=16d44d3c111067e4&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT Z



 

Page 441 of 504



Oregon
 Kate Brown, Governor

Department of Transportation
Region 1 Headquarters

123 NW Flanders Street
Portland, Oregon  97209

(503) 731.8200
FAX (503) 731.8259

October 4th, 2019                                ODOT #8702

ODOT Response 
Project Name: Bailey Meadows Subdivision - 
Ponder Lane

Applicant: Allied Homes & Development

Jurisdiction: City of Sandy Jurisdiction Case #: 19-023 SUB/VAR/TREE
Site Address: No situs   SE Ponder Lane, Hwy 

211, Sandy, OR
Legal Description: 02S 04E 23
Tax Lot(s): 00800

State Highway: OR 211 and US 26 _____

The site of this proposed land use action is in the vicinity of OR 211 and US 26. ODOT has 
permitting authority for these facilities and an interest in ensuring that this proposed land use is 
compatible with their safe and efficient operation. 

COMMENTS/FINDINGS

The application is for a 100 lot subdivision just west of the Ponder Ln intersection with OR 211. 
The applicant proposes to gain emergency access to Ponder Ln with gates located at the access 
points. ODOT recommends that the city require emergency vehicle turning templates for the 
Ponder Ln/OR 211 intersection. Based on ODOT review of the turning templates, there may need 
to be modifications to the intersection to accommodate emergency vehicles.

ODOT anticipates that traffic from the development may have an impact on the following 
intersections: OR 211/Dubarko Rd, US 26/Rueben Ln and US 26/362nd Ave. The traffic analysis 
for the subdivision did not include these intersections, so ODOT is unable to evaluate the impact 
the development would have on the state highway system. In order to determine if state highway 
facilities are adequate to serve the proposed development, ODOT recommends the city require 
the applicant to update the traffic analysis to include the above referenced intersections.

ODOT RECOMMENDED LOCAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The applicant shall submit a traffic impact analysis to assess the impacts of the proposed 
use on the State highway system. The analysis must be conducted by a Professional 
Engineer registered in Oregon. Contact the ODOT Traffic representative identified 
below for scoping.

The applicant shall provide emergency vehicle turning templates for the OR 211/Ponder 
Ln intersection. Improvements to the intersection will be required if necessary as 
determined by ODOT.

Please send a copy of the Notice of Decision including conditions of approval to:
ODOT_R1_DevRev@odot.state.or.us

Development Review Planner: Marah Danielson 503.731.8258, 
marah.b.danielson@odot.state.or.u
s

Traffic Contact: Avi Tayar, P.E. 503.731.8221
Abraham.tayar@odot.state.or.us

 

Page 442 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT AA



CITY OF SANDY PARKS AND TRAILS BOARD MEETING MINUTES OCTOBER 9, 2019 
 
Present: Susan Drew, Don Robertson, Michael Weinberg, Kathleen Walker.  Makoto Lane – park board 
member - to be.   
Staff: Sarah Richardson, James Cramer 
 
No public comment 
 
Review of Meeting Minutes: 
Correction: Don Robertson’s comment regarding “national” parks should be “Ashland” Parks. 
Noxious “weed” instead of “week”.   
Mike moved to approve the minutes as corrected and Don seconded.  Minutes approved unanimously. 
 
Bailey Meadows Presentation – James Cramer 
Need a recommendation from Parks Board on park land dedication verses fee-in-lieu of land dedication.  
This plan is being presented to Planning Commission November 14th.  We reviewed this development 
preliminarily last year and recommended that they incorporate the park land that was identified in the 
1997 Master Plan.  The development proposes to construct 100 single family homes.  If we were to 
accept the in-lieu fee, it would be $310,000.  Land dedication would be 1.29 acres.   
 
The board discussed the existence of community park in the area in the 1997 Parks Master Plan.  A 
community park land is intended to have things like ball fields and this parcel has relatively flat ground 
that would meet this need.  A walk to the closest park for most of the development property is over ½ 
mile (Knollwood) which does not meet our Master Plan intent of providing a park within ¼ to ½ mile of 
developments.  Access to Bornstedt requires crossing a highway and is about ½ mile away.  There is also 
concern that we do not have a nearby willing seller to acquire park land for this development.  In 
addition, land acquisition is generally a 10 year undertaking, assuming we can find a willing seller. 
 
Don moved to remain with the Board’s original position of land dedication of 1.29 acres because we are 
deficient in parkland in this area.  100 houses would put undue strain on existing facilities and create 
unsafe routes to Bornstedt Park.  We don’t have a willing seller to use the fee in lieu of, to buy land for 
the park.  Mike seconded the motion.  Unanimous vote yes. 
 
Discussion about the proposed development on existing trees.  Most of he trees on the north and south 
side would remain except for Melissa access and some R/W for Gunderson where trees would have to 
be taken.   
 
Park SDC fees are $3,717 per house.  $2500 per apartment unit. 
This development has no immediate connections to Tickle Creek – those would come off of end of 
Rachael and off of Solso.  
 
Sandy Crest Presentation: This is a preliminary proposal stage for a Planned Unit Development (PUD).  A 
PUD requires 25% open space.  James explained that the land is zoned for single family (7500 ft2 lots) 
and instead they are proposing much smaller lots.  One option is for them to provide inlieu fee rather 
than dedicate the land.  Criteria for park or open space land dedication like slope exist.  Developers can 
do an HOA that maintains the park property, dedicate the park and open space to the City, or the 
developer can take care of it or deed restricted private easement for the homeowner.  Lots of discussion 
about PUDs as it related to parks and open space.  Discussed concerns about HOA’s folding after awhile 

Page 443 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT BB



and the City having to acquire the property.  Also concerned that private easements for homeowners 
can get fenced off, or get developed with outdoor facilities, gardens, sheds, gazebos, etc. instead of 
being public open space. 

 Propose they give us developable park property. 

 Need to have trail development and trail access to the Tickle Creek Area.   

 Consider giving land on east end adjacent to undevelopable open space along Tickle Creek.   
Motion made by Don to move the three points forward to planning in pre-app process.  Susan seconded 
motion.  Motion carried unanimous. 
 
Proposed Jewelberry Meadows 
Proposed 20 units along Jewelberry east of Penny Avenue.  The development would have access from 
Agnes.  Park would be at Sandy Bluff which is less than ½ mile away.  This would give us $62,600 of fee in 
lieu of or 0.26 acres parkland dedication.  Conceptual future park location is further north.  Don 
motioned to accept fee in lieu of and Michael seconded it.  Motion carried unanimous.   
 
Old Business:  No old business. 
 
Staff Updates:  Parks Master Plan was signed by both parties and next stage is gathering documents.  
There will be a technical advisory board formed.  The Parks Board will be involved as stakeholders.  
Nancy is asking for two park board members to be part of the Technical Advisory Committee.  Mike 
moved that Kathleen and Don be the two members.  Susan seconded it.  Motion carried unanimous.   
 
Shade Structure Update:  Bids for shade structures came in.  Bid for two covered shade structures at 
Bornstedt Park is $60,591.  Need input on stain colors, roof color and stone type.  Propose using similar 
materials to the Meinig Park project same rock and same wood stain – if they used forest green roof, 
instead use hunter green.   
 
Bids for dog park $25,000 for larger and $23,000 for smaller one.  Still need engineering costs.  Sarah will 
meet with contractor for next meeting.  We have about $21,000 in the donation account.  Suggest we 
consider using interest funds from Parks SDC and fee in-lieu of accounts.  Sarah will check with Kelly, 
Jordan and Tyler on that.  If we cannot do both, the consensus was to do the larger one where we 
already have seating. 
 
To Do: Sarah will ensure Makota’s assignment is on the Council agenda.   
 
We need to clarify that planning proposals are going directly to Sarah (in addition to Tanya) to ensure 
timely communication. 
 
9 pm end of meeting. 

Page 444 of 504



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Bailey's Meadows Possible Gunderson Rd Connection to OR 211

DANIELSON Marah B <Marah.B.DANIELSON@odot.state.or.us> Tue, Nov 19, 2019 at 11:13 AM
To: "Emily Meharg (emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us)" <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>, "Kelly O'Neill Jr." <koneill@ci.sandy.or.us>,
"monty@aks-eng.com" <monty@aks-eng.com>
Cc: TAYAR Abraham * Avi <Abraham.TAYAR@odot.state.or.us>, BOLEN Glen A <Glen.A.BOLEN@odot.state.or.us>,
RODRIGUEZ Myriam * Marcela <Marcela.RODRIGUEZ@odot.state.or.us>, LAM Canh T <Canh.T.LAM@odot.state.or.us>,
ODOT_R1_DevRev <ODOT_R1_DevRev@odot.state.or.us>

Hi Emily, Kelly and Monte,
I wanted to follow up on our meeting last month regarding to possible Gunderson Rd connection to OR 211
for the proposed Bailey’s subdivision. After following up with the ODOT R1 Technical Center, ODOT has
determined that the applicant can use 50mph as the design speed. At our meeting, ODOT may have given
the impression that we would be willing to process design exceptions prior to the land use application being
submitted to provide the city with some confidence that the highway improvements would be able to be
permitted by ODOT. Given the amount of effort and time the design exception will take for the applicant as
well as ODOT staff, ODOT will not be able to process the design exceptions before a land use application
has been submitted to the city. Instead, the applicant can work with ODOT staff to obtain “design concept
acceptance” for the proposed highway improvements. As Avi and I will be on vacation from November 20th

to December 5th, please contact Marcela Rodriguez if you have any technical questions for ODOT staff. I
don’t anticipate that the land use application will be submitted during this time, but if it does as part of our
regular land use review process the land use application should be sent to odot_r1_devrev@odot.state.or.
us.
 
Thank you,
 
Marah Danielson, Senior Planner
ODOT R1 Development Review Program
(503) 731-8258
marah.b.danielson@odot.state.or.us
 
 
 

Page 445 of 504

mailto:odot_r1_devrev@odot.state.or.us
mailto:marah.b.danielson@odot.state.or.us
emeharg
Text Box
Exhibit CC



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

File Number - 19-023 SUB/VAR/TREE

Paul Owen <paul.owen@vanport-intl.com> Sat, Sep 14, 2019 at 7:16 PM
To: "planning@ci.sandy.or.us" <planning@ci.sandy.or.us>
Cc: "jandpowen@yahoo.com" <jandpowen@yahoo.com>, "pauldowen65@outlook.com" <pauldowen65@outlook.com>

Comments on File Number – 19-023 SUB/VAR/TREE

 

Comments:

1. Pleased with the lot size of 7500’ or larger.
2. Pleased with road size of 50’ and set backs.

Concerns:

1. Only 1 access point on Melissa Avenue.
a. Melissa is already a busy street, steep, and limited sightlines at Dubarko due to trees and parked cars.
b. Melissa should be considered a secondary access.
c. A primary access to Hwy 211 is needed, for emergency vehicles and access during imclement weather.
d. Melissa is steep with limited sightlines and dangerous during bad weather.  Adding 1000 cars per day is

asking for multiple accidents per day.
e. If the city is to approve this without concern for our comments we suggest connecting Solso drive to add

another access point, and put a 3 way stop at the bottom of Melissa and Dubarko.  Otherwise you will see
car and pedestrian accidents increase.

2. With the addition of 100 homes plus the existing Nicholas Glen homes, where are the community parks.
a. The city has required Sandy Bluff, Idleman, and other developments to add parks.  I see nothing here.
b. Highly recommend a park be added in some form.

 

Without a secondary access road and additional park land we are not in agreement of this development.

If the solution is to reduce lot size, we against this as well.

Sandy has to much high density housing at this time.

 

Cordially,

Paul and Jolette Owen

37189 Rachael Drive

 

 

Page 446 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT DD



City of Sandy 

Planning Division 

Sandy, OR 

 

Re: Proposed Bailey Meadows Subdivision 

 

City of Sandy, 

I own the home located at 37506 Rachael Drive (re: tax lot 6100).  I purchased the home in early 2018 

knowing full well someday there would be homes built on the property behind my home.  The proposed 

Bailey Meadows appears to be an ill-conceived subdivision created with no regard to the impact of the 

surrounding existing homes or community.  I did attend the AKS meeting held on September 18, 2018.  I 

have the following concerns. 

Melissa Avenue the only access in or out of the development 

As proposed the development is an island of approximately 100 homes to be built with only a single 

existing residential street (Melissa Ave) to access the subdivision.  This means approximately 200 

automobiles enter/leave the subdivision using an existing residential street not designed for additional 

traffic.  With automobiles parked in front of the homes on Melissa Ave, the street is not wide enough to 

safely allow 2 way traffic.  When two opposite direction automobiles meet one moves over to allow the 

other auto to proceed.  The street is marginally designed to accommodate the traffic of the current homes 

it was built to support, again it is the only access in or out of our neighborhood.   

A major additional safety concern is all construction vehicles will only have access the subdivision using 

Melissa Ave. 

Sandy is a bedroom community with a large percentage of its working population commuting out of the 

town to work.   Not only will Melissa Ave be impacted with the additional traffic, Dubarko will be 

significantly impacted by the additional traffic.  Melissa or Dubarko are not designed to accommodate 

more than the current traffic they support.  

Plans to extend the Melissa Avenue into the subdivision 

This impacts me personally.  My property is at the corner of Melissa Ave and Rachael Dr.  The person I 

talked to at the AKS meeting, could not provide me with a concept plan of how Mellissa Ave will be 

“punched” through into the development.  He said the construction and plans would be by the City of 

Sandy.  

My home/property (and the home across from me on Mellissa) is on a hill as is where Mellissa Ave will go 

into the subdivision.  The subdivision property is substantially drops lower just at my home’s property line, 

hence when Melissa Ave goes into the subdivision it will be considerably lower than my property.   I would 

like to see a concept plan of the extension of Melissa into the subdivision to understand its impact to my 

property.  This includes where my property line actually is on Melissa Ave as it appears this was not a 

concern of AKS. 

 

Thank you, 

Paul Savage 

 

Page 447 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT EE



Page 448 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT FF



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Bailey meadows
1 message

Tiffany Harris <tiffyann18@gmail.com> Fri, Sep 27, 2019 at 8:43 AM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Good morning. I just wanted to reach out and be heard like a lot of my neighbors. I live off of Melissa road, on Rachael
drive. I have a major concern with all the traffic coming up Melissa road. My family and I love to go for walks and bike
rides almost daily. With all that extra traffic on Melissa, I won't feel safe having my kids and myself doing these walks
anymore. This project is a safety issue for my family. On another note my kids play out front of our home. If the entrance
to your project is blocking one way out of Rachael, the cars will have to go the other way on Rachael. More traffic on my
road. Still putting my kids at risk of getting hit, by unhappy neighbors, angry, late to work. Anger makes people speed
more. So please reconsider this project or find a different route. The safety of children is truly the most important thing.  
 THANK YOU FOR LISTENING 
HAVE A GREAT DAY. 

Page 449 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT GG



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

MELISSA AVENUE

Todd Cooper <OREGONTCS@live.com> Fri, Sep 27, 2019 at 1:36 PM
To: "emeharg@cityofsandy.com" <emeharg@cityofsandy.com>

Dear Ms. Meharg,

I am writing to you as a concerned home owner located at 18190 Melissa Avenue, in Sandy Oregon.  I am extremely
concerned for what will certainly be a public traffic safety issue on the road here.

Currently there are many speeding vehicles that fly up and down the road here….as there is a steep hill.

I have been employed in the business of Traffic Control for what is now 23 years. Melissa Avenue is a very steeply
inclined roadway, and sadly many current residents put their feet to the floor and speed UP the hill to get to their homes---
-and they are in violation of posted speeds as it is. I have seen and experienced this since residing here about ten years
now.  There are currently several young families with children and pets residing on Melissa Avenue currently. Many
drivers race down the hill as well….and the cross street of Solso exists as well.

I am hoping that the proposal to make Melissa Avenue the ONLY access point to a new subdivision will be reconsidered
and summarily dismissed. Perhaps other access points to this new subdivision could be more safely utilized? I will
suggest either a “LOOP” onto and off of 211, or on out to 362nd; thereby maintaining public safety.

 

Has anyone used any traffic engineering volume studies onto Dubarko? There might well be a need to install a traffic light
on Dubarko if the current proposal is allowed to go through. I’m sure there is a better solution to use other than Melissa
Avenue. Adding 1,000 vehicles daily on Melissa Avenue is simply a very bad idea.

 

Thank you for your time and attention in this matter.

 

Sincerely,

 

Todd Cooper

oregontcs@live.com

18190 Melissa Avenue

Sandy, Oregon 97055

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

Page 450 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/18190+Melissa+Avenue?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:oregontcs@live.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/18190+Melissa+Avenue+%0D%0A+Sandy,+Oregon+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/18190+Melissa+Avenue+%0D%0A+Sandy,+Oregon+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT HH



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Bailey Meadows Subdivision
1 message

Tom Newell <tom.newell@live.com> Fri, Sep 27, 2019 at 4:17 PM
To: "emeharg@cityofsandy.com" <emeharg@cityofsandy.com>

Hi Emily…..

 

I would like to add my concern regarding the above proposed project.

 

WOW, I had no idea that Melissa Avenue would be the main arterial street used by these (? 100 ?) homes.  I thought for
sure Ponder would be developed for that load.

 

Also, is it correct that Solso Drive will also be ‘punched’ through to provide emergency services access ?  And would it
then become a through-street ?

 

I could not attend the 9/18 meeting, but hope to be at the 10/28th.

 

Is there a way for me to formally file my objections to this proposed subdivision ?

 

Thank You,

 

Tom Newell

 

18007 Rachael Dr

Sandy

503-477-2911

tom.newell@live.com

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

Page 451 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/18007+Rachael+Dr+%0D%0A+Sandy?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/18007+Rachael+Dr+%0D%0A+Sandy?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:tom.newell@live.com
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT II



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Prosposed "Bailey Meadows" development
1 message

Cary Mallon <cary.mallon@gmail.com> Sat, Sep 28, 2019 at 10:06 AM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Hello Emily,

My name is Cary Mallon and am writing in opposition to the proposal of the Bailey Meadows development.  I have lived at
the corner of Melissa and Rachael since 2007.  While we have recognized that the future might mean development to the
south of us, we have never imagined the specifics proposed in this project.  
Mainly, my objection is adding 100 homes to be served by a road system that is already (by city standards) overloaded. 
The plans here basically call for the world's biggest cul de sac, which is a design now disdained by many planners
because of it's dead end nature.  The only conduit to reach this area for cars, school buses, emergency vehicles, and
construction equipment  is Melissa Ave.  Melissa Ave, which I know the city would say is wide enough for two way traffic,
really functions like a one lane logging road with turnouts.  Drivers do not feel comfortable passing each other there when
there are cars parked on both sides of the road.  We routinely wait for each other to pass through the spots with cars on
both sides.  
It is my opinion that the property in question should be denied development approval without access to Hwy 211.  Really,
the 'emergency' access should be Melissa ave, and the main access should be Hwy 211.  I understand that there are
complications making that access difficult, but the project should not be approved until that way is cleared.  AND, then it is
on. the city to improve access to other residential areas along 211 for travelers who are not in cars!
A secondary objection is allowing the project to go forward without park space included.  The city should not allow any
project to 'buy off' the park requirement.  
To conclude,  I am vehemently opposed to Bailey Meadows.  
Thanks for reading,
Cary

Page 452 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT JJ



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

extension of melissa ave to proposed sudivision
1 message

Lonnie McVey <lonniemcvey@gmail.com> Sat, Sep 28, 2019 at 10:48 AM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

This is unacceptable for many reasons. As a resident of this neighborhood for over 15 yrs I believe this is not safe.
Melissa is closed due to weather occasionally. Should we add more homes and traffic that would be impacted by this.No 
police or fire access during slick conditions? Does this sound like proper planning.  The safety of kids walking up, down
and across our streets with 900 more car trips per day to deal with. Picture dump trucks, equipment , paving contractors
etc using Melissa to access this development causing congestion, road damage etc.as well as safety problems. Please
access this site from the hiway only. An extension of Melissa will be used as a bypass as well as access to the  site. 
thanks Lonnie Mcvey  

Page 453 of 504

http://etc.as/
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT KK



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

RE: New proposed Bailey Meadows Subdivision
1 message

john.caroldick <john.caroldick@gmail.com> Sun, Sep 29, 2019 at 5:45 PM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Hello Emily ,
We are among many neighbors in the Nicholas Glen Subdivision that are very concerned about the  new proposed
subdivision Bailey Meadows. Nicholas Glen has only one access in and out of the area, which is Melissa ave.  If this new
subdivision goes in, the developers plan to use Melissa for entering and exiting. This will add approximately 944
additional car trips a day . We feel that adding any traffic to Melissa ave will be too much. It will need to handle cars from
170 homes in Nicholas Glen and 100 homes in Bailey Meadows. This arrangement would be very unsafe for children
living on Melissa and impossible for all residences to leave the area in an emergency. We are very upset that Nicholas
Glen has only had one access in and out of our area as long as we have lived here (12years). This may be a good time to
look into this problem also.
John and Carol Dick
18255 Grey Ave
Sandy or 97055
503-449-0927
Email-  john.caroldick@yahoo.com    

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Page 454 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/18255+Grey+Ave+Sandy+or+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/18255+Grey+Ave+Sandy+or+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:john.caroldick@yahoo.com
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT LL



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Use of Melissa Street in Nicholas Glen neighborhood.
1 message

Marilyn Siewell <oreborn36@gmail.com> Tue, Oct 1, 2019 at 1:53 AM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Dear Emily Meharg:

I am very concerned as is my daughter, who recently moved in with me, on go do not want this to happen. Our neighbors
are  a mixture of young children who ride their bikes , parents with baby strollers and elderly who go for walks each day,
feeling safe when doing so. This lifestyle would be gone for us, who are home owners and love our space, peace, and
quiet and safety factors. If used for your proposal, the street would only go  to Debarko and then you would have to turn
West or East , through two more neighborhoods before getting to town. Please rethink this plan. There must be a better
solution suich as via 211.  

Thankyou,

Marilyn Siewell
Treena Siewell

Page 455 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT MM



Page 456 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT NN



Page 457 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT OO



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

New Subdivision Concerns
1 message

Susan Hebb <susan.hebb@yahoo.com> Tue, Oct 1, 2019 at 7:27 PM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Hello - my name is Susan Hebb and I am a homeowner on Reich Ct., off Dubarko in Sandy.  I recently became aware of
the proposed new subdivision of 100 homes being built nearby.  I wanted to share some concerns that I have in regards
to this new development. 

While the development itself is probably not up for approval or debate with the public, I want to share my concerns about
the size of a new subdivision being built.  Sandy is a wonderful small city and I'd like to keep it that way. There has
already been a tremendous amount of growth and change that has occurred with housing as well as businesses over the
last few years in Sandy.  While I realize it's not in the best interest of cities to remain stagnant, it's critical to look at the
growth carefully so the City of Sandy does not lose it's special small town feel.  I specifically do not live in Gresham
because it's become way to big.  In addition, I'm concerned about the impact this development will have on our already
stretched infrastructure of water and sewer services, schools, and fire and police departments.  

It's my understanding that the entrance and exit to this subdivision has been proposed to be solely through Melissa
Avenue.  This is not a safe or satisfactory consideration.  It's been estimated that an additional 944 car trips per day will
be created from this new subdivision.  Dubarko is already a busy street.  Many Sandy citizens walk, run, bike, hike and
enjoy the quiet beauty of this neighborhood.  I'm very concerned about the safety of individuals, families, pets, and wildlife
with the proposed amount of additional cars going by every day.  Additionally, that amount of traffic would create  pollution
and health concerns for those walking and enjoying the Tickle Creek Trail.   

It makes much more sense for cars to enter this new subdivision off Highway 211.  Using Highway 211 would allow cars
to get to the subdivision quickly since the speed limit is higher than it would be using Dubarko and Melissa.  If Melissa
Avenue is the main access, I'm concerned about individuals being frustrated with how long it takes to get to the new
subdivision and the low speed limit.  This may cause some to speed on Dubarko and up Melissa.  In addition, having cars
use Highway 211 would create less pollution for those enjoying walking and The Tickle Creek Trail.  Also citizens would
feel safer continuing to walk and exercise along Dubarko and off Melissa with the cars using Highway 211 instead of
Melissa as the entry point.  

I plan to attend the planning meeting on October 28th to continue to share my concerns over the proposal of using
Melissa Avenue as the access point for this new subdivision.  Please consider using Highway 211 as the entry for this
new development.

Thank you for your consideration.  

Page 458 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT PP



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Proposed Subdivision off Melissa Ave
1 message

Dawn Allen <wunderwuman1022@gmail.com> Tue, Oct 1, 2019 at 8:06 PM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

To Whom it May Concern:

We currently live on Melissa Ave and have concerns with the addition of the new homes while only having Melissa Ave as
the only access point into both the current neighborhood as well as the proposed additional neighborhood. With the
current neighborhood population, each day we hear and witness multiple vehicles driving at high speeds both up and
down Melissa Ave and an increase of homes and drivers would only make this worse. We have witnessed multiple near
collisions at Melissa Ave and the stop sign at Solso Dr. Additionally, our house has already been hit several times by out
of control drivers. We are also concerned about an increase of traffic noise that would be caused by an increased number
of vehicles driving up and down Melissa Ave each day and by the decrease in home value, for those of us that live on
Melissa Ave, that is likely to follow the building of the new neighborhood. 

We are also concerned about the neighborhood children. When it snows or is icy and school buses are on Snow Routes
they do not drive up the hill on Melissa Ave, which means children would be required to walk up/down Melissa Ave to the
snow route bus stop on Dubarko or their parents would have to risk the drive. This is dangerous for the children as well as
the drivers that are already on a treacherous hill. Another dangerous issue is each year when it snows or is icy we
witness many abandoned cars at the bottom of the hill being left on Dubarko. With more traffic means the likelihood of
more cars being abandoned and risk being hit. 

In the last decade in the City of Sandy we have seen the congestion increase exponentially as our roads have become
overwhelmed with traffic. An increase of homes and no new additional roads is only going to compound this issue.

If this new development does go forward we would suggest a minimum of one more road in to and out of the
neighborhood be added to account for the increase in traffic.  In addition to this, installing speed bumps on Melissa Ave to
slow down speeding traffic. 

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Dawn and Jordan Allen

Page 459 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT QQ



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Baily Meadows Subdivision concern
1 message

Dave Meeker <meekerd1@hotmail.com> Tue, Oct 1, 2019 at 8:35 PM
To: "emeharg@cityofsandy.com" <emeharg@cityofsandy.com>

As a 20 year resident in Nicolas Glen neighbor hood I think this new subdivision on Ponder lane
should in no way come through Melissa Ave. I think all traffic for this new 100 home subdivision
should only inter and exit on Highway 211. I also think if they had both Melissa and 211 access that
most people in the new subdivision would use Melissa as the shortest way to highway 26. This
would overload our neighbor hood. I could not imagine the construction trucks (Cement trucks as
worst case) going up and down Melissa (Very steep road) to begin with, then the traffic would
double the capacity that the local neighbor hood roads they were designed for. Is that developer
going to come back in 10-15 years and maintain our overloaded streets…..I don't think they care!
 What about the traffic on Dubarko Rd, going right past the play ground every day, with the kids
playing there. Our neighbor hood is fairly quiet and the Tickle creek trail system extremely pleasant
to walk our dog and for others to walk, jog, kids ride bikes on the trial. I don't want to lose the small
town feel that we have in our neighbor hood. All the extra traffic will ruin our neighbor hood.
I strongly say NO Melissa Ave access.
 
 
Dave Meeker
18198 Grey Ave
Sandy OR

Sent from Outlook

Page 460 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/18198+Grey+Ave+%0D%0A+Sandy+OR?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/18198+Grey+Ave+%0D%0A+Sandy+OR?entry=gmail&source=g
http://aka.ms/weboutlook
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT RR



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Bailey Meadows subdivision 
1 message

Carol Hassebroek <kingfritz1@live.com> Tue, Oct 1, 2019 at 10:53 PM
To: "emeharg@cityofsandy.com" <emeharg@cityofsandy.com>

Letter of concern,

   Please dont let this subdivision go forward.
The traffic impact will make this side of Sandy miserable. I live further south on Trubel rd, & traffic is already terrible. 211
has backups almost  to Dubarko now at peak times, holiday weekends etc.. It is not uncommon to wait thru 3 or 4 light
cycles at 26 & 211 from the south.
  Many people bypass the 211 hill into town,& drive thru 25 mph neighborhoods on Dubarko. Tupper, Sandy Heights,
Bluff. Your making my hometown dangerous, & unattractive to spend time in. I'm only 2 miles from Town,& prefer to drive
10 to Estacada , for dining, shopping, & entertainment . It's a much nicer drive, not sitting at backups. 
 There needs to be a bypass installed or 4 lane roads with turn lanes, to keep drivers from using neighborhoods as
detours around 211, 26, Bluff, Kelso, Trubel, etc.. 
 Come up with a solution BEFORE anymore homes, townhouses, apts,are built . Fix the infrastructure , widen 211.
   I went to high school in Sandy in the 70s. Same roads as now. The population has more then doubled. Recreational 
traffic is  heavy from Thurs. - Sunday. Fix the flow, stop the backups, then add more developments. If developers had to
fix the current problem before 1 more dwelling is built,  the city would be better off. 

 Sincerely,

Carol Hassebroek 
39400 SE TRUBEL  RD 
Sandy,Or. 

Sent via the Samsung Galaxy S8+, an AT&T 5G Evolution capable smartphone

Page 461 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/39400+SE+TRUBEL+RD+%0D%0A+Sandy,Or?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/39400+SE+TRUBEL+RD+%0D%0A+Sandy,Or?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/39400+SE+TRUBEL+RD+%0D%0A+Sandy,Or?entry=gmail&source=g
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT SS



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Objection to proposed residential subdivision plans-Ponder Lane and Melissa Ave.
1 message

karen higgins <khiggins.chwb@hotmail.com> Wed, Oct 2, 2019 at 10:16 AM
To: "emeharg@cityofsandy.com" <emeharg@cityofsandy.com>

Dear City of Sandy Planners,
       I am wri�ng to voice my objec�ons to the proposed plans for the residen�al subdivision and the
developers proposi�on to use only Melissa Ave as a mean
of entrance and exit for the addi�onal 100 households with the es�mate of 944 car trips per day. 
      My house is located one house off Melissa Ave and I have lived here for 15years. The traffic both on
Melissa Ave. and on Debarko streets have increased drama�cally.
These streets are not designed for mass amounts of traffic, nor the effects on the safety of children, school
bus stops and parking. Having lived here through many winters,
the icy roads , especially the steep Melissa Ave. would cause ridiculous traffic jams and possible accidents.
This is an absurd plan! In the case of snow or emergency,these
households would be unable to exit!
     The plans for stormwater deten�on tract are ridiculous without any thought given for the rights of the
Nicholas Glen residents and their safety, ability to exit their neighborhood, 
along with the accomoda�on for construc�on vehicles rights-of-way! 
     Along with many of my neighbors, we plan on a�ending the mee�ng Oct 28th to adamantly voice our
opposi�on to this plan. Realizing the fact, that Sandy is a growing
community with need for expansion, I believe the Planning Commission needs to take the present
homeowner's concern for safety, for the ongoing natural beauty of living in
a rural community, and the honest look at the effects of corporate greed into account in making the correct
decisions regarding this proposi�on.

Sincerely,
    Karen Higgins
    37487 Rachael Dr.
    Sandy, Or.

Page 462 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/37487+Rachael+Dr.+%0D%0A+%0D%0A+Sandy,+Or?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/37487+Rachael+Dr.+%0D%0A+%0D%0A+Sandy,+Or?entry=gmail&source=g
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT TT



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Nicholas Glen/Letter of Concern
1 message

Brian molcany <bmolcany@gmail.com> Wed, Oct 2, 2019 at 10:37 AM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Ms. Meharg,

My wife and I would like to voice our concerns regarding the proposed residential subdivision, and Melissa Ave. being the
sole point of access.

First off, we find it odd that the letter regarding the proposed project did not go out to all residents of the neighborhood,
and that, from what I understand, the letter eluded to this project already being approved.

Doubling the amount of traffic on Melissa will have a negative impact on the entire neighborhood, especially in the winter
as Melissa is very steep. We also have deep concerns in the event of an emergency or disaster that exiting the
neighborhood will be a safety hazard.

Additionally, the construction process will effect everyone as the needed utilities upgrades will presumably make travel on
Melissa a challenge during the construction process.

We also have concerns over what this will do to home values and property taxes. Also, it is our understanding that this
project will affect property lines on Rachel Dr., which would be unfair to the current residents.

The general consensus is that, if approved, this subdivision will have a negative impact on the residents of Nicholas
Glenn and we ask the city to stand by it’s residents and not allow the developer to proceed.

Sincerely,

The Molcany Family
Wewer Ave

Page 463 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT UU



Page 464 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT VV



Page 465 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT WW



Page 466 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT XX



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Proposed Bailey Meadows Subdivision Concerns

Jeff Conder <conder100@gmail.com> Thu, Oct 3, 2019 at 9:15 AM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Hi Emily,

I’ve lived in Sandy since 2002. We’ve seen Fred Meyers come to our community and watched as Dubarko has become a
major thoroughfare. We live near 362nd on Dubarko and now see that Dubarko is used by a large number of people to
avoid hwy 26.

I can get from Bluff to 362nd with only one stop sign in between. This makes Dubarko a better choice over hwy 26 to get
through town for many residents.

It’s dangerous to cross 26 from side roads without a stop light. I could go on about 26 but my focus here is about having
an additional ~1000 cars on Dubarko. A high percentage of those will use Dubarko to reach 362nd ave.

I recall many years ago after Dubarko opened up between Bluff and 362nd that the city stated it was capable of handling
~10,000 cars a day. I call BS on that capability, but the point is that another ~10% increase in traffic is going to have a
significant impact on the safety of residents.

This could be alleviated by 1) not adding a new subdivision or 2) make west bound Dubarko exit to hwy 26 at Ruben
Lane.
It’s not in my best interest to add the subdivision without additional actions to lower the traffic impact in our neighborhood.
Let’s come up with a win-win proposal.

Best Regards,

Jeff Conder
36345 Dubarko Rd.

Page 467 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT YY



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Bailey Meadows Subdivision
1 message

Bj Schonek <bjschonek@yahoo.com> Thu, Oct 3, 2019 at 6:27 PM
To: "emeharg@cityofsandy.com" <emeharg@cityofsandy.com>

RE: Bailey Meadows Subdivision

We believe the proposed entrance being only Melissa Ave would create too much traffic for the one steep entrance.

The proposed Bailey Meadows Subdivision we believe should have its own ingress and aggress. As does the Nicolas
Glen Subdivision.

Concerned Neighbors,

Belus and Juanita Schonek
18102 Wewer Ave
Sandy OR 97055
bjschonek@yahoo.com

Page 468 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/18102+Wewer+Ave+Sandy+OR+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/18102+Wewer+Ave+Sandy+OR+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:bjschonek@yahoo.com
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT ZZ



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Proposed residential subdivision Bailey meadows
1 message

Danielle Raines <drainesrun@yahoo.com> Thu, Oct 3, 2019 at 6:49 PM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Comment sheet for File no. 19-023 sub/var/tree 

Hello Emily Meharg, 
I am writing you to let you know my thoughts on the new proposed subdivision. My family and I live off Myra ct, so when
we heard about this new subdivision, we didn't mind. However, when we found out more information on this subdivision,
we quickly changed our minds and now DO NOT WANT IT TO GET BUILT!  I am not one of those people from sandy who
just don’t want people moving in, I want sandy to expand. With more people means more opportunities for local
businesses and more groups or activities for families. I just hope sandy is thinking long term and planning on changing
the roads and adding more schools. 

First of all, Melissa being the only entrance is going to change traffic. And not for the good, it is going to be absolutely
horrible. Melissa cannot be the only entrance to this neighborhood. When it’s icy, one car goes up and one car goes
down. Having 800-1000 more cars driving up and down that street is going to be a disaster. It also changes the whole feel
of our perfect little neighborhood. I worry for the safety of our kids in our neighborhood because of all these hundred of
cars going up and down that huge hill (Melissa st.). 

-Find a way to create a main entrance off 211! 

Second, with every new subdivision that moves in, they build an awesome new park. So me being a mom of 2 kids under
4, I was really excited for a park that’s within walkable distance, that’s not on a huge hill or busy road like Dubarko.
Something with some play equipment, or a pump track. However, I was informed that there will not be a park and that the
contractor will instead give money to the city of sandy to build a park elsewhere. This really upsets me, we have no
walkable parks, the one on Dubarko is terrible and you constantly have to hawk eye your children so they don’t run into
the road. With all these new houses being built (most people buying them will be families with young children) WE NEED
A PARK OR OUTDOOR AREA FOR THE KIDS TO PLAY. We don’t need it somewhere else in sandy we need it in our
area. 

-So the contractor needs to incorporate a park into this new subdivision. 

And last, the city of sandy needs to think about all this growth and new traffic and start building new schools. The schools
we have are already starting to get crowded. I want my children to actually get a good education with smaller numbers
per classroom. I just don’t think the city of sandy is thinking long term here. 

We bought our house almost 3 years ago, and have put so much time, love  and money remodeling it ourselves, while
raising our sons and if this proposed subdivision gets approved. You can definitely expect us to be putting our house on
the market and moving. So please, figure out another way to make a main entrance off of 211, think long term about
schooling for our children and please put in a walkable, decent park (preferably with a pump track) in. 

Thank you 

-Danielle Mullon 
Off of Myra ct. 

Page 469 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT AAA



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

neighborhood expansion
1 message

Oliver Mullon <chipsandsalsa1416@gmail.com> Thu, Oct 3, 2019 at 6:57 PM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Hello Emily Meharg, 
I am writing you to let you know my thoughts on the new proposed subdivision. My family and I live off Myra ct, so when
we heard about this new subdivision, we didn't mind. However, when we found out more information on this subdivision,
we quickly changed our minds and now DO NOT WANT IT TO GET BUILT!  I am not one of those people from sandy who
just don’t want people moving in, I want sandy to expand. With more people means more opportunities for local
businesses and more groups or activities for families. I just hope sandy is thinking long term and planning on changing
the roads and adding more schools. 

First of all, Melissa being the only entrance is going to change traffic. And not for the good, it is going to be absolutely
horrible. Melissa cannot be the only entrance to this neighborhood. When it’s icy, one car goes up and one car goes
down. Having 800-1000 more cars driving up and down that street is going to be a disaster. It also changes the whole feel
of our perfect little neighborhood. I worry for the safety of our kids in our neighborhood because of all these hundred of
cars going up and down that huge hill (Melissa st.). 

-Find a way to create a main entrance off 211! 

Second, with every new subdivision that moves in, they build an awesome new park. So me being a mom of 2 kids under
4, I was really excited for a park that’s within walkable distance, that’s not on a huge hill or busy road like Dubarko.
Something with some play equipment, or a pump track. However, I was informed that there will not be a park and that the
contractor will instead give money to the city of sandy to build a park elsewhere. This really upsets me, we have no
walkable parks, the one on Dubarko is terrible and you constantly have to hawk eye your children so they don’t run into
the road. With all these new houses being built (most people buying them will be families with young children) WE NEED
A PARK OR OUTDOOR AREA FOR THE KIDS TO PLAY. We don’t need it somewhere else in sandy we need it in our
area. 

-So the contractor needs to incorporate a park into this new subdivision. 

And last, the city of sandy needs to think about all this growth and new traffic and start building new schools. The schools
we have are already starting to get crowded. I want my children to actually get a good education with smaller numbers
per classroom. I just don’t think the city of sandy is thinking long term here. 

We bought our house almost 3 years ago, and have put so much time, love  and money remodeling it ourselves, while
raising our sons and if this proposed subdivision gets approved. You can definitely expect us to be putting our house on
the market and moving. So please, figure out another way to make a main entrance off of 211, think long term about
schooling for our children and please put in a walkable, decent park (preferably with a pump track) in. 

Thank you 

-Oliver Mullon

Page 470 of 504

emeharg
Text Box



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Concerns regarding Nicholas Glen neighborhood and proposed new development
1 message

Corri Baldwin <corri.baldwin@gmail.com> Thu, Oct 3, 2019 at 7:06 PM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Corri Baldwin
37524 Rachael Drive
Sandy, OR 97055
503-860-9398
corri.baldwin@gmail.com
10/3/2019

Emily Meharg
Associate Planner
City of Sandy
emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Dear Emily Meharg:

I am a resident of the Nicholas Glen Neighborhood and have some concerns regarding the potential new
development that would be located off ponder lane north of 211.

My first concern with the proposal is that Melissa Ave would be the only road that would be connected to the
new subdivision. I live on top of Melissa and see the traffic that is already there, it is concerning that the
residents of a hundred more houses will be using this street as well. There is only one stop sign currently for a
three way, to be four way intersection. There was no plan to make any traffic changes when I attended the
meeting with the developers. I do not see how that would be a safe intersection with the addition of 944 car
trips a day.

 My second concern regarding Melissa Ave being the only road is weather conditions. Winters in Sandy can be
icy/snowy. Melissa Ave is a good size hill, which is already a concern with the amount of traffic that is present
now, adding more car trips during hazardous driving conditions is a major safety concern. I am also concerned
that the road is not wide enough to accommodate the additional 944 car trips. Residents of Melissa park on the
side of the street and depending on vehicle size, a car going up the hill the same time as one going down the hill
cannot pass each other. Adding more traffic on Melissa would be a nightmare for all residents.

Another concern that I have is the fact that in case of an emergency, or natural disaster, it would be unsafe to
evacuate or have emergency personnel safely get to where they need to go.

Another concern that I have is that there have been inconsistencies with property line surveys. The two that
were marked are varied in where it says our property line is behind our house.  We are Also worried that the
sewer system in place would not be able to handle to new development as well, without an upgrade. 

 

Sincerly,

Corri Baldwin 

Page 471 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/37524+Rachael+Drive+Sandy,+OR+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/37524+Rachael+Drive+Sandy,+OR+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:corri.baldwin@gmail.com
mailto:emeharg@cityofsandy.com
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT BBB



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Safety Concerns about possible new housing development
1 message

Michael S. <mschell78@hotmail.com> Thu, Oct 3, 2019 at 7:31 PM
To: "emeharg@cityofsandy.com" <emeharg@cityofsandy.com>

Mike Schell 
37524 Rachael Drive
Sandy, OR 97055
503-200-9230
mschell78@hotmail.com
10/3/2019

Emily Meharg
Associate Planner
City of Sandy
emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Dear Emily Meharg:

I am a resident of the Nicholas Glen Neighborhood and have some concerns regarding the potential new
development that would be located off ponder lane north of 211.

My first concern with the proposal is that Melissa Ave would be the only road that would be connected to the
new subdivision. I live on top of Melissa and see the traffic that is already there, it isconcerning that the
residents of a hundred more houses will be using this street as well. There is only one stop sign currently for a
three way, to be four way intersection. There was no plan to make any traffic changes when I attended the
meeting with the developers. I do not see how that would be a safe intersection with the addition of 944 car
trips a day.

 My second concern regarding Melissa Ave being the only road is weather conditions. Winters in Sandy can be
icy/snowy. Melissa Ave is a good size hill, which is already a concern with the amount of traffic that is present
now, adding more car trips during hazardous driving conditions is a major safety concern. I am also concerned
that the road is not wide enough to accommodate the additional 944 car trips. Residents of Melissa park on the
side of the street and depending on vehicle size, a car going up the hill the same time as one going down the hill
cannot pass each other. Adding more traffic on Melissa would be a nightmare for all residents.

Another concern that I have is the fact that in case of an emergency, or natural disaster, it would be unsafe to
evacuate or have emergency personnel safely get to where they need to go.

Another concern that I have is that there have been inconsistencies with property line surveys. The two that
were marked are varied in where it says our property line is behind our house.  We are Also worried that the
sewer system in place would not be able to handle to new development as well, without an upgrade.

Last but not least there was no mention of trees being cut down at the meeting, but yet the developer had
people come out to do "a tree health inspection" of all the trees that border our property. In the event the other
trees are cut to make room for  a new walk way and road.  We have one giant tree in our back yard that even if
left would be affected by this action, and pose a very large safety hazard for our selves and neighbors if the
other trees are taken near it.  

 

Sincerly,

Page 472 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/37524+Rachael+Drive+%0D%0A+%0D%0ASandy,+OR+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:mschell78@hotmail.com
mailto:emeharg@cityofsandy.com
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT CCC



Mike Schell 

Page 473 of 504



Ashley Parrish 
37356 Rachael Drive 
Sandy, Or 97055 
503-440-5496 
Ashleyparrish22@gmail.com 
 
 
October 3, 2019 
 
 
Emily Meharg (via email: emeharg@cityofsandy.com) 
City of Sandy, Planning Division  
39250 Pioneer Blvd. Sandy, OR 97055 
 

To Ms. Meharg, 

I am writing you to express my concern about the proposed Bailey Meadows development behind my 

neighborhood, Nicholas Glen. I have been receiving information about the Bailey Meadows subdivision, 

and I do not think it is safe or appropriate to have access to the new development solely through 

Melissa Ave.  

We moved to this neighborhood in 2018, and although we fell in love with our house because of the 

beautiful view from the back yard, we knew it would someday be developed. I am not opposed to the 

new development behind my home. It is only a matter of time before the city keeps expanding and new 

developments are built, but to have all the new homes accessed only through a steep hill that is already 

overcrowded is poor planning and unsafe. Cars already go one at a time in the ice and snow, and I can’t 

imagine what it would be like if the traffic is doubled.  

My son is in Kindergarten at Kelso Elementary school, where I would assume the students of the new 

subdivision would attend as well. The classrooms and school are already at capacity, which is another 

reason I cannot support a new subdivision knowing it would cause our current students’ experience to 

suffer. Until the city can support new growth, Sandy should not allow more developments to happen.  

Sandy is an incredible city. It has so much to offer, and if we fight for proper growth, it will continue to 

thrive. More people will want to move here for the right reasons, not just because it is “cheaper” to live. 

That will create a positive community culture, with residents proud and desiring to take care of Sandy.  

I know there are many concerned neighbors, and I hope that the city and its current residents can 

partner together to keep our neighborhood safe and make the inevitable future growth of Sandy 

reasonable and appropriate.  

 

Thank you, 

Ashley Parrish 

 

Page 474 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT DDD



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Proposed neighborhood
1 message

Guimar D.D. <gddevaere@gmail.com> Thu, Oct 3, 2019 at 11:38 PM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

City of Sandy Planning Commission, 

Hello
I live in the Nicholas Glen neighborhood next to the proposed development off of Ponder lane and Hwy 211.I am
concerned for my family my home and my neighborhood with this proposal. 
This development would drastically change our quiet close knit neighborhood.

 Right now we have minimal traffic because we only have one road in and out. Our kids are able to play outside without
having to worry about the traffic racing down our streets. The new neighborhood would add another 100+homes with all
that traffic coming through our neighborhood. The developers want to use Melissa Ave as the only road in and out of the
new development. This would also add extra traffic to Dubarko Rd. Since the only road Connecting through our
neighborhood to the proposed neighborhood will be Melissa Ave  
Our Children will no longer be safe playing outside with all the extra traffic.

Our home values will go down. We would be connected to this large development by just one access road. The
developers have stated that they will not be adding a park to this subdivision. Instead they want to pay a fee to the city of
Sandy. This will be adding to the decline of our property values. When buying our home we were told that we had farm
land behind our neighborhood so there would be no developments. 

We are opposed to the building of this new development.

Thank you, 

Guimar and James DeVaere
18176 Rachael Drive
P.O. Box 331
Sandy, OR 97033. 

Page 475 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT EEE



 

 

Erin   Findlay  
37616   Rachael   Drive  
Sandy,   OR    97055  
(503)   312-2608  
stewstac@hotmail.com  

October   3rd,   2019  

Emily   Meharg   (via   email:    emeharg@cityofsandy.com)  
City   of   Sandy,   Planning   Division  
39250   Pioneer   Blvd.  
Sandy,   OR    97055  

Dear   Ms.   Meharg,  

I   am   writing   this   letter   as   a   concerned   resident   of   the   Nicholas   Glen  
Neighborhood   in   Sandy,   Oregon.  

When   we   chose   our   home   in   Sandy,   we   very   much   expected   growth   and  
development.    It   was   one   of   the   reasons   we   chose   Sandy.    We   knew   that   we  
could   enjoy   a   rural   landscape   within   a   city   that   was   guaranteed   to   grow   and  
thrive   --   rather   than   grow   stagnant.    Our   downtown   is   truly   thriving.    Our  
infrastructure,   however,   can   not   keep   up.  

Having   researched   information   about   our   current   mayor   (at   that   time),   we   felt  
certain   that   any   new   growth   would   be   supported   with   careful   planning   for   city  
infrastructure.    Linda   Malone   understood   “sprawl”   on   a   personal   level.    She  
was   born   and   raised   in   that   environment.    She   knew   what   to   look   for   in  
advance   of   problems   developing.    When   cities   outgrow   their   infrastructure   and  
fall   victim   to   private   development,   “city   planning”   becomes   an   obsolete   term.  

I   believe   that   this   proposed   development   provides   us   with   an   excellent  
opportunity.    We   can   stand   as   neighbors   and   as   a   city,   to   bring   the   term   “city  
planning”   back   to   its   true   intent.    I   ask   that   until   necessary   infrastructure   is   in  
place,   we   as   a   city    adamantly    oppose   new   construction.  

Bailey   Meadows   gives   us   an   opportunity   to   set   a   precedent   in   our   city.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 476 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT FFF



 

 

 

Of   greatest   concern   and   specific   to   Bailey   Meadows:  

● We   are   ignoring   the   spirit   and   intent   of   our   existing   motor   vehicle  
system   plan   if   we   allow   Melissa   Avenue   to   be   the   only   vehicle   access  
for   this   new   development.   944   additional   car   trips   per   day   is   not  
acceptable.  

● We   are   disregarding   the   safety   of   Nicholas   Glen   residents   and   future  
residents   of   Bailey   Meadows   if   we   allow   this   development   be   built   with  
only   one   access   point   through   Melissa.    This   shows   complete  
disregard   for   public   safety   as   it   pertains   to   emergency   response   and  
evacuation.    In   consulting   with   our   local   fire   and   police   entities,   we  
know   that   they   share   this   concern.  

Of   course,   there   are   so   many   concerns   to   list   --   both   in   regards   to   this   specific  
subdivision   and   our   general   approach   to   new   development   in   Sandy,   OR.  

When   we   met   with   the   developers   and   their   lawyer,   I   was   enlightened.    It  
occurred   to   me   that   the   residents   of   Sandy   are   not   being   properly   represented  
in   this   situation.    Developers   have   a   great   deal   of   money,   the   ability   to   “lawyer  
up”,   and   for   lack   of   a   better   term,   they   will   typically   “steamroll”   your   average  
voter/tax-payer.    The   lawyer   representing   this   developer   is    well-known    in   land  
use.    His   ability   to   pick   apart   the   intent   of   our   city   codes   and   change   the  
purpose   in   which   they   were   written   --   is   simply   appalling.  

We   can   not   stand   for   this.  

Our   family   is   consulting   with   a   land   use   lawyer   who   specializes   in   opposition  
work.    We   will   be   writing   additional   letters   under   his   advisement.    You   can  
expect   those   letters   to   arrive   after   October   4th.    We   understand   that   it   is   our  
right   to   continue   opposition   in   the   form   of   writing   and   in   person   through  
October   28th,   2019.    

We   intend   to   do   so.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

Erin   Findlay  

Page 477 of 504



Krista and Gabriel Stone
18111 Rachael Dr.
Sandy, OR 97055
503-312-0669/ 503-970-3037
mumbuns@yahoo.com/gpstone@acm.org
10/4/2019

Emily Meharg
City of Sandy, Planning Division
City of Sandy
39250 Pioneer Blvd.
Sandy, OR 97055
emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Dear Emily Meharg:

This letter is to show my concern for the proposal of a new subdivision Bailey Meadows. I have read the 
proposal and the intent of where the subdivision is proposed to be located, as well as the entrance to 
the subdivision. My husband and I own and reside in the house 18111 Rachael Dr. which is in the 
subdivision Nicholas Glen. 

The concerns I am about to address, concern not only my family, but all the families who reside in our 
neighborhood. I first would like to explain why 4 years ago, to this month, my husband and I decided to 
purchase our house in this neighborhood. We were a newlywed couple, and a blended family. I grew up 
in Brightwood, and after 12 years of being away from Oregon due to the military and previous marriage, 
myself and my two children moved back to Sandy, to be close to family and have a fresh start in the safe 
small town that I knew well. When I met my husband, I told him that in order to be with me and my kids, 
he would need to realize that I will not move out of Sandy. I felt that is the best for my kids and the best 
way for them to grow up surrounded by family and friends, safety of a small town, and good up bringing 
by being raised in such town. He agreed right away, which started our relationship off well, and ended 
up getting married at Timberline Lodge. As you can see, I have an extensive history and love of our area. 
We search and search for the right neighborhood that all of us could feel safe in. I at the time lived in 
the Cascadia Village subdivision, which did not have the safe feeling to it, as when I first moved into that 
area. So we were really looking for a quiet neighborhood with kids and low traffic. When we found the 
house, it was perfect. Low traffic, so much that most don’t realize we have a whole subdivision there. 
Since my cousin also lived in the same neighborhood, I already knew what traffic was like and also was 
Melissa was like during the winter months. Being a born and raised Oregonian and resident of the area 
since birth, I felt I could handle Melissa just fine, and we have. For four years, we have enjoyed our 
neighbors, the children, and the feeling of letting our kids go to their friend’s house, playing in the 

Page 478 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT GGG



Emily Meharg
10/4/2019
Page 2

streets with their trikes, scooters, and more. We have neighborhood block parties where our children 
can run and play in safety. Cars drive slowly and everyone knows to watch out for our littles ones. We 
now have 4 children, one of which is a 3 year old. He loves playing with his friends on the street and 
riding bikes. Only traffic really we have, is those who live in our neighborhood. There is no through 
street, and this is one of the main reasons, why we purchased the home we did. Now, the uneasy feeling 
of thinking of Melissa becoming a through street, adding almost another thousand vehicles of just 
people who live there, plus visitors, more mail trucks, construction, and more, is just too much to 
handle. It is taking away the way of life we who live in our neighborhood have come to love and 
embrace. Below, I would like to take a few specifics of my concerns, and talk about them more in detail. 
These are in no particular order, but safety for our families is always the main priority. 

1. Way of life: 
a. Our way of life is calm, comfortable, and untouched by passing traffic and strangers. I do 

not have to worry about someone breaking into my car if I left something in it, packages 
being stolen off of my porch, my dog being struck by a fast moving car because she ran 
out the front door, kids riding bikes and always having to get off the street because of so 
many cars or that those cars are driving so fast, that they can no longer play on the 
street, or random people checking to see if my front door is unlocked and wanting to 
break in. Our way of life is what we are trying to preserve. By introducing a new 
subdivision so close to our own, and having the main/only access through our ONLY 
access in and out of our own subdivision, will drastically change our way of life. I also 
live on a street at the very side of our neighborhood which people might think that it 
won’t affect us over there. That’s where they’d be wrong. More traffic, means more 
people. It draws attention to where it doesn’t need to be drawn too. Strangers who 
have no business in either places, will now know about it and will turn our quiet safe 
neighborhood into a new crime streak. Fast moving cars who want to cause havoc 
because they can, people trying to go around Melissa when it is icy, and more. That 
would be the end of the way of life as we know it, thus our quality of life. It will become 
more stressful, neighbors will not know each as well if at all, because everyone will have 
to remain in their homes or backyards, because of the traffic, they cannot hear nor feel 
safe to venture out, and so on. Noise levels decrease value to our homes, because the 
quality of life for that much noise pollution, is not attractive to buyers. Not to mention 
to the residents there. Just because I’m on Rachael drive, doesn’t mean I will not hear it. 
I hear the traffic now, even on Dubarko, which is at a minimal. I cannot imagine what 
Dubarko will be like with such an increase of traffic, and how those residents feel about 
it. 

Page 479 of 504



Emily Meharg
10/4/2019
Page 3

2. Melissa Ave.
a. Winter Months are not easy for our single street in and out of our neighborhood. It 

becomes icy, no matter the attempts of the city to help it. It can be quite dangerous, so 
much that most neighbors do not attempt to go up or down this road until it starts to 
melt, unless they have 4x4, AWD, or studs on their vehicles. Those who are moving to 
Sandy, most likely from the PDX area, or out of state, will not understand how to drive 
on it, and they will be definitely starting on the top of Melissa. If they then figure out 
that other streets are less steep, then we will now increase dangerous traffic on smaller 
side streets where kids are playing in the snow. Stationary vehicle damage will increase, 
safety for family will decrease, and once again, our quality of life, things that we 
treasure in our neighborhood will cease to exist. 

b. There is a grassy hill towards the bottom of Melissa, off of Solso. This hill has 
traditionally been the “sledding hill” for kids of all ages, even adults. It has always been a 
fun family activity that is safe and brings our entire neighborhood together. It is such joy 
watching my children sled down the hill laughing and cheering on their siblings and 
neighbors. Not only will the uneasy feeling of an additional 900 cars trying to get up and 
down this icy road of Melissa, the accidents it will cause, and the pure fact that our kids 
will not feel safe either, destroys our tradition and brings sadness to our community. 
The amount of added children to this hill, will make it so that the current resident 
children may no longer to enjoy the hill they’ve come to love and is such an integral part 
of their childhood. Forced to leave the hill by hundreds of other children. They will just 
have to go back home and remember the days that they go have fun on their “sledding 
hill”. 

c. My children and I have a tradition of walking in the snow when the first snow starts to 
stick. We walk down the street and enjoy the quiet and falling snow. We have done this 
for years before even moving to our area, and continue to do so. That tradition will not 
exist anymore will the increase of traffic and people. We won’t feel safe being able to 
walk and enjoy the falling snow. Another quality of destroyed because Sandy no longer 
wants to be a small town. 

d. The residents on Melissa deal with minimal traffic as is. Most traffic is on Solso to reach 
the other streets to their home. Most residents who drive up Melissa either live on 
Melissa, or are doing to the homes up the street. I can’t imagine how unsafe these 
families feel knowing that 900+ vehicles will be traveling up their street, where their 
children, pets, and families are. Especially during the winter. That must be very scary for 
them. If they want to sell their home, they will have more difficulty because they will 
now be on a primary busy street. When I was looking for our home, I refused to look at 
any on a main street, like what Melissa will be. They prices for their homes will 
drastically decrease and will be harder to sell. All because of the quality of life will 
decrease and noise pollution will increase. 

Page 480 of 504



Emily Meharg
10/4/2019
Page 4

e. Vehicle pollution. Why is this an issue you may ask? Because tires are made of rubber 
and oil, they end of up the streets, which is why it is always the most slippery with the 
first rain after summer. We add 900+ vehicles through our neighborhood, you are 
adding more pollution that will end up in the beloved Trickle Creek. This will also cause 
it to be slippery which will make it hard for vehicles to stop at the bottom of the hill, 
which could cause cars to slide across Dubarko and if not hit or hitting another car, end 
up on Tickle Creek Trail on the other side of the road. More accidents with more 
vehicles in inedible. Making to be nearly 2000 cars combined, on a single street, 
connected two neighborhoods, is not only just a bad idea, it is a safety issue and 
irresponsible idea by not only the developers, but also the City of Sandy if they grant this 
subdivision. The solution other than denying a development in its entirety, is to have the 
road connect with highway 211. It is already set up for more traffic and will also 
decrease the traffic coming into town. Residents of the new subdivision have multiple 
options to reach their homes via Hwy 211, which has connecting roads to it. Bringing 
that many vehicles into side roads, like the way I typically go home, Hwy 26, Ruben Ln, 
Dubarko, then to Melissa, is all side roads. Connecting the new subdivision, does not use 
side roads that are neighborhoods in itself, but uses only one highway which is equipped 
to take on the increase of traffic. Thus creating a new safe entrance and exit for the new 
subdivision. Families who purchase those home will thank the City of Sandy to ensure 
their children’s safety by not having them travel down a steep hill onto more side 
neighborhood roads. They also will have a sense of being close to town, without having 
the town traffic. 

3. Hwy 211 and a site distance issue. This is absolutely ridiculous. There are so many ways to solve 
this tiny issue. On Melissa, I have an issue seeing around parked cars on Dubarko. The City didn’t 
seem to have a problem with that when approving to have our subdivision there. The issue so 
much that I have had to stop in the middle of the road because I could not see an oncoming car. 
To think that this is safer then adjusting where the road will connect to Hwy 211, is extremely 
irresponsible. There will be an added almost 1000 vehicles blocking Dubarko because they will 
not be able to see around the parked cars, causing more accidents. Developers can design a way 
to where the road connects Hwy 211 at an appropriate angle to solve this issue. The City can 
slow the speed limit there to allow more time for distance with cars, so those can turn safely. 
There are other Subdivisions that are along 211 that have had the same issue and has 
successfully solved them.

a. If the purchase of property to the south is purchased and granted an access from the 
City to create a road, that allows the developers multiple options for the Hwy entrance 
and exit. If they push through Melissa Ave now, and wait for the allowance to be 
granted to Hwy 211, the City has now accepted that Melissa will be turned into a new 
through street from Hwy 211, down to Melissa Ave, and dumping on to Dubarko. Thus 
increasing traffic into the thousands, on to a single road, through a neighborhood that 

Page 481 of 504



Emily Meharg
10/4/2019
Page 5

was quiet and peaceful. Increasing the accidents, safety concerns, crimes, and more. At 
the expense of the residents. The entire neighborhoods home values will drop. Quality 
of life, will be horrible. The feeling of being forced to move, is greater than ever. 

4. Schools. Where would the increase of children go? Our children, who live within the City of 
Sandy limits, are having to go to Boring Schools. They are over capacity as is, and the proposal of 
this subdivision will overrun those school. If the zones are re drawn, will those children be in the 
Sandy area schools along with our own? So then we overrun the schools in Sandy? This again 
would be an irresponsible decision on the City of Sandy if they were to consider this, and push 
the subdivision anyway. What confidence will the residents of Sandy have in its leaders? What 
about the new developments already that have yet to sell those homes? Those children will be 
over running the schools, and the City is proposing yet another development without building 
new schools to support the influx of children, fixing up the old ones, or even the traffic of 
parents driving their children to school. This will decrease the good scores that our OTSD has 
been receiving recently. We would not be able to provide that amount of classrooms and 
teachers to facilitate the amount of children in them. 

5. Where is the parks? Our city was known at the “Gateway to Mt. Hood”. Since the Mayor or City 
itself, has changed our town into “Where innovation meets elevation”. What a stupid thing to 
say about our town. We are not that at all. The City changed this without discussing it with over 
half the population. I come home one day to find the sign changed to that. It broke my heart. 
Everything our town stood for, for so long, has changed into yet, another Portland mindset. Tree 
City, we were known for our trees. Well, we are quickly cutting them down for row housing, and 
housing that you can touch your neighbor’s house while touching your own. Change can be 
good, but not at a growth that not only our roads and neighborhoods cannot handle, but the 
city itself cannot handle. The amount of fatal accidents on Hwy 26, is astounding. To propose 
250 more homes, that fatality rate will increase considerably. Their deaths will not be on my 
hands, but on the hands of those we appointed to run our small City, who desperately want to 
become a large city. 

a. Wildlife will decrease, but welcome more dangerous wildlife. They will be pushed out of 
their habitats and moved into the neighborhoods. Domestic animals will be hunted as 
the wildlife try to survive. Farms and ranches will be threatened by the influx of wildlife 
as well. Our ecosystem will not be as good as it was, it already has effected the town. 

6. I feel the need to sell my house and move out of the town I grew up with. I grew up 15 minutes 
east, but my family and church was in this town. Sandy High School is where we all came to go 
to school. I played Volleyball for Sandy when I was kid, many of my cousins, and even my aunt 
went to Sandy. I have roughly 30 family members in this community, friends I grew up with still 
live here. Sandy was my second home and it is a shame where it has evolved. I would like to take 
a piece out of page 19 of the Sandy, OR BrandPrint Creative Report and Implementation Plan 
and quote it for you at this time. “…. Staying small is a big deal to our community.” With all 
these new developments, why is the City of Sandy ignoring their own quote? Staying small IS a 

Page 482 of 504



Emily Meharg
10/4/2019
Page 6

huge deal to our community. I absolutely love going to the Oregon Coast. I however, am not 
moving there nor would I expect their residents wanting me to build a whole subdivision so that 
“others may enjoy the same beauty as they do”. As I’ve heard so many tell me. In order to keep 
our town the small down we all love. We have to stop developing. I work in transportation in the 
City of Portland. The main public transportation resource Portland has. Portland is growing at a 
rate that we cannot keep up. It is causing a break down in our system and our own growth 
system. It is an uncontrolled grows and increasing violence that is not controlled. Portland has 
brought in homeless from all over the country. That is uncontrolled. When things are out of 
control, chaos exists. I live in Sandy for the peace of mind that my family is safe. I desire the 
small town feeling. I dream of walking down the main streets and knowing the business owners 
and residents. Sandy is not that anymore. Not like when I was a kid. Growth was bound to 
happen yes, but the rate it is happening and the uncontrolled ways the City is allowing, what 
comes next is crime. I see it every day. The time is now to take control. To lead our “small town” 
into the future of still being a “small town” that is loved and desired. People are moving out of 
Sandy all the time. Those who want to live here, can buy those homes. Thus, keeping our town, 
the desirable town we all love. 

7. Small businesses. I am also a small business owner here in Sandy. I own BarcStone Photography. 
I have found out that I am running out of outdoor locations to take photos. Our downtown area 
is small and has not changed much which is great. But these neighborhoods are taking away our 
forests and fields. I am now competing with more “photographers” moving into the area. I am 
finding that I am having to find my clients elsewhere than in the same town I reside in. This is 
taking revenue out of Sandy. I am having to rent studios in Portland so that I can have a studio 
near where my clients are. I am spending money out of our town, so that I can keep my small 
business going. The new residents here are not spending money in Sandy either. They are going 
back to Portland to get what they need because that is closer to their work and what they are 
familiar with. Why spend money with small business that have to increase their prices due to 
the fact that residents do not spend money in town, when they can purchase their products and 
services elsewhere and bring it to our town. My son plays football for Sandy High School. When 
he played youth football, I learned a lot of sandy residents have their children playing for other 
areas instead of our own. If our own residents are not spending money in our own town, why 
would we think that new subdivisions will create more work and more revenue for the City and 
the business owners here? The City allowed a new chain of farm equipment into the town, 
Tractor Supply Co. which is taking revenue from Garens Feed, Dolly’s Pet Shoppe, even the local 
chain of Bi-Mart. The new residents are not farmers, and most likely not want to purchase 
clothing from this story, so they will take their money into Gresham and Portland and purchase 
their items there. A short term influx of income from development does not secure long term 
revenue. 

Page 483 of 504



Emily Meharg
10/4/2019
Page 7

In conclusion, the proposed subdivision has so many negatives to it, that this proposal should never 
have gone as far as it has. The City of Sandy should care more about its current residents and put more 
restrictions to keep such developments from our small town. The urban growth in our town, is 
substantial, so much that our town cannot handle it. The traffic during the tourist months is extreme 
and unpleasant. In non-tourist months, the traffic is still way to high for our town to handle. My teenage 
kids walk around town and visit the small shops. They cannot even cross the street without feeling 
scares because our own police do not have enough resources to keep vehicles from speeding, running 
red lights, or driving unsafely. Even with our traffic lights, they are unsafe. Our community first 
responders are not large enough to handle the size of the town as is, let alone increasing the size. I have 
talked with the Supervisor of the Police Department, and he said they are extremely understaffed and 
they cannot respond to every call. When I had an emergency, an officer had to call me on the phone, 
instead of coming to their citizen’s home to respond to it, they called me. This is not how a city is ran. I 
pay high property tax, and pay City taxes, and I am considering leaving my own town, because I feel that 
the City of Sandy would rather make money from development and could care less about our historical 
town. That is not a City I want to live in. It is a horrible feeling and to uproot my children from their 
friends and school is not a good thing. But I need to preserve our quality of life and have to take it into 
my own hands, since our leaders of our town, do not care about preserving it. 

I ask that the City of Sandy carefully reads each and every letter it receives from not only out 
subdivision, but those that are presented from any current resident in Sandy. If any Council member 
grew up in Sandy and remembers what it used to be, please remember it. Please don’t let the 
temptation of money skew your beliefs of what our town should be. It should be a small town, and not a 
City. It should be a town where people recognize each other and say hi. A town where we love to call 
home and feel safe. A town where neighborhoods are kept and not destroyed and made unsafe. A town 
that is loved by its leaders who control the growth and understand why the citizens live here, and 
preserve that. I ask that you consider keeping our town a family town and consider our children, and our 
children’s, children. 

Sincerely,

Krista and Gabriel Stone
10/04/2019

Page 484 of 504



October 4, 2019

Emily Meharg

City of Sandy

Planning Division

39250 Pioneer Boulevard

Sandy, OR 97055

RE: 19-023 SUB/V AR/TREE (Bailey Meadows)

Dear Emily Meharg,

I live at 37708 Rachael DR.  I attended the Nicolas Glen Neighborhood meeting on September 18, 2019 
regarding the new subdivision, (hereinafter) Bailey Meadows. It was informative and upsetting. I 
understand the Sandy area is going to continue to grow as people want to move out of the “City” life 
and into the “country”, that’s just the reality of our growing world. I feel like the City of Sandy should 
properly prepare for this growth, by expanding our water/sewer treatment, our grade schools, and our 
traffic control prior to allowing/approval of the multiple subdivisions being added to our city. I 
understand we need to have the growth to have our city continue to be a thriving community but, the 
city planning division is already aware of what constraints and over capacity our utilities, grade schools, 
and roads have as of this moment without adding in any other developments or finishing uncompleted 
developments.

My concern for the approval/development of Bailey Meadows is safety for the Nicolas Glen 
Neighborhood. I have many other concerns for Bailey Meadows development but, I am only going to 
focus on my main concern. Our neighborhood has one main entrance, Melissa AVE, and the amount of 
traffic traveling through our neighborhood at its current state is over the projected safe amount of 
traffic. Bailey Meadows is projected to add 100 homes. If approved its going to add more cars to travel 
up/down Melissa. That is if the developer projects households having 1 car per household. Most 
household have multiple cars and that does not include visitors. Melissa at its current state is narrow. If 
the residents who live on Melissa have parked on the street or parked on both sides of the street, you 
need to wait and let one car down/up at a time. Melissa in inclement weather is not safe traveling up or 
down with more than one car at a time, many people park along Debrako in inclement weather to avoid 
traveling up/down the hill of Melissa. The developer plans to add more cars to this road in inclement 
weather. 

What if there was a disaster or emergency and the Nicolas Glen neighborhood and Bailey Meadows 
needed to be evacuated, Melissa being our only exit, how will all the residents get out safely? I know 
Ponder Lane is available for “emergency” use per the developer, but Ponder Lane has not been properly 

Page 485 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT HHH



maintained by the county or city to handle the potential “emergency” traffic. This is very poor 
emergency planning for both residents and first responders.

I understand development is going to happen as our community continues to grow. I have lived in the 
Sandy community for 40 years and watched it grow at an exponential rate that has been too fast, 
unsafe, and ill prepared by the city. Please consider not allowing this development to continue until 
there has been better planning on safety. I feel like the developer is rushing to make this happen at the 
cost of both current and future residents’ safety. As I have stated above, I have many other concerns 
with Bailey Meadows, but I feel safety is of the utmost importances.

Thank You

Faith Egli

503-804-9214

Faithy30@hotmail.com

Page 486 of 504



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Bailey Meadows Subdivision File No. 19-023 SUB/VAR/TREE - Letter of Concern
1 message

Tim Sellin <tim.sellin@gmail.com> Fri, Oct 4, 2019 at 4:57 PM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Dear Mrs. Meharg,

I'm a resident at 18256 Melissa Ave, Sandy, OR 97055... on the 'main feeder' street into the proposed Bailey
Meadows Subdivision.  My wife Nicole, has spent numerous hours organizing our neighborhood and
researching the project, herself.  I echo each and every one of her written concerns.  We've done our best
to not 'stoke the fire', but instead... organize and inform those in our neighborhood that cannot attend the
information meeting or haven't received the information we've been provided.

Though neither of us is inherently against the growth of the City of Sandy, in this case... it seems the 'cart
is before the horse' on three key features of infrastructure build-out [schools, streets and safety].

-------
Schools - in this expected development of 100 homes, I believe it's fair to assume that the vast majority
of the homes will be purchased by young families.  I'm certainly no census-worker, but if 100
more children were to join the community... that would equate to between three or five classrooms-worth
of attendance at local schools.  I know that ages will vary, but the fact is... at Kelso Elementary and
Boring Middle, classes are already at capacity.  It seems prudent to staff and have classroom space for
the growth versus packing in more children to already taxed facilities.

On top of 'weather-related' street and safety concerns mentioned herein... on 'snow route' days for school
buses... are the new families' children of Bailey Meadows supposed to congregate at the base of Melissa
and Dubarko as is standard now?  Channeling future home-owning parents' minds, "No thank you".

Streets - possibly our greatest concern is how new residents would enter/exit the neighborhood.  Again,
I'm no transportation researcher, but I see the speed and rate of vehicular egress on a daily basis. 
Honestly, it's not horrendous right now, but I can only imagine another 800-1000 trips a day.  It will
become a highway.  The three-way intersection at the top of the hill will become a four-way and likely
require a light.  I'd imagine a light at the bottom of Melissa and Dubarko would be required.  All that to be
said, I can't imagine the developer or the City is going to put in a light at either spot.

The fact that no other access into the development is being proposed and/or explored seems a bit
ludicrous to me.  Or maybe it is, but it is being presented as an impossibility to us a residents.  I know
there are future transportation projects that may remedy this... but to my above point in 'Schools', maybe
we wait... get the new vehicular infrastructure in place... THEN build the development. 

Another curiosity of ours is how we're expected to access our property when/if development were to
commence?  As we understand it, a 22 foot [deep or wide, I'm not sure] trench will be dug down the
middle of Melissa Avenue for sewer connection, power, water, etc.  Are the 35 homes that either dwell on
Melissa, or use Melissa exclusively for access to their homes [the dead-end of Rachel Drive to the East]
supposed to park at the bottom of the hill and walk home?  No.

Safety - Off the top of my head, since we moved into our residence in the Summer of 2011... we've had
a handful of snow/ice events that affected our neighborhood.  Knowing that the Public Works Department
at the City is limited, I've personally shoveled the hill myself, a multiple occasions.  Though it seems to be
in vain a bit... as cars still slide through the stop at the bottom of the hill on a regular basis.  A former
neighbor actually snapped their axle of their Subaru on the curb at the bottom of the hill, not being able
to stop.  When roads are plowed in such weather events, Melissa Avenue is significantly 'narrowed' by the
plowed snow.  I cannot fathom how another 100 homes [800-1000 trips per day] would be able to get
into and out of the neighborhood as such.

Page 487 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/18256+Melissa+Ave,+Sandy,+OR+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT III



I also worry for the safety of the children of the neighborhood.  Currently, they congregate at any 'level
section' and ride their bikes, throw a ball, etc.  The most popular of sections seems to be the top of
Melissa Ave. where Rachel Drive bisects.  

There are also about 1/3 of the homes in the current Nicolas Glen neighborhood that collect their mail at
the same Melissa/Rachel intersection.  I'm sure tensions will rise when the 'dead end' area where the
proposed road would be punched through to Bailey Meadows... as it's a fantastic temporary parking area
for neighbors looking to retrieve their mail on a rainy day.
-------

Though my individual concerns are not exhaustive... again, I echo my wife, Nicole Sellin, and her much-
better-written letter.  There are code compliance concerns, common-sense red flags and the like that beg
the question, "Why not wait, address the infrastructure [schools, streets, safety] issues first... THEN
build?"

Thank you for taking the  time in reading my email,

Tim Sellin
503.799.7195
tim.sellin@gmail.com
Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn

Page 488 of 504

mailto:tim.sellin@gmail.com
http://www.facebook.com/tim.sellin
http://twitter.com/timsellin
http://www.linkedin.com/in/timsellin


Nicole Sellin 
18256 Melissa Ave 
Sandy, Oregon 97055 
503.887.6284 
nicole.sellin@gmail.com 
October 4th, 2019 

 
 
Emily Meharg  
City of Sandy, Planning Division  
39250 Pioneer Blvd.  
Sandy, OR 97055 
emeharg@cityofsandy.com 
 
Re: Bailey Meadows Subdivision File No. 19-023 SUB/VAR/TREE 
 
Dear Mrs. Meharg, 
 
I am writing this letter in regards to the newly proposed subdivision, Bailey Meadows, and its possible 
impact on our Nicholas Glen community, as well as the city of Sandy.  As a resident of Nicholas Glen, and 
specifically a resident on Melissa Avenue, I am quite concerned with the proposal. 
 
Nicholas Glen has been my home for over 8 years and it is truly a great place to live.  My husband and I 
carefully chose Sandy to raise our family because of the small town atmosphere where neighbors are like 
family and community is important.  We picked our home in Nicholas Glen because it is a small, quiet 
neighborhood that is nestled on the outskirts of several other neighborhoods, rural farm land, and natural 
areas (Tickle Creek.)  My husband and I knew that growth would happen, especially when looking at 
neighboring communities like Happy Valley, where growth is exploding.  However, we are concerned with 
the growth in the city of Sandy and its lack of infrastructure to not only accommodate such growth, but to 
thrive with the growth.  We are concerned with the city’s lack of ability to meet the needs of its residents in 
terms of safety and education with the increase in population.  We are concerned with the city losing its 
unique, coveted, small town atmosphere as a place where neighbors are like family because of the idea that 
growth is the way to progress (i.e. the branding “where innovation meets elevation.”). 
 
When I first received a letter from the City of Sandy Planning Department about the proposal, I was in 
shock.  How could another 100 homes (with 944 additional car trips per day) use Melissa Avenue as the 
only access in and out?  Fortunately, I was able to attend the Neighborhood Meeting with AKS, the 
developer, and his lawyer on September 18th, 2019.  I went into the meeting with the purpose to hear and 
understand what their plan is, then relay the information to neighbors who could not make it.  The meeting 
was an eye-opening experience, to say the least.  I knew our neighborhood would be upset about the 
proposal, but I did not expect the amount of people and the  level of frustration that I saw; there was 
standing room only.  I knew that the developer and his crew are interested in this neighborhood for one 
purpose, to make money, but I was appalled by the lack of care and concern they had.  Even when asked, 
there was no regard to what impact this new subdivision will have on our neighborhood, our schools, or our 
city.  I left that meeting more concerned than before it started. 
 
 

Page 489 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT JJJ



These are my specific concerns with regard to the proposal of the Bailey Meadows subdivision: 
● Traffic: One way in and one way out, using only Melissa Avenue, is going to cause a huge increase 

in traffic for our neighborhood, the surrounding neighborhoods, and the entire city.  
○ According to the City of Sandy’s Transportation plan, local streets have the typical capacity of 

800-1000 average daily car trips.  The new development of 100 proposed homes would add 
approximately 944 additional car trips on Melissa Avenue. Since the current Nicholas Glen 
neighborhood has over 100 homes already, it is safe to say that the traffic on Melissa Avenue 
will be double the typical capacity of a local street.  Double the traffic is not conducive to a 
safe, enjoyable neighborhood.  City Code 17.100.100 states the pattern of streets should be 
connected in such a way will spread traffic over many streets so that key streets are not 
overburdened.  With only one access point Melissa Avenue will be overburdened and this 
overburden will sprawl onto Dubarko and the other arterial streets with major connections to 
US 26. 

○ An additional 944 car trips per day will increase drive time not only on Melissa Avenue, but 
also on Dubarko, Bluff, Ruben, and 362nd.  The intersections of Dubarko/OR 211, 
Dubarko/362nd, 362nd/US 26, Ruben/US 26, and Bluff/US 26 are currently rated as a C or D 
for their level of service according to our transportation plan mobility standard.  With added 
development that has no other alternative route, those intersections will become much more 
overwhelmed and their level of service will decrease, most likely reaching the point of failing 
mobility according to the city standard.  More drive time means wasted time and wasted fuel 
while stuck in congestion. 

○ More cars brings the possibility of more accidents.  Cars already drive with excessive speed 
up and down the hill of Melissa Avenue.  Children will no longer be safe enough to walk, ride 
their bikes, and play in the streets of our community, as there is a possibility of more 
pedestrian-involved accidents with increased car traffic.  Increased traffic leads to frustrated 
drivers, who take more risks and drive faster.  According to the city’s traffic plan, there was a 
study that stated two accidents happened on Melissa Avenue between 2005 to 2007, one 
occurring at the intersection of Melissa/Rachael and the second occurring at the intersection 
of Melissa/Solso.  The same study also mentioned that the intersection of Dubarko and OR 
211 had a crash rate of 1.08 MEV, which is a relatively high crash rating, and it said that the 
intersection is in the top 10% of hazardous ODOT SPIS locations.  The new development 
proposal’s traffic study did not include the intersection Dubarko and OR 211 in their study, 
which raises the concern on how the new development would affect that already 
questionable area. 

○ More traffic will cause an increased noise level in our quiet neighborhood.  Increased noise 
will change the quality of life in our neighborhood because it affects the ability to sleep, 
causes anxiety, and decreases overall health.  

○ As traffic volume increases, air quality will diminish and more pollution could enter Tickle 
Creek, contaminating it. 

○ Extra noise and traffic will lower property value, especially to those homes on Melissa. 
○ Developers were requested to have a second access connecting the new neighborhood to 

OR 211.  However, they fully intend to continue their proposal of only one access.  This 
shows a disregard for our city’s planning division in terms of the transportation system.  It 
shows a disregard for the quality of life for the residents of both Bailey Meadows and 
Nicholas Glen.  It shows a disregard for the congestion for the entire city of Sandy including 
its residents and tourism traffic.  The reasoning behind not having a second access point, in 
my opinion, is mediocre at best and shows a lack of care for the immediate future in our city. 

Page 490 of 504



■ Developers claim there are site distance problems and the existing road, Ponder, hits 
OR 211 at an oblique angle.  This seems to be illogical, considering that at the exact 
same spot where Ponder meets OR 211, on the eastern side of OR 211, there is 
already a new development with access using Arletha Court.    If site distance and the 
oblique angle are an issue for the Bailey Meadows development, why would another 
development, using that exact same spot of intersection, be allowed a point of 
access? 

■ Developers mentioned that they have an agreement with the landowner to the south 
of the newly proposed development to purchase their property, with the purpose of 
future access to OR 211.  However, that property is outside the Urban Growth 
Boundary currently.  Because of this, even if that property were to be entered into the 
Urban Growth Boundary (which takes time), it will be years down the road that their 
idea of accessing OR 211 will even be feasible.  According to these developers, they 
would need to an exception from the county to put a road through rural property to 
access OR 211 and from their talks with county planning, the staff would most likely 
not support that needed exception. 

■ Kelly O’Neill mentioned in the September meeting that Gunderson Road connects to 
362nd and is a possible second access point to the neighborhood.  It is also a part of 
the future city transportation plan.  According to Kelly, the developer’s application did 
not touch on this.  In the meeting, developers said that it is not a possibility because 
Gunderson would have to cut through rural land. 

 
● Safety: A cluster of 250+ homes in a small area, with one way in and one way out, will decrease the 

safety and security of our neighborhood.  
○ Police, Fire, and Ambulance response time will be prolonged with only one main, well kept 

access street.  The second access off Ponder will be available, but it is not ideal and 
probably not as safe for a quick response. 

○ In the event of a natural disaster, Melissa Avenue would be an evacuation nightmare 
because it is the only way out for over 250 families. 

○ Crime rates may increase with more people; even if the rate does not change, the amount of 
incidents will increase because of the population increase, which puts us more at risk for 
being the victim of a crime.  Also, according the website 
(https://www.neighborhoodscout.com/or/sandy/crime), Sandy is only safer than 27% of U.S. 
cities; meaning 73% of US cities are safer than we are.  It also mentions that our city already 
has a high rate of crimes per square mile (80.)  Comparatively, we are higher than the State 
of Oregon (60) and the National Median (31.1).  When compared with cities the same size, 
Sandy’s crime rate is quite a bit higher.  Increased development could increase this rate even 
higher. 

 
● Education: Adding more homes in the city of Sandy would cause a decrease in educational 

effectiveness within our school district.  
○ Kelso Elementary, Boring Middle, and Sandy High School are the three schools affected by 

this proposed new development, as the new neighborhood would be in their school 
boundaries as it is currently drawn.  Kelso Elementary and Boring Middle are already over 
100% capacity. In a meeting with school parent groups, the Superintendent of Oregon Trail 
School District stated that Kelso is at 134% capacity.  Even if boundaries change, Sandy 
Grade and Naas are over 100% capacity, and Firwood is at 98%.  Our children will suffer. 

Page 491 of 504



○ There are currently new homes already being built within the boundary of these schools and 
several others that are tentative.  If we add yet another development, it would cause a 
catastrophe as far as classroom size, space for classrooms, effectiveness in the classroom, 
mental health of students, safety of students and staff, and teacher burnout due to increased 
capacity and lack of resources. 
 

● Parks: Developers, as I understand the city code 17.86, should have a parkland dedication of 1.29 
acres (using the formula given 100x3x0.0043.)  In the meeting, they made it perfectly clear that they 
will not dedicate any land for parks; it is not negotiable for them. They will simply just pay a fee 
instead.  To me, this again shows the lack of care and regard for our city planning and for the future 
of the area. 
 

● Wildlife: With the development of rural land, wildlife will be threatened.  They will be pushed out of 
their homes.  Vehicle collisions with wildlife might increase as these animals venture through 
neighborhoods are move south.  Increased amounts of pollution could harm remaining wildlife. 

 
● Construction: A new development will cause a long-term disturbance on our neighborhood 

community, though the plan for construction has yet to be discussed.  
○ When asked at the September meeting, developers would not explain their plan for 

construction because “it was not part of this step in the process.”  As a resident of the 
adjoining neighborhood, and a resident on Melissa Avenue, the plan for construction is a 
major concern and something that should be shared at this step because it will impact our 
quality of living as the developer completes each phase.  

○ One part of the construction mentioned was that the new development would tie into our 
neighborhood wastewater system.  To do this, the developer would have to tear up Melissa 
Avenue, putting in a 20+ foot trench down the middle of Melissa Avenue.  Since Melissa is 
the only access into the neighborhood, and part of the neighborhood can only access their 
homes at the top of Melissa Avenue, this trench is a major concern.  Of course, no plan was 
shared on how access will be given to residents on Melissa Avenue, nor to the residents on 
Rachael, east of Melissa. 

○ Sandy’s wastewater system capability is another concern.  Despite improvements to the 20 
year old system, it is consistently failing to meet permit requirements.  According to the city’s 
website (https://www.ci.sandy.or.us/wastewater-system-improvements), our wastewater 
treatment system does not have the capacity to service our current population.  Increasing 
the population will further tax this system until it can be remedied, which will take time and 
money.  Of course, the cost is being passed on to current residents by raising our bills almost 
$23 a month, which is a significant amount for families.  Even though the plan is almost 
finished, it will still take time and it sounds like this development may start as early as next 
fall, which is probably much sooner than we can fix our wastewater system. 

 
Our city has the opportunity to show its residents and the state of Oregon where our priorities are with the 
decision on this proposed development.  Our city branding is, “Where Innovation Meets Elevation.”  How 
does this new development show innovation?  The answer is, IT DOES NOT.  There is nothing innovative 
about creating more traffic within a limited infrastructure that is already taxed.  There is nothing innovative 
with increasing class sizes in our schools, decreasing classroom effectiveness, risking the safety and health 
of our students and staff, and putting more classrooms in portable buildings because we cannot afford to fix 
our current schools, let alone build another. There is nothing innovative with taking away the safety of our 

Page 492 of 504



families by only having one main road in and out for over 250 homes, a road that is dangerous in ice and 
snow because of the slope and would have poor access for police, fire, and ambulance.  Is our priority 
growth above all else, no matter the cost it has on our safety, our city infrastructure, our schools, our Sandy 
way of Life?  Is another new development good for Sandy right now, as our city currently exists?  Do we 
have the infrastructure, the schools, the first responders to effectively serve more people at the current 
moment, or even in the near future?  Myself, and many others, do not believe we are ready for this new 
development in our city right now.  You can simply look on Facebook, in the Sandy Neighborhood Watch 
and Sandy Community Information groups, where you will see several posts and hundreds of comments not 
in favor of more development. 
 
I love Sandy and the Nicholas Glen neighborhood.  Our community is like no other that I have lived in. 
People actually care about each other.  On page 19 of the Sandy, Or BrandPrint Creative Report and 
Implementation Plan, it states, 

“...an intuitive few made Sandy their home. They heard the call of the mountain. They wanted to 
build their town, their way. More than a century later, people with that same vision and grit come in 
search of The Sandy Way. They see a forward-thinking infrastructure to support their life and 
business. They see that majestic, snow-capped mountain in the distance. They want to be where 
innovation meets elevation. Innovation. Elevation. Location. Sandy is perfectly positioned between 
two Oregon icons. Right next door, Mt. Hood National Forest puts 50-foot trees in our backyard and 
postcard views of the region's tallest mountain at every turn. Just 25 miles to the west is Portland, a 
city close enough to share its culture and conveniences —restaurants, shopping and higher 
education —and far enough away to keep the sprawl at bay. Staying small is a big deal to our 
community. We make the most of our notable neighbors, but have an identity all our own. I guess 
you could say that in Sandy, we're worth more than a peak.” 

 
Some key points that we are failing at, if we were to approve this proposal, are “They see a forward-thinking 
infrastructure to support their life and business” and  “Staying small is a big deal to our community.”  We 
have a transportation plan to update and build infrastructure for growth, but no time frame for that plan to 
start.  We are facing limits due to the Urban Growth Boundary and rural land.  Our school district is working 
on a plan to meet the growth, but time and money are factors.  By allowing yet another new development, 
we will just overburden our current transportation system and educational systems.  Sandy is simply not 
ready for the proposed new Bailey Meadows development yet.  It may be feasible years down the road, 
once we fix the current issues, but it just does not make sense in the present time, with the present 
conditions, for the current residents of our city. 
 
I ask you to carefully consider my concerns, and the many others that will be presented to you.  I ask you to 
think about our city brand and if this new development will be innovative, or destructive. I ask you to imagine 
that you lived on Melissa Avenue and how it would affect your way of life, others, and the city.  
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Nicole Sellin 
 

Page 493 of 504



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Concern regarding over use of Melissa Ave.
1 message

Barbara Coutts <lostdimond@aol.com> Fri, Oct 4, 2019 at 5:19 PM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

 ~ Hope this letter of concern isn’t too late....I thought the deadline was today, not before today....my mistake. �
 ~ So, briefly, not only the estimated 944 ADDITIONAL vehicles traveling through our family oriented streets, but the
COLLATERAL vehicles ( friends, relatives, FEDEX, UPS, Maintenance workers, buses, etc....)  MUST also be taken into
account.... !! 
 ~ Please take these concerns into account; there is no reason, another one or two solution roads cannot be built . Safety
and sensibility must rule.

Thank you ~~~~
barb coutts......37265 Solso Drive. 

Sent from my iPad

Page 494 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT KKK



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Letter of Concern
1 message

Shelly Evett <shelly.evett@gmail.com> Fri, Oct 4, 2019 at 8:05 PM
To: emeharg@cityofsandy.com

Emily,

I was out of town, so I was unable to attend the meeting on the 18th of October about the new development going in
behind my neighborhood, and just saw the flyer on our mail box the other day about voicing my concerns related to the
increase in traffic related to the new neighborhood, so I am hoping this email will be included with others.  I have lived in
the Nicholas Glen neighborhood for 17 years and am the original owner of my home. This neighborhood is a
quiet neighborhood, has block parties, everyone watches out for each other, and has the right amount of traffic in the
neighborhood to keep it safe for all.  I am concerned about the proposal of using Melissa as the only access point in and
out for the new community.  Melissa is a neighborhood road that was not built to be a main thorofare for traffic. There are
families that live on Melissa, kids play in the street, and families also park cars on that street.  Adding more cars will
increase the risk for accidents because cars often have to pull to the side to let cars pass before continuing on, and as we
know when a road becomes a thorofare drivers often drive faster than the posted speed limit and I feel this will put kids
playing at risk.

One of my main concerns is the fact that there is only one way in and out of the neighborhood. If there is an emergency
how would all these people get out safely and in a timely manner, in addition how would emergency people get in. 
Another concern is that the increase in traffic will hinder getting on to Melissa from the side streets Rachel and Solso.

I am not apposed to developers wanting to develop a new neighborhood, that is how our neighborhood was started, I just
feel that the new neighborhood should have it's own access roads to maintain livability for both neighborhoods.

Thank you,
Roberta (Shelly) Evett
18192 Rachel Dr.

Page 495 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT LLL



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Letter of concern about the purposed new developement on Ponder
1 message

Laura Kvamme <notellk@yahoo.com> Fri, Oct 11, 2019 at 12:39 PM
Reply-To: "notellk@yahoo.com" <notellk@yahoo.com>
To: "emeharg@cityofsandy.com" <emeharg@cityofsandy.com>

I  Have deep concerns about the proposed development on Ponder Lane North of 211.
 Chief among those concerns are the desire by the developer to use Melissa Avenue as the only entrance or exit to that
development. I also have concern about the construction vehicles that will be going up through Melissa during the
process of development and the closure or partial closure of Melissa to increase the water and sewer capacity going to
that development.
  I want to know when the next city meeting will be held.

Thank you for your attention, 
Laura Kvamme
37438 Rachael Dr
Sandy Or

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

Page 496 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/37438+Rachael+Dr+Sandy+Or?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/37438+Rachael+Dr+Sandy+Or?entry=gmail&source=g
https://go.onelink.me/107872968?pid=InProduct&c=Global_Internal_YGrowth_AndroidEmailSig__AndroidUsers&af_wl=ym&af_sub1=Internal&af_sub2=Global_YGrowth&af_sub3=EmailSignature
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT MMM



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

Bailey Meadows Subdivision
1 message

Kelli Acord <kacord@ridesta.com> Fri, Oct 18, 2019 at 9:26 AM
To: "emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us" <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>
Cc: Kevin Moody <kmoody@ci.sandy.or.us>

Good morning Emily,

 

I just received notice about the proposed subdivision addition for 100 potential homes in the Baily Meadows Subdivision. I
wanted to reach out and give you feed back from the bus transportation side, in hopes that you can take this into
consideration.

 

We currently pickup nearly 20-30 students for elementary and then another 20-30  for high school and middle school. By
adding an additional 100 homes, that adds the possibility of 200 students. That would mean that a bus need would be
greater and would need to be able to go down the proposed 25 foot road (Melissa Ave). Our buses are 11 ft wide plus 1 ft
on each side for mirrors (13 ft), that’s more than half the street width. Melissa Ave wouldn’t be connected without having a
jog in the road and that space is only 24 ft wide on one side and 26 ft wide on the other side of the intersection. Another
concern would be that the city typically allows cars to park on both sides of the road and at the stop signs. If this is the
case, a bus (small or large) would not be able to safely maneuver through the neighborhood.  If the buses cannot
maneuver, a firetruck or ambulance would have the same concern.

 

Approving this neighborhood as it is currently platted would be absurd for the safety of everyone.

 

If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

 

 

Kelli Acord

Operations Manager

36366 Industrial Way Ste B

Sandy, OR 97055

503-668-8855

503-662-7290 (Fax)

 

Page 497 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/36366+Industrial+Way+Ste+B+%0D%0A+Sandy,+OR+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/36366+Industrial+Way+Ste+B+%0D%0A+Sandy,+OR+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT NNN



Elizabeth	A.	(Libby)	Burke	
37412	Rachael	Drive	
Sandy,	OR	97055	

503-668-8553	(home)	
808-756-3066	(mobile)	

Email:	libby@briodzn.com	

	
City	of	Sandy	
Development	Services	
39250	Pioneer	Blvd	
Sandy,	OR	97055-8001	
Attn:	Kelly	O’Neil,	Planning	and	Building	Director	
	
October	20,	2019	
	
Dear	Kelly,	
	 I	am	a	homeowner	on	Rachael	Drive	in	the	Nicolas	Glen	subdivision	along	the	boundary	
of	the	proposed	Bailey	Meadows	subdivision	inside	the	new	UGB.	Having	attended	the	public	
meeting	held	by	the	developers	at	the	Sandy	Library	in	September	(which	you	also	attended),	I	
would	like	to	voice	my	concerns	about	the	proposed	opening	of	Melissa	Avenue	to	the	new	
subdivision,	and	state	some	impacts	I	see	in	this	matter.		
	 There	are	several	reasons	I	feel	this	is	a	very	bad	solution	to	the	90+	home	
development,	starting	with	the	use	of	Melissa	Avenue,	our	subdivision’s	only	egress,	for	land-
moving	heavy	equipment	and	construction	materials	coming	up	that	steep	hill	where	we	have	
many	children	playing,	waiting	for	the	school	buses,	riding	their	bikes,	and	where	our	
community	members	walk	their	dogs	and	stroll	with	their	babies.	The	traffic	that	would	ensue	
for	this	use	would	greatly	disturb	the	quiet	neighborhood	and	endanger	our	community	
members,	pets	and	others.	And	the	later	impact	is	just	as	bad.	
	 Melissa	Avenue	is	only	two	blocks	long	and	ends	at	the	bottom	of	the	hill	where	the	
other	road,	Dubarko,	runs	along	the	bottom	of	our	hill.	Dubarko	has	traffic-routing	curved	
sidewalks	to	encourage	slow	driving.	I	am	concerned	that	if	that	road	has	a	lot	of	large	trucks	
bringing	in	equipment	and	materials	as	stated	above,	this	would	endanger	not	only	our	quiet	
road’s	sidewalks	but	also	those	living	there	who	walk,	run	and	play	safely	on	Dubarko	now.	We	
have	a	children’s	playground	on	that	street	as	well	as	many	entrances	to	Tickle	Creek	Trail.	
	 Another	concern	is	that	this	hill	is	very	slippery	in	cold	weather;	we	all	have	to	drive	out	
of	our	roads	and	on	to	Melissa	Avenue	to	get	down	the	hill.	When	I	drive	down	the	hill	during	
icy	conditions,	I	wait	until	the	car	in	front	of	me	has	cleared	the	intersection	of	Dubarko	and	
Melissa,	before	continuing	down	myself,	with	concern	for	slipping.	Adding	the	cars	from	the	
90+	new	homes	will	greatly	impact	the	ability	for	everyone	in	both	subdivisions	to	drive	safely.		
	 I	would	like	Development	Services	and	the	Planning	Commission	to	review	the	plan	for	
this	subdivision	and	consider	the	impact	these	new	homes	will	have	on	our	small,	quiet,	middle-
income	community.	Also,	I	understand	that	the	new	sewer	lines	that	will	have	to	be	laid	will	be	
also	going	down	Melissa,	which	obviously	will	be	dug	up	for	that	project.	Again	I	would	like	to	
remind	you	that	tearing	up	the	one	road	that	is	the	egress	for	Nicolas	Glen	would	greatly	

Page 498 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT OOO



inconvenience	those	of	us	who	have	lived	here	for	many	years.	I	have	lived	here	for	9	years	and	
have	come	to	love	our	quiet	neighborhood.	With	all	these	new	proposed	vehicle	trips	daily	both	
in	the	construction	and	residential	phases,	our	quality	of	life	will	be	damaged	beyond	what	we	
can	do	anything	about.	We	have	lived	here	and	paid	our	taxes	all	these	years,	and	although	I	
know	that	the	subdivision	itself	will	likely	go	ahead,	I	would	really	like	you	to	consider	creating	
egress	to	Highway	211.		
	 Other	subdivisions	have	been	built	recently	across	from	where	this	one	is	planned:	
Arletha	Court,	the	Cascadia	Village	Annex	and	before	that	the	larger	Cascadia	Village.	Bornstedt	
Road	had	to	be	routed	on	to	the	highway.	Those	others	also	enter	and	exit	by	the	highway.	I	
would	like	to	have	the	egress	for	Bailey	Meadows	considered	as	Highway	211,	with	perhaps	a	
gated	emergency	access	down	Melissa	if	need	be.	The	impact	to	the	highway	would	be	much	
less	than	Melissa	Drive.	The	highway	can	be	slowed	down	a	bit	at	that	point,	and	it	wouldn’t	
hurt	to	have	it	slowed	down	right	before	it	gets	to	the	slowdown	past	Bornstedt	anyway.	I	know	
that	you	are	the	City	of	Sandy	and	not	ODOT,	but	all	the	agencies	have	to	work	together	to	
make	sure	that	our	Oregon,	Clackamas	and	Sandy	citizens	are	safe	and	that	this	very	large	
subdivision	does	not	negatively	impact	our	community	in	Nicolas	Glen.	Am	I	wrong?	
	 I	was	very	surprised	to	learn	that	the	residents	of	Nicolas	Glen	did	not	all	receive	
invitations	to	attend	that	Library	meeting,	but	only	those	on	Rachael	Drive	who	are	directly	on	
the	property	line	and	whose	properties	had	been	surveyed.	The	whole	subdivision	would	be	
impacted	if	the	egress	on	Melissa	were	allowed	to	go	through,	so	everyone	should	have	been	
notified	and	informed,	not	just	Rachael	Drive	residents.	I	feel	like	the	Bailey	Meadows	
developers	are	acting	inconsiderately,	only	doing	the	minimum	rather	than	taking	our	
subdivision’s	community	into	consideration.	These	people	do	not	live	in	Sandy;	they	just	want	
to	make	money	here.	The	water	system	is	already	under	duress	and	rates	will	soon	double,	the	
school	system	is	already	impacted	by	the	growth	that	has	taken	place	in	the	last	two	years	
including	our	new	high	school	already	out	of	room	and	elementary	classes	having	to	be	
combined,	and	it	doesn’t	seem	like	planning	is	really	being	done	to	consider	all	these	impacts	
that	new	subdivisions	will	create	in	our	once	live-able	city.	To	go	from	under	10,000	to	over	
12,000	in	such	a	short	time	is	a	lot	of	growth,	and	this	new	90+	houses	will	only	serve	to	
increase	the	stress	on	all	our	systems.		
	 Also	I	want	to	put	in	a	word	for	the	trees	and	wildlife	living	in	the	trees	(owls	and	many	
other	birds)	that	will	be	impacted	by	disturbance	of	their	habitat.	No	one	can	speak	for	them,	
but	they	are	part	of	our	community	too	and	they	may	be	driven	out	or	their	habitats	damaged.	
	 I	will	be	attending	the	next	Planning	meeting	on	Oct.	28th	in	hopes	that	you	will	be	
discussing	the	Bailey	Meadows/Nicolas	Glen	situation	then.	Please	keep	me	informed,	and	
thank	you	for	your	attention	and	consideration	in	all	these	matters	of	concern	to	the	tax-paying	
resident	citizens	of	Sandy.	
	
Sincerely,	
	
	
/s//Libby	Burke	
	
Elizabeth	A.	Burke	

Page 499 of 504



October 20, 2019 

Brad Robison 

37412 Rachael Drive 

Sandy, OR  97055 

808.756.3444 (mobile) 

Kelly O’Neill, Jr. 

Planning & Building Director 

City of Sandy 

 

Regarding:  BAILEY MEADOWS SUBDIVISION 
TAX MAP/LOTS T2S R4E SECTION 23 TAX LOTS 800, 801, 802, 803, 804 
aka:  STURM ANNEXATION - ORDINANCE NO. 2017-11 
 17.78.60 ANNEXATION CRITERIA  

Comment: 

The proposed development plan for the BAILEY MEADOWS SUBDIVISION fails to take into 

consideration several issues that will have a detrimental impacts on the existing NICHOLAS 

GLEN SUBDIVISION. 

 The current AKS Engineering & Forestry plan states that all residential traffic will be 

routed through the Melissa Avenue and will, by estimate, be nearly 1000 trips per day. 

 To connect the new subdivision to the existing sewer system will require that a trench 

over 20 feet deep by cut into Melissa Avenue to reach the proper elevation for sewage 

flow.  This will have an impact on over half of the population of the existing Nicholas 

Glen subdivision. School busses will need to be re-routed, and the trench work will need 

to be covered every day at the end of work for safety. Vehicle access to residents with 

homes on Melissa will be restricted. Emergency vehicle access will be hampered as well. 

 Melissa Avenue is a steep hill and during winter months can become very slippery. An 

additional 1000 trips per day during icy conditions will only increase the probability of 

severe accidents and possible blockage of Debarko Road as cars or truck slide through 

the intersection unable to stop. 

 Traffic impact studies were limited to what was required by law. This did not take into 

account traffic impacts to exit the residential community to Highway 26. Ruben Lane 

access to Highway 26 currently allows 5-6 vehicles (max) for the duration of the green 

signal light. Additional traffic will increase the wait at this light to 2 or 3 signal changes. 

This will also impact traffic at 362nd and Highway 26. 

In a previous letter submitted by myself and Libby Burke (attached), the problem of 

construction traffic and general traffic control for safety through the Nicholas Glen subdivision 

was addressed. The original STURM ANNEXATION documents stated that he proposed 

Page 500 of 504

emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT PPP



subdivision would also connect to Highway 211. The current AKS Engineering & Forestry plan 

stated that all access would be via Melissa Avenue only with emergency access only gates to be 

provided at for access to Highway 211. There issue of construction traffic routing via any route 

other than Melissa Avenue as not addressed. 

The general impression to most of the attendees of the September 18, 2019 AKS Engineering & 

Forestry “meeting” was that this was a presentation of subdivision plan that was already 

decided and that any changes to that plan, as explained by their lawyer, would not be possible. 

In short, they knew what they were doing within the letter of the law, and as far as they were 

concerned there would be no changes. Traffic studies were limited to what was required by 

law.  

Development is inevitable, population keeps growing and the City of Sandy needs to grow to 

remain a vital community. However, growth without consideration of impact on the greater 

community as a whole is short sighted. The additional population will impact not only basic 

infrastructures such as water and sewage, but schools (already overcrowded), roads, and the 

general quality of life. 

The ordinances that allow for the developer to pay into a “park fund” as opposed to developing 

community parks is the construction industry’s version of NIMBY.  

The city of Sandy needs to weigh carefully the need for growth versus the impact on existing 

communities. Furthermore, recognizing that growth without quality is essentially cancer and 

will eventually decrease the quality of life for all residents. 

 

 

Page 501 of 504



Emily Meharg <emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us>

19-023 SUB/VAR/TREE BAILEY MEADOWS SUBDIVISION HEARING INPUT
1 message

Laurie Gilbert <g.lauriegilbert@gmail.com> Mon, Nov 4, 2019 at 4:00 PM
To: emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us
Cc: Laurie Gilbert <g.lauriegilbert@gmail.com>

CITY OF SANDY

PLANNING COMMISSION

 

EMILY MEHARG

emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us

 

RE: 19-023 SUB/VAR/TREE BAILEY MEADOWS SUBDIVISION

 

I'm writing to ask The Planning Commission to intercede on behalf of the current and future residence of Sandy regarding
the decrease in safety and livability that will result from the current plans for Bailey Meadows.  Though I realize change
and growth is inevitable, the lack of an emergency evacuation route other than Melissa Avenue from the proposed Bailey
Meadows subdivision is a disaster waiting to happen.  With the ever increasing fire danger there needs to be a second
exit from this new subdivision directly to Hwy 211 via Ponder Lane.  Anything else is an unacceptable risk to our
community.

 

After visiting the developers website I learned that they have shown much greater care and respect to the communities of
Happy Valley and Hillsboro in their developments of Pleasant Valley and Butternut Creek respectively.  Not only did they
provide more than one entry and exit road, but included parks and green spaces(images below).  We are all counting on
our Planning Commission to protect us from those who want only short-term profit at the expense of our communities’
safety and livability.

Page 502 of 504

mailto:emeharg@ci.sandy.or.us
emeharg
Text Box
EXHIBIT QQQ



 

Thank you very much.

Page 503 of 504



 

G. Laurie Gilbert

18392 SE 370TH Ave.

Sandy, OR 97055

g.lauriegilbert@gmail.com

Page 504 of 504

https://www.google.com/maps/search/18392+SE+370TH+Ave.+%0D%0A%0D%0A+Sandy,+OR+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/18392+SE+370TH+Ave.+%0D%0A%0D%0A+Sandy,+OR+97055?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:g.lauriegilbert@gmail.com

